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2024 CHARTER 

CORE COUNCILLOR ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Governance role entails: Strategic planning and decision-making; 
Policy and strategy review; 
Community leadership and engagement, and 
stewardship; 
Setting appropriate levels of service; 
Maintaining a financially sustainable organisation; and 
Oversight/scrutiny of Council's performance as one team. 

The governance role focusses on the big picture of 'steering the boat' - management's 
role focusses on 'rowing the boat' 

Our commitments to best support each other and meet 

the challenges and opportunities of 2024 include: 

CLEAR AND RESPECTFUL 

COMMUNICATION 

We are committed to: 

Actively listening and not 

interrupting; 

Remaining conscious of 'tone', 

body language, and amount of 

time speaking (allowing time 

for others); 

Responding/answering in a 

timely manner; and 

Being honest, reasonable, and 

transparent. 

TRUST AND 

RESPECT 

We recognise that trust and 

respect must be earned and that 

a team without trust isn't really a 

team. Trust can be built by: 

Valuing long-term relationships; 

being honest; honouring 

commitments; admitting when 

you're wrong; communicating 

effectively; being transparent; 

standing up for what's right; 

showing people that you care; 

being helpful; and being 

vulnerable. 

CONTINUOUS LEARNING 

AND IMPROVEMENT 

Continuous learning and 

improvement are critical for 

growing together as a team. 

We are committed to constantly 

reviewing what is going well and 

what needs to improve in relation 

to the way we work together, the 

processes we follow, and the 

outcomes we deliver. 

NONE OF US IS AS SMART AS ALL OF US 
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Council 

Chairperson: Mayor 
 

Membership: The Mayor and all Councillors 

Meeting Frequency: Monthly – or as required. 
 

Quorum: A majority of members (including vacancies) 
 

 
Purpose 

The Council is responsible for: 

 
1. Providing leadership to, and advocacy on behalf of, the people of Buller district. 

2. Ensuring that all functions and powers required of a local authority under legislation, and all 
decisions required by legislation to be made by local authority resolution, are carried out 
effectively and efficiently, either by the Council or through delegation. 

 
Terms of Reference 

1. To exercise those powers and responsibilities which cannot legally be delegated by Council: 
a) The power to set district rates. 
b) The power to create, adopt and implement a bylaw. 
c) The power to borrow money, or purchase or dispose of assets, other than in accordance 

with the Long Term Plan. 
d) The power to adopt a Long Term Plan or Annual Plan, or Annual Report. 
e) The power to appoint a Chief Executive Officer. 
f) The power to adopt policies required to be adopted and consulted on under the 

Local Government Act 2002 in association with the Long Term Plan, or developed for the 
purpose of the Council’s governance statement, including the Infrastructure Strategy. 

g) The power to adopt a remuneration and employment policy for Chief Executive Officer. 
h) The power to approve or change the District Plan, or any part of that Plan, in accordance 

with the Resource Management Act 1991. 
i) The power to approve or amend the Council’s Standing Orders. 
j) The power to approve or amend the Code of Conduct for Elected Members. 
k) The power to appoint and discharge members of committees. 
l) The power to establish a joint committee with another local authority of other public body. 
m) The power to make the final decision on a recommendation from the Parliamentary 

Ombudsman, where it is proposed that Council not accept the recommendation. 
n) Health & Safety obligations and legislative requirements are met. 
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2. To exercise the following powers and responsibilities of Council, which the Council chooses to 
retain: 
a) Resolutions required to be made by a local authority under the Local Electoral Act 2001, 

including the appointment of an electoral officer and reviewing representation 
arrangements. 

b) Approval of any changes to Council’s vision, and oversight of that vision by providing 
direction on strategic priorities and receiving regular reports on its overall achievement. 

c) Adoption of governance level strategies, plans and policies which advance Council’s vision 
and strategic goals. 

d) Approval of the Triennial Agreement. 
e) Approval of the local governance statement required under the Local Government Act 2002. 
f) Approval of a proposal to the Remuneration Authority for the remuneration of Members. 
g) Approval of any changes to the nature and delegations of the Committees. 
h) Approval of funding to benefit the social, cultural, arts and environmental wellbeing of 

communities in Buller District 
i) Ensuring Buller is performing to the highest standard in the area of civil defence and emergency 

management through: 
i) Implementation of Government requirements 
ii) Contractual service delivery arrangements with the West Coast Regional Group 

Emergency Management Office 
j) All other powers and responsibilities not specifically delegated to the Risk and Audit 

Committee, subcommittees, independent hearing panels or Inangahua Community Board. 

4



Buller District Council
Venue:  Clock Tower Chambers, Westport.  Live streamed on Buller District 
Council YouTube Channel

25 September 2024 03:30 PM

Agenda Topic Page

1. Apologies 8

2. Members Interests 9

3. Confirmation of Previous Minutes 10

3.1 Attachment 1 - Council Public Meeting Minutes 28 August 2024 11

4. Action Points Report 18

4.1 Attachment 1 - Council Action Points August 2024 19

5. Community-Led Revitalisation Fund Applications 21

5.1 Attachment 1 - Carters Beach Hall and Reserve Subcommittee 22

5.2 Attachment 2 - EPIC Westport 30

6. Community Grants Applications 39

6.1 Attachment 1 - Cancer Society Canterbury-West Coast Division 43

6.2 Attachment 2 - Charleston to Westport Coastal Trail Trust 49

6.3 Attachment 3 - Citizens Advice Bureau 55

6.4 Attachment 4 - Clean Streams Karamea 61

6.5 Attachment 5 - Heritage West Coast Incorporated 68

6.6 Attachment 6 - Inangahua A&P & Sports Association 74

6.7 Attachment 7 - Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust 80

6.8 Attachment 8 - Karamea Historic Society 86

6.9 Attachment 9 - Karamea War Memorial Library Inc 92

5



6.10 Attachment 10 - Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust 98

6.11 Attachment 11 - NZ Food Network FoodBank Distribution Buller 104

6.12 Attachment 12 - Reefton Historic Trust Board 110

6.13 Attachment 13 - Reefton Sports Park 116

6.14 Attachment 14 - Westport MENZ Shed 122

6.15 Attachment 15 - Westport Playcentre 128

7. Community Led Revitilisation Fund: Accountability Reports 134

7.1 Attachment 1 - Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated 135

7.2 Attachment 2 - Carters Beach Hall Reserve Subcommittee 139

7.3 Attachment 3 - Inangahua Silver Band 142

7.4 Attachment 4 - Karamea Reserve Subcommittee 144

7.5 Attachment 5 - Northern Buller Communities Society Inc 148

8. Community Grants: Accountability Report 151

8.1 Attachment 1 - Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated 153

8.2 Attachment 2 - Ingangahua A&P Show 156

8.3 Attachment 3 - Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust 159

8.4 Attachment 4 - Karamea War Memorial Library 162

8.5 Attachment 5 - Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust 165

8.6 Attachment 6 - Reefton Historic Trust Board 168

8.7 Attachment 7 - Torea Gallery and Studios Inc 171

8.8 Attachment 8 - Westport Menz Shed 174

8.9 Attachment 9 - Westport Playcentre 177

8.10 Attachment 10 - NZ Council of Victim Support Groups 180

8.11 Attachment 11 - Potikohua Trust 183

9. General Rates Differentials And Water Rating Review 186

10. Loan Extension - Buller District Council To Buller Holdings Limited 190

10.1 Attachment 1 - Buller District Council Deed of Variation 2024 194

6



11. Westport Airport Authority – Full Year Report To 30 June 2024 197

11.1 Attachment 1 - Westport Airport Authority Accounts (Unaudited) 2024 200

12. Status Report – Carnegie Library 214

12.1 Attachment 1 - Draft Memorandum of Understanding – Carnegie Building 219

12.2 Attachment 2 - Steering Group Terms of Reference - Carnegie 224

13. Mayors Report 228

13.1 Attachment 1 - MTFJ Annual Report 237

13.2 Attachment 2 - Regional Deals Strategic Framework 253

13.3 Attachment 3 - Mayors Correspondence 281

14. CEO Report 289

15. Portfolio Leads Verbal Updates 294

16. Public Excluded Report 295

7



BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 1 
 
Prepared by  Simon Pickford  
  Chief Executive Officer 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 
 That Buller District Council receive any apologies or requests for leave of 

absence from elected members. 
 
 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That there are no apologies to be received and no requests for leave of 

absence. 
 
 OR 
 
 That Buller District Council receives apologies from (insert councillor 

name) and accepts councillor (insert name) request for leave of absence. 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 2 
 
Prepared by  Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
MEMBERS INTEREST 
 
 
Members are encouraged to consider the items on the agenda and disclose whether 
they believe they have a financial or non-
financial interest in any of the items in 
terms of Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Councillors are encouraged to advise 
the Governance Secretary, of any 
changes required to their declared 
Members Interest Register. 
 
The attached flowchart may assist 
members in making that determination 
(Appendix A from Code of Conduct). 
 

_____________________________ 
 
 
DRAFT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Members disclose any financial 
or non-financial interest in any of the 
agenda items. 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 3 
 

Prepared by Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
Attachments 1. Council Meeting Public Minutes 28 August 2024 
  
 
CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 
 
 
1. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION  

 
That Council receive and confirm the Public Minutes from: 

• Council Meeting 28 August 2024 
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ORDINARY MEETING OF THE BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL, HELD AT 3.30PM 
ON WEDNESDAY 28 AUGUST 2024 AT CLOCKTOWER CHAMBERS, 
PALMERSTON STREET, WESTPORT.  

PRESENT: Mayor J Cleine, Deputy Mayor A Basher, Cr P Grafton, Cr A Pfahlert, Cr 
J Howard, Cr G Neylon, Cr R Sampson, Cr G Weston, Cr L Webb, Cr C Reidy  

PRESENT VIA ELECTRONIC LINK:  Cr T O'Keefe, N Tauwhare (Iwi Representative) 

IN ATTENDANCE: S Pickford (CEO), K Trigg (Group Manager Community Services), 
M Sutherland (Contractor Manager Infrastructure Planning), J Ruiz (Coordinator Solid 
Waste), C Borrell (Governance Assistant), C McDonald (Governance Secretary)  

IN ATTENDANCE VIA ELECTRONIC LINK: R Barry (Contract Project Manager) 

MEDIA: Ellen Curnow (Westport News) 

PUBLIC FORUM: N/A 

MEETING DECLARED OPEN AT: 3.34PM 

1. APOLOGIES (Page 7)
Discussion:
Nil.

RESOLVED that there are no apologies to be received and no requests for
leave of absence and approves N Tauwhare (Iwi Representative) leave of
absence for the Public Excluded section.

Mayor J Cleine / Deputy Mayor A Basher 
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

2. MEMBERS INTEREST (Page 8)
Discussion:
Cr C Reidy in PE1 – Confirmation of minutes
 Cr G Neylon Agenda Item 5 - Reefton Campground Proposal

ATTACHMENT 1
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RESOLVED that members disclose any financial or non-financial interest in any 
of the agenda items. 
 

Mayor J Cleine / Cr P Grafton  
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
3. CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES (Page 9) 
 Discussion: 

Nil. 
 
RESOLVED That Council receive and confirm the Public Minutes from: 
• Council Meeting 31 July 2024 

Cr G Weston / Cr A Pfahlert  
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4. ACTION POINTS REPORT (Page 18) 
 Discussion: 

M Sutherland provided a verbal update. Action Point 24: the agreement has 
been signed by both parties; the contract is awarded subject to final 
confirmation of the resource consent. 
The intention is to progress Action Point 24 prior to discussions on Action 
Point 25. 
 
RESOLVED that Council receive the Action Point list for information. 
 

Cr P Grafton / Cr A Pfahlert  
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

5.  REEFTON CAMPGROUND PROPOSAL – CONSIDERATION OF 
SUBMISSIONS (Page 20) 

 Discussion: 
N Tauwhare (Iwi Representative) joined the meeting via Zoom at 3.43PM 
 
Cr G Neylon declared an interest in this item as he is speaking on behalf of 
the Reefton Reserve Subcommittee and will not participate in the discussion 
or vote.  

 
Speaker one: Graeme Neylon (on behalf of the Reefton Reserve 
Subcommittee) 

 Spoke in support of the proposal. 
  
 Speaker two: Susan Wauchop 
 Against the Proposal and has provided a written statement to be read. 
 Mayor J Cleine read the statement on behalf of the submitter.  
 

 

ATTACHMENT 1
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RESOLVED That the Council: 
1) Consider all submissions received and hear from those submitters 

wishing to speak; 
Mayor J Cleine / Cr J Howard  

11/11 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
2) After consideration of all submissions received to the proposal resolves 

to: 
 
a) Confirm that the Sections 49, 50, 51, 52 and 53 Town of Reefton (the 

Site) are part of the Reefton Recreation Reserve, set apart as a camping 
ground under section 53(1)(h) of the Reserves Act 1977;  

Cr P Grafton / Cr L Webb 
9/9  

Cr C Reidy abstained 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

b) Declare the Site a relocatable home park;  
 

Deputy Mayor A Basher / Cr P Grafton  
9/9  

Cr C Reidy abstained 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
c) Consent to the erection of the cabins, the construction of the car parks 

and installation of services (which may be used for the purposes of 
providing  permanent or temporary personal accommodation for 
workers) as set out in Attachments 1&2, in its capacity as administering 
body of the reserve;  

 
Mayor J Cleine Cr P Grafton  

9/9  
Cr C Reidy abstained 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
d) Consent to the placement of the cabins on the Site, in its capacity as a 

 local authority under the Camping Ground Regulations;  
  

Mayor J Cleine Cr J Howard 
9/9  

Cr C Reidy abstained 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
6. WEST COAST REGIONAL WASTE ASSESSMENT 2024 – COUNCIL 

APPROVAL (Page 45) 

 Discussion: 
Staff noted corrections to be made to the report and attachments as fed back 
by Councillors.  
 

ATTACHMENT 1
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RESOLVED That Council: 
1. Receive the report.  

Mayor J Cleine / Cr A Pfahlert  
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
2. Agrees with the findings from the West Coast Regional Waste 
 Assessment 2024 and; 
 
3. Adopts the West Coast Regional Waste Assessment 2024.  

 
Deputy Mayor A Basher / Cr P Grafton  

11/11 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
4. Agrees to proceed with the amendment of the existing West Coast 

 Regional Waste Management and Minimisation Plan 2018 to develop a 
 new draft West Coast Regional Waste Management and Minimisation 
Plan 2024 based on: 

 
a) The findings from the West Coast Regional Waste Assessment 2024 
 
b) Alignment of activities with the 2023 Te rautaki para - National Waste 
 Strategy – under the Waste Management Act 2008, Section 50(3)(a). 

 
Cr A Pfahlert Deputy / Mayor A Basher  

10/10  
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

 
7. MAYOR’S REPORT (Page 213) 
 Discussion: 

Mayor J Cleine spoke about discussions held with Tasman District Council 
around Local Water Done Well.   
Mayor J Cleine provided verbal update on Regional Infrastructure Fund criteria 
and draft application being in line with regional priorities.  The recently 
announced central government Regional Deals policy was discussed as 
potentially an option for the West Coast to explore if invited by government. 
Clarification was sought round the acronym for NEET = Not in Education 
Employment or Training.  
 
RESOLVED That Council: 
1.  Receive the report for discussion and information. 
2.  Notes Inwards and Outwards Correspondence and provide direction for 

any responses required. 
Cr A Pfahlert / Cr G Weston  

11/11 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

ATTACHMENT 1
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8.  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (Page 257) 

Discussion: 
 Nil. 
 

RESOLVED That Council: 
1. That Council receives the Chief Executive Officer’s Report for information. 
 

Cr J Howard / Deputy Mayor A Basher   
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

9. PORTFOLIO LEADS VERBAL UPDATE (Page 261) 
Discussion: 
Cr A Pfahlert left the meeting 5.06PM 
Cr A Pfahlert returned to the meeting 5.09PM 
 
Cr L Webb left the meeting 5.12PM 
Cr L Webb returned to the meeting 5.14PM 
 
Cr P Grafton left the meeting 5.15PM 
Cr P Grafton returned to the meeting 5.17PM 
 
RESOLVED That Council receive verbal updates from the following Chairs and 
Council Representatives, for information: 
 
a. Inangahua Community Board – Cr L Webb 
Meeting 3 September, 5pm Women’s Institute Rooms, Reefton. 
 
b. Regulatory Environment & Planning - Councillors Neylon and Basher 
Busy time with District Liquor Licensing and Resource Consent hearings. There 
has been a resignation from the committee which needs filling.  
 
c. Community Services - Councillors Howard and Pfahlert   
Destination Management Reference Group meet in Greymouth 5 September. 
Tourism Summit is 6 September in Shantytown. Grant workshop is 11 
September. Youth Voice Kawatiri are interested in setting up a Youth Council 
in Buller. 
 
d. Infrastructure - Councillors Grafton and Weston  
Attended a meeting 28 August. Workshop looking at future planning to be held 
in October/November.  
 
e. Corporate Policy and Corporate Planning - Councillors Reidy and 

Sampson 
Nothing to report.  Mayor Jamie Cleine requested these portfolio holders to 
begin engaging with the finance team especially in relation to development of 
the Long-Term Plan. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1
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f. Smaller and Rural Communities - Councillors O’Keefe and Webb 
Subcommittee Annual meetings in progress, will report on progress once these 
are held. Attended the Charleston Community Group. The Waimangaroa 
community are investigating installing a small playground. 
 
g. Iwi Relationships - Ngāti Waewae Representative Ned Tauwhare and 

Mayor Cleine 
N Tauwhare (Iwi Representative) undertaking some work with Gentle Annie and 
Kaumatua around interpretation panels. Federation Mining to give a 
presentation to Greymouth High School. 
 
h. Te Tai o Poutini Plan – Mayor J Cleine and Cr G Neylon 
Reminder that submissions for variation two close Friday. Any proposed 
changed to the RMA unlikely to become active until mid to late 2025. District 
Plan to keep progressing with any legislation changes dealt with if/when they 
happen. 
 
i. Joint Committee Westport Rating District – Mayor J Cleine, Cr J 
Howard and Cr C Reidy 
Hasn’t met and it was expressed that a meeting of this committee should be 
organised by West Coast Regional Council in order to ensure the Committee is 
aware of work programmes and related impact on the rating district rates 
 
j. Regional Transport Committee – Cr Phil Grafton 
Nothing to add. 

Mayor J Cleine/Deputy Mayor A Basher  
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
PUBLIC FORUM RESPONSE: N/A 
 

10. PUBLIC EXCLUDED (Page 262) 
 Discussion: 
 
PE 4 will be addressed first as Independent Chair S Roche will be joining the meeting 
via Zoom to speak to the item. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1
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RESOLVED That the public be excluded from the following parts of the 
proceedings of this meeting:  
Item 
No. 

Minutes/Report 
of: 

General Subject Reason For Passing 
Resolution Section 7 
LGOIMA 1987 

PE1 Simon Pickford 
– Chief 
Executive 
Officer 

Confirmation of 
Public Excluded 
Minutes 

(s 7(2)(i)) - enable any local 
authority holding the 
information to carry on, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations 
(including commercial and 
industrial negotiations); or 
(s 7(2)(j)) - prevent the 
disclosure or use of official 
information for improper gain 
or improper advantage. 

PE2 Krissy Trigg 
Group Manager 
Community 
Services 

Flood Recovery 
Temporary Houses 
Options 

s7(2)(i) enable any local 
authority holding the 
information to carry on, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations 
(including commercial and 
industrial negotiations) 

PE3 Krissy Trigg 
Group Manager 
Community 
Services 

Future of Flood 
Recovery Houses 

s7(2)(i) enable any local 
authority holding the 
information to carry on, 
without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations 
(including commercial and 
industrial negotiations) 

PE4 Sharon Roche – 
Independent 
Chair Risk and 
Audit Committee 

Buller Holdings Ltd 
Directorship 
Appointment and 
Remuneration 

(s 7(2)(a)) - Protect the 
privacy of natural persons, 
including that of deceased 
natural persons; 

Mayor J Cleine / Cr P Grafton  
11/11 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
MOVED INTO PUBLIC EXCLUDED: 5.23PM 
MEETING ADJOURNED: 5:23PM 

ATTACHMENT 1
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 4 
 

 
Prepared by  Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
Attachments 1. Council Action Points September 2024 
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION POINT LIST 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
  
 A summary of council resolutions requiring actions. 
 
 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That Council receive the Action Point list for information. 
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Council Action Points – CURRENT 
No Meeting Date / Action Point Responsible Update Date Required 

By 
24 29 November 2023 

Punakaiki Campground 
Update on progress with upgrading the Punakaiki 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

D Marshall 
M Sutherland 

A budget of $796,000 was included in the 2023/2024 annual plan for this project.  The project has funding of 
$398,000 from the TIF fund, $198,000 from various council sources and $200,000 from other funds - external 
funding. 

Current estimates to undertake the project are $496,000.  Staff have a number of matters to complete before 
the project commences including: 

• Decision to proceed or not with a propriety system and sole supplier.
• The level of TIF funding if the project cost is lower (approved application was based on a 50%

contribution at cost estimate of $796,000
• External funding - indications are that funding may not be available

Update 16 April 2024 

Council staff have engaged with staff managing the TIF fund.  We have noted that we expect to have a much 
lower claim than they are funding us for due to lower project costs but that we are now unlikely to receive the 
$200,000 of external funding. 

TIF have advised that the saving on the grant claim can be used to fund this shortfall if it occurs as they will still 
get a saving based on our forecasts. 

Update 26 June 2024 
Council staff received confirmation from TIF on 13 June 2024 that the Funding Agreement is now being prepared 
based on the proposed project timeline targeting project completion by mid-September 2024. Project status 
reports will be provided through RAC once initiation phase completed.  

Update 19 Sept 2024 
Key material components are being delivered to site and the contractor is due to start on site week commencing 
23 September 2024. Expected contract duration is 4 weeks. As stated in the last update – project status reports 
will now be reported to the Risk and Audit Committee. 

26 June 2024 
25 September 2024 

25 28 February 2024 
Punakaiki Campground Lease 
D Marshall to bring back reports to April Council 
regarding proposal from the Leasee 

D Marshall 
M Sutherland 

Staff have been focused on achieving the additional funding from TIF during the last month and on preparing the 
draft enhanced annual plan. 

Staff will be contacting the leasee over the effluent system installation in the coming month and will engage and 
report back on their proposal by end of June. 

Update 26 June 2024 
Once the TIF Funding Agreement has been received and approved by Council, staff will contact the leasee 
regarding the effluent system project and report back to the August 2024 meeting. 

Update 31 July 
The 28 August Update is to include Camp Development Plans of the Leasee 

26 June 2024 
28 August 2024 
25 September 2024 
30 October 2024 
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Update 28 August 
Due to staff illness this will be included in the September update to Council with the update on the Punakaiki 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 
Update 19 Sept 2024 
 
Commencement of negotiations are being deferred until after the completion of the upgrade of the Punakaiki 
Wastewater Treatment Plant and due to staff changes in the Property Portfolio. 

26 28 February 2024 
Brougham House Update 
Staff will report back in December 2024 on progress 
update on options being considered for Brougham 
House, EOC and Library.   

K Trigg   18 December 2024 

ATTACHMENT 1
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 5 
 

Prepared by  Nicola Woodward 
 Manager Community Engagement 
 
Reviewed by  Krissy Trigg 
 Group Manager Community Services 
 
Attachments 1. Carters Beach Hall and Reserve Sub-Committee 
 2. EPIC Westport 
 
Public Excluded: No 
 
 
COMMUNITY-LED REVITALISATION FUND: FUNDING APPLICATIONS 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 

Two applications were submitted, requesting a combined total of 
$65,653.38 for funding. 

The Community-Led Revitalisation Fund has a total budget of $50,000.00,   
allocated in a single funding round each financial year. 

 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council considers all Community-Led Revitalisation Fund Applications 
and advises of its decision. 

 
 
  
No Organisation  Purpose Amount 
1 Carters Beach Hall and Reserve Sub-

Committee 
To purchase a 
modular stage 

$15,653.38 

2 EPIC Westport Create a laneway on 
council owned land 
located behind 
Shortjaw Brewery. 

$50,000.00 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 6 
 

Prepared by:      Nicola Woodward 
     Manager Community Engagement  
 
Reviewed by:    Krissy Trigg 
     Group Manager Community Services 

  

Attachments:    1   - Cancer Society 
   2   - Charleston to Westport Coastal Trail Trust 
   3   - Citizens Advice Bureau Buller 
   4   - Clean Streams Karamea Inc 
   5   - Heritage West Coast Incorporated 
   6   - Inangahua A & P & Sports Association 
   7   - Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust 
   8   - Karamea Historical Society 
   9   - Karamea War Memorial Library Inc 
   10 - Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust 
   11 - NZ Food Network Foodbank  
   12 - Reefton Historic Trust Board 
   13 - Reefton Sports Park 
   14 - Westport MENZ Shed 
   15 - Westport Playcentre 
 
Public Excluded:  No 
 
 
COMMUNITY GRANTS:  FUNDING APPLICATIONS 
 
 
1. REPORT PURPOSE 
 
 The Community Grants budget for the 2024/2025 financial year is $105,000, 

with this being the first of two funding rounds. 
 
 Fifteen eligible Community Grant applications were received, requesting a 

combined amount of $105,508.15. All applicants provided the required two 
letters of support and, where applicable, accountability forms for previous 
funding. 

39



 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
  

1.  Council notes that the budgeted Community Grants pool for 2024/25 
 year is $105,000. 
 
2. Council resolves to hold two funding rounds during 2024/25 and 
 approves $xx be allocated in the first round, with the residual 
 funds to be allocated in a second funding round. 
 
3. Council notes a Workshop was held on 11 September 2024 to 
 discuss applications received in the first round. 
 
4. Council resolves to consider the applications and determine the 
 allocation of grants funding to be approved for each applicant. 
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No Organisation Purpose of Grant Funds Requested 
($) 

1 Cancer Society Funds to cover operating costs. $10,000.00 

2  Charleston to Westport Coastal Trail 
Trust 

Purchase three additional trail counters to meet the 'Great 
Ride Status'. 

$15,800.00 

3 Citizens Advice Bureau Buller Funds to cover the rent at the Clocktower. $13,071.00 

4 Clean Streams Karamea Inc Funds to support the Oparara source to Sea Project 
environmental project. 

$12,467.15 

5 Heritage West Coast Incorporated Funds towards a needs assessment research, meetings 
and other work. 

$10,000.00 

6 Inangahua A & P & Sports 
Association 

Funds to cover the rental of grounds for A&P show. $1,950.00 

7 Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust Funds to keep Chasm Creek Walkway open. $800.00 

8 Karamea Historical Society Funds to support the Sesquicentennial celebrations event 
in Karamea. 

$7,500.00 
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9 Karamea War Memorial Library Inc Funds to cover the annual insurance bill for the library 
building. 

$1,300.00 

10 Kawatiri Nature Environment & 
Communities Trust 

Fund to support the development of an online Enviro Hub 
to coordinate not for profit organisations in Buller focusing 
on environmental outcomes. 

$5,000.00 

11 NZ Food Network Foodbank  Funds to operate a vehicle, and / or trailer, to collect Food 
Parcels from pre-arranged depots and distribute them to 
NGOs in Westport 

$2,000.00 

12 Reefton Historic Trust Board Funds to move the scrap metal 'operation' from the main 
road to the other side of the railway precinct, onto Hattie 
Street, Reefton. 

$2,070.00 

13 Reefton Sports Park Fund to help with the upgrade of the club room facilities to 
a standard where they can be used again. 

$20,000.00 

14 Westport MENZ Shed Fund to cover general expenses and keep membership 
affordable as most are beneficiaries or retired. 

$3,000.00 

15 Westport Playcentre Funds to purchase a new printer and replace the old one. $550.00 

Total  $105,508.15 
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COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATION 

The Buller District Council Community Grants Fund is for community groups/organisations that are 
carrying out projects that align with Council’s Community Outcomes. 

Contact details: 

Name Position in organisation 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Why was your organisation set up (what are your organisation’s main objectives)? 

 What are you seeking funding for? Please summarise and include how was the need identified, what are your key 
partners, who will benefit, how will it benefit the community or the participants.  

Please do not say ‘see attached’ – If you wish to attach a    project outline or plan then please do so, but summaries 
your project here. 

Name of your organisation: 

Legal status of organisation: Incorporated Society

The Cancer Society is the lead NGO dedicated to reducing the impact and incidence of 
cancer for everyone in our New Zealand. The Cancer Society is committed to working with 
our communities, no matter where, to ensure they get the wraparound support they need. 
We offer in-person support, counselling, financial aid, free drives to and from appointments 
(including to Christchurch) and free accommodation when receiving treatment in hospital.  

The sad truth is that 1 in 3 kiwis will receive a cancer diagnosis in their lifetime and that number will 
double in the next 10 years.  Hospital treatment is free, but wraparound support is vital and Cancer 
Society works to be in all communities to offer it.  No other cancer charity is embedded in the local 
community like we are.  No referrals are needed and our services are 100% free.  We are funded by 
the community and have no government contracts. 

We humbly ask for Buller District Council to contribute to our operating costs to keep our doors open 
and our services free to the region.  Our staff and support group are very active in Westport, holding 
clinics and house visits with patients, regular visits with Westport oncology nurses, helping local 
patients with financial assistance and arranging their appointment transport and free accommodation 
in Christchurch when they're receiving treatment at Christchurch Hospital.   

Cancer is the #1 killer in New Zealand.  With on-the-ground support like ours, the Buller District 
cancer community and their families will know that help is local and accessible any time they need it. 
We are there to discuss their options, get them to appointments, explain the daunting healthcare 
system, get them grocery and petrol vouchers when budgets are strained, and be a good listener 
when a patient just wants to talk, to cry, to vent, to grieve.  

Cancer Society Canterbury- West Coast Division

Heather Locke

Cherie Roper
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 

  

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
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Your budget  
Please identify all the expenses related to this funding application. These can include materials, venue hire, 
promotion, equipment hire, fees, running costs, and wages. 

 
Your expenses  Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total cost: $ 

 
Please identify all contributions to this project. These can include own funds, income from fundraising events, other 
grants, ticket sales, sale of artwork, sponsorship, or donations.  

 
Your contributions Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total contribution  $ 

Cost less contribution  $ 

Amount you are requesting from this Community Grant  $ 

 
If you are holding funds in your accounts, please outline why these cannot be used for this project or use. 

 

  

Salaries Per annum $ 168,541.00

Paid-For Patient Services Counseling, petrol vouchers, grocery vouchers, bills, etc. $ 17,459.00

Running Costs Rent, power, rates, vehicle costs, etc. $ 34,421.00

220,421.00

Fundraising Daffodil Day, Bequests, Public Donations 210,421.00

210,421.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

We are a large organization and classified as an essential service.  All of our centres run at 
a deficit and do not raise enough locally to cover their own costs, so funds are kept to 
ensure we can divert money to all centres and services requiring it.  We are 100% funded 
by the community, so local support like yours is vital to keeping our support open and 
available to all.  
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What will be the effect if Council does not support your application (please select only one option) ? 

Not go ahead 
Downscaling 
Use own funds  
Postponing 
Apply to other funds 
Other:  

Does your organization receive funding or support from Buller District Council this financial year? Yes / No 
If yes, please specify below. This can include annual plan funding, use of Council facilities, administration 
support, support with materials, running costs, hire, fees, promotion, or support by Council staff. 

Have you received funding from Buller District Council Community Grants in the past? Yes / No 
If yes, please complete this table. If you have received funding more than once, please refer to the most recent 
amount you received.  

Year Project Amount ($) Have you submitted an 
accountability statement for 
this project? 

NA

✔

Not applicable
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Information for applicants: 

• All accountability statements for previous funding must be submitted before any new applications are
considered.

• If you are unsure if an accountability statement has been submitted, please contact the Buller District
Council Community Services Officer on (03) 788 9683.

• Complete one application form per project.
• Applications are evaluated by the Community Grants Committee.
• Council's Community Services Officer is available if you require assistance, phone (03) 788 9683.
• Ensure you attach all the required supporting documents.
• The Community Outcomes can be downloaded from Council’s website https://bullerdc.govt.nz/district-

council/publications/long-term-plan/community-outcomes/
• Failure to include all relevant information may delay the processing of your application.
• If you are unsure of the closing date, please contact Customer Services for confirmation as late

applications will not be accepted.
• Please keep a copy of the application to complete the accountability statement.
• This document will be available to the public as part of the meeting agenda. Please refer to

www.bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy or contact Council for a copy of Council’s Privacy Statement.

Checklist for your application: 

Filled out and signed application form. Please ensure that you have completed ALL sections of the 
application. If information is not provided, it may  delay your application. 

Two letters of community support for your organisation, signed, dated and less than six months old, from 
people not involved or connected in any way with the running of your organisation. 

A copy of your organisation’s latest annual accounts. If you do not have annual accounts, please attach 
a statement of income and expenditure for the past 12 months. If neither of these documents are 
available please explain why below, and attach a copy of your organisations latest bank account 
statement/s. 

Declaration: 

I/We hereby declare the information supplied in this application is correct. If the application is successful, I/we 
agree to provide an accountability report to Buller District Council stating that the money received has been 
spent on the project or service as requested. I/we agree to participate in any funding audit of our organisation 
conducted by Buller District Council. 

I/we also consent to Buller District Council collecting, retaining and using the contact details of our organisation 
that have been listed in this application. I/we confirm we have the authority to provide these details and to 
commit the organisation to this application. Where funds are approved, I/we agree to include Buller District 
Council’s logo in all promotions carried out. 

Name Signature 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Send your completed application to: 
Buller District Council, PO Box 21, Westport 7866 

or email to grants@bdc.govt.nz 
The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with our privacy 

policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 2020. Council's privacy 
policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you have with the council, and how you 

can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this policy.

  Heather Locke Heather Locke

Cherie Roper

✔

✔

✔

 Cherie Roper
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COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATION 

The Buller District Council Community Grants Fund is for community groups/organisations that are 
carrying out projects that align with Council’s Community Outcomes. 

Contact details: 

Name Position in organisation 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Why was your organisation set up (what are your organisation’s main objectives)? 

 What are you seeking funding for? Please summarise and include how was the need identified, what are your key 
partners, who will benefit, how will it benefit the community or the participants.  

Please do not say ‘see attached’ – If you wish to attach a    project outline or plan then please do so, but summaries 
your project here. 

Name of your organisation: 

Legal status of organisation: Incorporated Society

Chairperson

Treasurer

The purpose of the Society is to enhance and promote the discovery, conservation, development, interpretation and marketing of the heritage of the West Coast Region, in order to 
increase the social and economic well being of the region’s communities, whanau, hapu, iwi, and families. 
 
The goals include providing a strategic approach to heritage management, raising standards of heritage management in the region, raising the local, regional, national, and 
international profile and understanding of the West Coast’s heritage, and providing a context for partnership and funding support to projects. 
 
The activities of the Heritage Facilitator include but are not limited to preparing and promoting the Regional Heritage Strategy, advocating for and applying for funding to support 
heritage projects, advocating for the West Coast's heritage to local and central government planning, management and consent p 
rocesses, working with tourism organisations to ensure the West Coast’s heritage is given its whole place in marketing to visitors, providing mentoring, advice, and support to heritage 
groups, organising West Coast heritage forums and networking events.

Heritage West Coast (HWC) is seeking funding of $10,000 to contribute to the continuation of the heritage facilitator and project work, specifically with heritage projects in the Buller region, for the next year.   Further assistance would 
be appreciated if it was available. 
 
HWC gained a grant from the Ministry of Culture and Heritage Covid Regeneration to fund a facilitator to deliver a number of projects across the region. A considerable amount of that investment went into Buller District Projects. The 
project concluded at the end of July 2024. HWC has committed to putting much of our existing limited funding into keeping this work happening. It aims to raise the required funding to keep the role going for at least another two years. 
The aspiration is to establish a permanent role. An application was lodged with Lottery Environment and Heritage in the latest round that closed last month. Funding is also being sought from the other local Councils and grant 
providers. Our organisation has no ongoing funding and would welcome the support of the Council through this fund to back the efforts to support these projects in the Buller District. We recognise these are primarily small groups of 
volunteers working in remote areas with little support. The work in the last year has been hugely beneficial, and we want this to continue. There is no ticket clipping by HWC; instead, there is continued professional voluntary support 
going in from members.  
 
 
The Need: The need for the project was identified based on formal needs assessment research, meetings with the heritage groups and the subsequent work undertaken over the last year, including:  
- The draft framework of a district heritage strategy.  
- Assisting the Northern Buller Museum extensively with developing a Concept Plan, a major Lottery Environment and Heritage Funding application, concepts for the layout of their main exhibition spaces and beginning to develop 
relationships with sponsors. 
- Assisting the Karamea Centennial Museum with the fit-out of their archives and research rooms and a plan for upgrading their explorer museum.   
- The creation of a regional heritage website with specific tabs for all the Buller groups, museums and sites. 
- A photo shoot of all attractions for future marketing, social media, and the preparation of hard copy brochures for Friends of the Hill (Denniston) and the Northern Buller Museum.   
- Preparation of the regional Footprints brochure.  
 
Tangible Deliverables Proposed: This funding will assist HWC in continuing this work. The aim is to assist the Karamea Centennial Museum with the complete fit-out of the three rooms and help the Northern Buller Museum achieve its 
upgraded exhibitions, incline walk interpretation and fit-out of the railway station building. The project also proposes completing the district heritage strategy, potentially assisting the Buller District Council with heritage planning and 
decisions being made in the sector. HWC also aims to help promote the sites within existing media. Due to the limited resources and timeframe of the past year, HWC is also looking to assist other groups that could not yet be 
supported beyond the photo shoots, website, and Footprints brochure.  
 
The key partners in this project to date are the Northern Buller Museum and the Karamea Centennial Museum. However, the aim is to extend this to Friends of the Hill, the Museum of Kawatiri, the heritage groups in Reefton, and 
Promoting Buller Inc. 
 
The benefits of this funding will include:  
- Providing professional support and encouragement to the heritage groups, most of which rely on committed and passionate volunteers who need help with planning, exhibition design and layout, fundraising, and marketing. Enhance 
museums, sites, and attractions.  
- Increased use of facilities and appreciation of cultural heritage.  
- Better preservation and storytelling of the district’s rich history.  
- Increased collaboration and sharing of skills and resources between heritage entities.  
- Improved and coordinated marketing of sites within existing tourism marketing. 
- Much greater recognition of the heritage sites and stories within the community and much greater involvement by communities. 
- Increased relationships with schools and young people learning their history. 
- Better preservation of the district’s heritage and cultural assets.  
- Economic development through potential increased tourism visitation, particularly into the Northern Buller.  
- Increased community empowerment and resilience: The project has already seen an increased interest in the museums from locals who were not engaged before the project.

Heritage West Coast Inc.

Jackie Gurden

Andrea  Forres
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 

  

The Community Outcome of prosperity can be met through the approach to economic development and community 
enhancement and the building of partnerships and integration between the heritage sector, tourism operators, educational 
institutions, and local businesses that have already begun. This cross-sector collaboration together with regional networking 
initiatives encourage resource sharing and joint ventures that create a stronger, more resilient local economy.  
 
The project's focus on enhancing heritage tourism plays a key role in attracting visitors, generating revenue, and instilling a 
sense of pride in the district's unique history and culture. This emphasis on cultural tourism contributes to economic growth and 
preserves and promotes the area's distinctive identity.  
 
The project's investment in digital content creation, storytelling, and interpretation skills, as seen in the initial work undertaken to 
use QR codes in the Northern Buller Museum, supports the growth of creative industries, and the development of these skills in 
the community.

This can be measured by monitoring the number and types of partnerships 
formed between heritage organisations, tourism operators, educational 
institutions, and local businesses and tracking the increase in visitor numbers 
to heritage sites and museums in the Buller District.

Through our approach to preserving and promoting the unique cultural legacy, the project 
cultivates pride and strengthens community bonds, reinforcing the value of the area's history. 
This sense of shared heritage is actively developed through community engagement initiatives, 
including workshops, forums, and volunteer opportunities, encouraging residents to take 
ownership of their cultural treasures and participate in their preservation. Additionally, the 
project's commitment to training and capacity building within the heritage sector supports 
lifelong learning and professional development, enhancing heritage practitioners' and 
volunteers' skills and knowledge.

Community engagement and participation can be measured through 
attendance at heritage attractions, events, workshops, and training sessions. It 
can also be tracked by monitoring the number of volunteers actively involved in 
heritage projects.

This project does not have a  strong focus on the environment however initial 
discussions are already underway with Bathurst Resrouces Limited to tell their 
story, that would likely include environmental restoration, in the Norther Buller 
Museum. 
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Your budget  
Please identify all the expenses related to this funding application. These can include materials, venue hire, 
promotion, equipment hire, fees, running costs, and wages. 

 
Your expenses  Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total cost: $ 

 
Please identify all contributions to this project. These can include own funds, income from fundraising events, other 
grants, ticket sales, sale of artwork, sponsorship, or donations.  

 
Your contributions Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total contribution  $ 

Cost less contribution  $ 

Amount you are requesting from this Community Grant  $ 

 
If you are holding funds in your accounts, please outline why these cannot be used for this project or use. 

 

  

Project Facilitator Yr 1 Proposed Contract Price for Regional Facilitator for Y1 $ 80,000.00

Administration and Travel Estimate of costs for administration and travel $ 10,000.00

Projects Budget Estimate of Budget to undertake Projects, prepare concepts plans for funding applications etc $ 40,000.00

130,000.00

Heritage West Coast Funds raised from West Coast Community Trust 5,175.00
Lottery Environment and Heritage Application for Yr1 Lodged 31 July 2024 84,825.00

90,000.00

40,000.00

10,000.00

The budget above is an overall budget for the regional project proposed. The request to the Buller District 
Community Grants is for $10,000 + GST, which will help support the work in the Buller District. This is further 
explained in the attached cover letter. HWC would very much welcome further funding if it was available. 
 
In relation to funds held by HWC: 
 - HWC is investing around $30,000 in this project for the period from July - Nov 2024 that has not been 
recorded in this budget. 
- An operating contingency for HWC to meet annual operating costs is being retained. HWC also has funding 
committed from the Westland Cultural Tourism Development Project for the Hokitika Custom House Restoration 
Project, which came from Westland funding. 
 
Should funding not be gained HWC will reduce the project to meet the funding that can be raised. 
 
The financial year end for HWC is 30 June. We have attached the preliminary financial accounts that are to be 
forwarded to our accountant. Please note, they contain the financials for the MCH Grant funded project.
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What will be the effect if Council does not support your application (please select only one option) ? 

Not go ahead 
Downscaling 
Use own funds  
Postponing 
Apply to other funds 
Other:  

Does your organization receive funding or support from Buller District Council this financial year? Yes / No 
If yes, please specify below. This can include annual plan funding, use of Council facilities, administration 
support, support with materials, running costs, hire, fees, promotion, or support by Council staff. 

Have you received funding from Buller District Council Community Grants in the past? Yes / No 
If yes, please complete this table. If you have received funding more than once, please refer to the most recent 
amount you received.  

Year Project Amount ($) Have you submitted an 
accountability statement for 
this project? 

All boxes have been ticked as HWC will have to review all options and make decisions based on the funding available. We are committed to 
undertake this work however resourcing is required. Applications are already being lodged with other funders.

HWC made a formal submission to the Annual and LTP and requested to speak to it. It 
appears that the submission was misplaced and, therefore, was not considered. Due to the 
pressure on rates, HWC did not pursue this. Instead, we are applying to this community 
fund as we understand it is allocated to support community projects, which is the basis of 
this project and has no additional impact on rates.

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

Not applicable
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Information for applicants: 

• All accountability statements for previous funding must be submitted before any new applications are
considered.

• If you are unsure if an accountability statement has been submitted, please contact the Buller District
Council Community Services Officer on (03) 788 9683.

• Complete one application form per project.
• Applications are evaluated by the Community Grants Committee.
• Council's Community Services Officer is available if you require assistance, phone (03) 788 9683.
• Ensure you attach all the required supporting documents.
• The Community Outcomes can be downloaded from Council’s website https://bullerdc.govt.nz/district-

council/publications/long-term-plan/community-outcomes/
• Failure to include all relevant information may delay the processing of your application.
• If you are unsure of the closing date, please contact Customer Services for confirmation as late

applications will not be accepted.
• Please keep a copy of the application to complete the accountability statement.
• This document will be available to the public as part of the meeting agenda. Please refer to

www.bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy or contact Council for a copy of Council’s Privacy Statement.

Checklist for your application: 

Filled out and signed application form. Please ensure that you have completed ALL sections of the 
application. If information is not provided, it may  delay your application. 

Two letters of community support for your organisation, signed, dated and less than six months old, from 
people not involved or connected in any way with the running of your organisation. 

A copy of your organisation’s latest annual accounts. If you do not have annual accounts, please attach 
a statement of income and expenditure for the past 12 months. If neither of these documents are 
available please explain why below, and attach a copy of your organisations latest bank account 
statement/s. 

Declaration: 

I/We hereby declare the information supplied in this application is correct. If the application is successful, I/we 
agree to provide an accountability report to Buller District Council stating that the money received has been 
spent on the project or service as requested. I/we agree to participate in any funding audit of our organisation 
conducted by Buller District Council. 

I/we also consent to Buller District Council collecting, retaining and using the contact details of our organisation 
that have been listed in this application. I/we confirm we have the authority to provide these details and to 
commit the organisation to this application. Where funds are approved, I/we agree to include Buller District 
Council’s logo in all promotions carried out. 

Name Signature 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Send your completed application to: 
Buller District Council, PO Box 21, Westport 7866 

or email to grants@bdc.govt.nz 
The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with our privacy 

policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 2020. Council's privacy 
policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you have with the council, and how you 

can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this policy.

 Jackie Gurden

✔

✔

✔

Andrea Forrest
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COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATION 

The Buller District Council Community Grants Fund is for community groups/organisations that are 
carrying out projects that align with Council’s Community Outcomes. 

Contact details: 

Name Position in organisation Daytime phone number 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Why was your organisation set up (what are your organisation’s main objectives)? 

 What are you seeking funding for? Please summarise and include how was the need identified, what are your key 
partners, who will benefit, how will it benefit the community or the participants.  

Please do not say ‘see attached’ – If you wish to attach a    project outline or plan then please do so, but summaries 
your project here. 

Name of your organisation: 

Legal status of organisation: N/A

Operator

To facilitate distribution of Food Parcels, sourced from Canterbury FoodBanks, to NGOs and other
 local whanau support groups who supply to recognised needy members of the community

My need is to operate a vehicle, and / or trailer, to collect Food Parcels from pre-arranged 
depots and distribute them to NGOs, etc, in Westport as above.
Funding is required to fuel the vehicle, replace worn tyres, cover insurance costs, etc.

NZ Food Network FoodBank Distribution Buller

Neil Stevenson

N/A
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 

  

Better opportunities for people to concentrate on looking for work, and making 
efforts to live sustainably, as financial pressures are reduced.

More participation in workforce, Maara Kai, etc

Breakfast Club at Buller High will support better learning with students better fed.

Academic results.
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Your budget  
Please identify all the expenses related to this funding application. These can include materials, venue hire, 
promotion, equipment hire, fees, running costs, and wages. 

 
Your expenses  Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total cost: $ 

 
Please identify all contributions to this project. These can include own funds, income from fundraising events, other 
grants, ticket sales, sale of artwork, sponsorship, or donations.  

 
Your contributions Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total contribution  $ 

Cost less contribution  $ 

Amount you are requesting from this Community Grant  $ 

 
If you are holding funds in your accounts, please outline why these cannot be used for this project or use. 

 

  

Vehicle running costsuel, tyres, insurance premiums, et $ 2,000.00

2,000.00

 ouchers from Poutini W 50.00

2,000.00
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What will be the effect if Council does not support your application (please select only one option) ? 

Not go ahead 
Downscaling 
Use own funds  
Postponing 
Apply to other funds 
Other:  

Does your organization receive funding or support from Buller District Council this financial year? Yes / No 
If yes, please specify below. This can include annual plan funding, use of Council facilities, administration 
support, support with materials, running costs, hire, fees, promotion, or support by Council staff. 

Have you received funding from Buller District Council Community Grants in the past? Yes / No 
If yes, please complete this table. If you have received funding more than once, please refer to the most recent 
amount you received.  

Year Project Amount ($) Have you submitted an 
accountability statement for 
this project? 

No

2022 Buller FoodBank distribution 2,000.00

✔

✔

Not applicable
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Information for applicants: 

• All accountability statements for previous funding must be submitted before any new applications are
considered.

• If you are unsure if an accountability statement has been submitted, please contact the Buller District
Council Community Services Officer on (03) 788 9683.

• Complete one application form per project.
• Applications are evaluated by the Community Grants Committee.
• Council's Community Services Officer is available if you require assistance, phone (03) 788 9683.
• Ensure you attach all the required supporting documents.
• The Community Outcomes can be downloaded from Council’s website https://bullerdc.govt.nz/district-

council/publications/long-term-plan/community-outcomes/
• Failure to include all relevant information may delay the processing of your application.
• If you are unsure of the closing date, please contact Customer Services for confirmation as late

applications will not be accepted.
• Please keep a copy of the application to complete the accountability statement.
• This document will be available to the public as part of the meeting agenda. Please refer to

www.bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy or contact Council for a copy of Council’s Privacy Statement.

Checklist for your application: 

Filled out and signed application form. Please ensure that you have completed ALL sections of the 
application. If information is not provided, it may  delay your application. 

Two letters of community support for your organisation, signed, dated and less than six months old, from 
people not involved or connected in any way with the running of your organisation. 

A copy of your organisation’s latest annual accounts. If you do not have annual accounts, please attach 
a statement of income and expenditure for the past 12 months. If neither of these documents are 
available please explain why below, and attach a copy of your organisations latest bank account 
statement/s. 

Declaration: 

I/We hereby declare the information supplied in this application is correct. If the application is successful, I/we 
agree to provide an accountability report to Buller District Council stating that the money received has been 
spent on the project or service as requested. I/we agree to participate in any funding audit of our organisation 
conducted by Buller District Council. 

I/we also consent to Buller District Council collecting, retaining and using the contact details of our organisation 
that have been listed in this application. I/we confirm we have the authority to provide these details and to 
commit the organisation to this application. Where funds are approved, I/we agree to include Buller District 
Council’s logo in all promotions carried out. 

Name Signature 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Send your completed application to: 
Buller District Council, PO Box 21, Westport 7866 

or email to grants@bdc.govt.nz 
The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with our privacy 

policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 2020. Council's privacy 
policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you have with the council, and how you 

can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this policy.

Neil Stevenson
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COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATION 

The Buller District Council Community Grants Fund is for community groups/organisations that are 
carrying out projects that align with Council’s Community Outcomes. 

Contact details: 

Name Position in organisation Daytime phone number 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Why was your organisation set up (what are your organisation’s main objectives)? 

 What are you seeking funding for? Please summarise and include how was the need identified, what are your key 
partners, who will benefit, how will it benefit the community or the participants.  

Please do not say ‘see attached’ – If you wish to attach a    project outline or plan then please do so, but summaries 
your project here. 

Name of your organisation: 

Legal status of organisation: Charitable Trust

Chairperson

Treasurer

To preserve and enhance the historic and cultural characters of the area and region. To encourage the use and 
development of sustainable heritage business and employment initiatives/opportunities for the benefit of the 
communtiy. To encourage the community to preserve, maintain and adapt where necessary, those buildings in 
our area and region which have historical, social, aesthetic and scientific values. To promote encourage and 
facilitate a wider understanding of heritage values which are part of our communities.

The Reefton Railway Precinct - alongside SH69 at the northern entry to town the Trust Board has an area 
promoting scrap metal to be dropped off which members operate as a fundraiser for the organisation. This 
application is for funds to move the scrap metal 'operation' from the main road to the other side of the railway 
precinct, onto Hattie Street. Along this side is a fully fenced area which will be perfect for our developing scrap 
metal operation. It has a gravel surfaced area along the front but has a hollowed out open drain along the rear 
of the section which we need to improve by installing drain pipes which will bring the water from the north of the 
yard into a small stream/drain to the south.
This application is for the purchase of the piping and 'dry hire' of an excavator, a total of $2070.00. Trust 
members will do all the work required including excavator driver.
The scrap metal fundraiser has become a long term sustainable fundraiser for our organisation but for it to 
continue it needs to move from the entrance to town where scrap is dumped rather randomly in an open area 
alongside the main road to a more organised site. This will be achievable at the proposed site on Hattie Street 
which is more secure, has a good base and space to allow for areas the different scrap to be dumped and 
picked up.
Benefits to the Trust will be another section of railway precinct tidied up, a better location achieved for our scrap 
metal fundraising operation thus helping ensure a continued revenue supply and benefits to the wider 
community are both an improvement to the towns northern entry along with support for/seeing our community 
group continue to achieve.

Reefton Historic Trust Board

Nigel O'Malley

Ronnie Buckm
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 

  

By purchasing the railway precinct 20+ years ago we have retained an area 
close to town with good commercial use options into the future. During this 
period we have cleared/tidied/fenced and continued to slowly improve the area 
which in turn improves opportunities within the town for commerical use. An 
example of this is the area which has been cleared, fenced and now planned 
to be used for a scrap metal depot which will help to improve the Trusts 
sustainability into the future.

Land within the railway precinct is currently leased for commercial use (again 
important for our sustainability), and a railway station currently being restored 
has potential for lease/rent/use commercially in the futrue - this could be a 
measure? Or the fact that we gain the funds, move the scrap metal operation 
and continues to be part of our income stream to do more of the Trusts good 
work.

This project assists the fundraising which leads to the sustainability of the Trust 
Board in doing what our organisation is set up to do. Retaining and supporting 
the retention of our cultural, built and environmental heritage within the town 
and area is one of the keys to our organisation. Along with working with other 
heritage and community groups as and when needed/asked to further their 
objectives and projects.

This project doesn't adversely affect the railway precinct land and buildings.
Community groups continue to exist and communicate/align/work together 
wtihin the Reefton community.

With regard cultural environment, we've included this above. And for the 
enviornment the project itself isn't detriment to the environment as is or will be 
in the future. In fact it improves the environment by improving the 
drainage/assisting water pooling that currently exists

The land within the fenced area or the land to the north and south isn't 
adversely affected by the improved drainage
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Your budget  
Please identify all the expenses related to this funding application. These can include materials, venue hire, 
promotion, equipment hire, fees, running costs, and wages. 

 
Your expenses  Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total cost: $ 

 
Please identify all contributions to this project. These can include own funds, income from fundraising events, other 
grants, ticket sales, sale of artwork, sponsorship, or donations.  

 
Your contributions Detail Amount ($) 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Total contribution  $ 

Cost less contribution  $ 

Amount you are requesting from this Community Grant  $ 

 
If you are holding funds in your accounts, please outline why these cannot be used for this project or use. 

 

  

Supply Point Drain pipe $ 1,380.00
MS Moore contracting Excavator hire $ 690.00

2,070.00

Own funds Deer gate to the scrap metal area 480.00
RHTB members Volunteer time for drain laying/excavator driver

2 people, 2 days, 36 hours @ $30 1,080.00

2,070.00

Any funds held are already tagged for other projects - and as we were operating in a deficit 
situation for quite some time during this financial year we held no surplus funds, nor still do. 
Fortunately this is beginning to change and become once again, able to meet our operating 
expenses each month.
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Information for applicants: 

• All accountability statements for previous funding must be submitted before any new applications are
considered.

• If you are unsure if an accountability statement has been submitted, please contact the Buller District
Council Community Services Officer on (03) 788 9683.

• Complete one application form per project.
• Applications are evaluated by the Community Grants Committee.
• Council's Community Services Officer is available if you require assistance, phone (03) 788 9683.
• Ensure you attach all the required supporting documents.
• The Community Outcomes can be downloaded from Council’s website https://bullerdc.govt.nz/district-

council/publications/long-term-plan/community-outcomes/
• Failure to include all relevant information may delay the processing of your application.
• If you are unsure of the closing date, please contact Customer Services for confirmation as late

applications will not be accepted.
• Please keep a copy of the application to complete the accountability statement.
• This document will be available to the public as part of the meeting agenda. Please refer to

www.bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy or contact Council for a copy of Council’s Privacy Statement.

Checklist for your application: 

Filled out and signed application form. Please ensure that you have completed ALL sections of the 
application. If information is not provided, it may  delay your application. 

Two letters of community support for your organisation, signed, dated and less than six months old, from 
people not involved or connected in any way with the running of your organisation. 

A copy of your organisation’s latest annual accounts. If you do not have annual accounts, please attach 
a statement of income and expenditure for the past 12 months. If neither of these documents are 
available please explain why below, and attach a copy of your organisations latest bank account 
statement/s. 

Declaration: 

I/We hereby declare the information supplied in this application is correct. If the application is successful, I/we 
agree to provide an accountability report to Buller District Council stating that the money received has been 
spent on the project or service as requested. I/we agree to participate in any funding audit of our organisation 
conducted by Buller District Council. 

I/we also consent to Buller District Council collecting, retaining and using the contact details of our organisation 
that have been listed in this application. I/we confirm we have the authority to provide these details and to 
commit the organisation to this application. Where funds are approved, I/we agree to include Buller District 
Council’s logo in all promotions carried out. 

Name Signature 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Send your completed application to: 
Buller District Council, PO Box 21, Westport 7866 

or email to grants@bdc.govt.nz 
The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with our privacy 

policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 2020. Council's privacy 
policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you have with the council, and how you 

can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this policy.

[Nigel O'Malley]

[Ronnie Buckman]

✔

✔

✔
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COMMUNITY GRANTS APPLICATION 

The Buller District Council Community Grants Fund is for community groups/organisations that are 
carrying out projects that align with Council’s Community Outcomes. 

Contact details: 

Name Position in organisation Daytime phone number 

Main contact: 

Secondary contact: 

Why was your organisation set up (what are your organisation’s main objectives)? 

 What are you seeking funding for? Please summarise and include how was the need identified, what are your key 
partners, who will benefit, how will it benefit the community or the participants.  

Please do not say ‘see attached’ – If you wish to attach a    project outline or plan then please do so, but summaries 
your project here. 

Name of your organisation: 

Legal status of organisation: Charitable Trust

Richard Fairbrass, chair
Joanne Howard, secretary/treasurer

To establish and operate a shed with equipment and resources so public can share 
knowledge and skills applicable to practical projects. To improve psychological well being of 
people through participation.

General expenses to keep membership affordable as most are beneficiares or retired.
To support needy individuals and community groups by being able to cover some of their project costs and shed 
overheads associated with work undertaken by the Menz Shed.
Reimbursement of BDC rental at $20 per member - to be put back into repairs and maintainence of building 
(BDC asset) and purchase of equipment.
To offset some of our costs, namely power, so our fundraising can be prioritised to equipment for new 
metalwork/engineering workshop and extended storage space to allow for more materials to be repurposed 
within community.

The shed needs are identified through surveying new and potential members on the activities and projects they 
wish to participate in.
Through projects we are asked to do from the public and organisations (including council). Referrals from health 
and social workers.
Affordability identified by members themselves and demographics, e.g. deprivation stats.
Projects for 2024/25 already identified are supporting Food Security Network -garden beds, KCT - predator 
traps, furniture restoration, toy  repairs, saw blade sharpening, community seats, shed improvements.

Westport Menz Shed
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 
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How will your project support this? 

How will you measure this? 

  

Providing a place for people to share knowledge and skills.
Having a facility with safe equipment to enable people to undertake practical 
projects.
Supporting community projects - food security network, conservation projects, 
garden beds. Revitilisation projects. 
Provides opportunities for self-sufficiency.
People can improve employment skills.

Community projects supported.
Individual members outcomes.
Increase in equipment and materials at shed, increasing product made.

Support for, and partnership with community groups.
Fostering a strong community spirit, is nuturing, caring, inclusive.
It supports lifelong learning.
Enabling creativity.

No of partnerships.
Membership diversity.
Member feedback.
Monitoiring of shed environment.

Recycling and repurposing of equipment and materials.
Repairing and maintaining equipment and facility.
Building community reilience through social interactions/support.
Repairing toys and other items for community.
Supporting conservation projects e.g. predator traps. Supporting Food security 
Network.

Evidence of use of recycled materials.
No.of  Saw blade sharpenings.
Repairs undertaken.
Collaborations, joint projects.
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Your budget  
Please identify all the expenses related to this funding application. These can include materials, venue hire, 
promotion, equipment hire, fees, running costs, and wages. 

Your expenses Detail Amount ($) 

Total cost: $

Please identify all contributions to this project. These can include own funds, income from fundraising events, other 
grants, ticket sales, sale of artwork, sponsorship, or donations.  

Your contributions Detail Amount ($) 

Total contribution  $ 

Cost less contribution  $ 

Amount you are requesting from this Community Grant  $ 

If you are holding funds in your accounts, please outline why these cannot be used for this project or use. 

BDC rent ` 20 x $20 $ 400.00
General expenses contribution towards shed maintainence and power $ 2,100.00

Supporting community projects materials and shed overheads/equipment maintenance costs $ 500.00

3,000.00

Refer to 2023 - 2024 Balance Sheet

We intend to cover remainder of yearly expenses

We also intend to fundraise to extend storage to the shed 

and to purchase a metal lathe and other eqipment.

Plus we intend to fundraise to paint the shed.

3,000.00

Our current bank balance is only $1500 - we usually like to keep a reserve of $2500 to 
cover expenses and purchase of project materials.
Since the end of our financial year ( being July) members seized the opportunity of a 
storage container and have expended funds on incorporating this into shed complex with 
covered access and shelving - increasing storage. (Effectively, they have used menz shed 
fundraising to improve a council/community asset.)
Members want to increase equipment in metalwork shop area to broaden what can be 
undertaken.
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Information for applicants: 

• All accountability statements for previous funding must be submitted before any new applications are
considered.

• If you are unsure if an accountability statement has been submitted, please contact the Buller District
Council Community Services Officer on (03) 788 9683.

• Complete one application form per project.
• Applications are evaluated by the Community Grants Committee.
• Council's Community Services Officer is available if you require assistance, phone (03) 788 9683.
• Ensure you attach all the required supporting documents.
• The Community Outcomes can be downloaded from Council’s website https://bullerdc.govt.nz/district-

council/publications/long-term-plan/community-outcomes/
• Failure to include all relevant information may delay the processing of your application.
• If you are unsure of the closing date, please contact Customer Services for confirmation as late

applications will not be accepted.
• Please keep a copy of the application to complete the accountability statement.
• This document will be available to the public as part of the meeting agenda. Please refer to

www.bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy or contact Council for a copy of Council’s Privacy Statement.

Checklist for your application: 

Filled out and signed application form. Please ensure that you have completed ALL sections of the 
application. If information is not provided, it may  delay your application. 

Two letters of community support for your organisation, signed, dated and less than six months old, from 
people not involved or connected in any way with the running of your organisation. 

A copy of your organisation’s latest annual accounts. If you do not have annual accounts, please attach 
a statement of income and expenditure for the past 12 months. If neither of these documents are 
available please explain why below, and attach a copy of your organisations latest bank account 
statement/s. 

Declaration: 

I/We hereby declare the information supplied in this application is correct. If the application is successful, I/we 
agree to provide an accountability report to Buller District Council stating that the money received has been 
spent on the project or service as requested. I/we agree to participate in any funding audit of our organisation 
conducted by Buller District Council. 

I/we also consent to Buller District Council collecting, retaining and using the contact details of our organisation 
that have been listed in this application. I/we confirm we have the authority to provide these details and to 
commit the organisation to this application. Where funds are approved, I/we agree to include Buller District 
Council’s logo in all promotions carried out. 

Name Signature 

Main contact  

Secondary contact: 

Send your completed application to: 
Buller District Council, PO Box 21, Westport 7866 

or email to grants@bdc.govt.nz 
The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with our privacy 

policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 2020. Council's privacy 
policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you have with the council, and how you 

can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this policy.

Richard Fairbrass Richard Fairbrass

Joanne Howard

✔

✔

✔

Joanne Howard

ATTACHMENT 14

127



128



ATTACHMENT 15

129



ATTACHMENT 15

130



ATTACHMENT 15

131



132



ATTACHMENT 15

133



BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 7 
 

Prepared by  Nicola Woodward  
 Manger Community Engagement 
 
Reviewed by  Krissy Trigg 
 Group Manager Community Services 
 
Attachments  1. Clean Streams Karamea Completion Report 

  2. Carters Beach Reserve and Hall Subcommittee Completion Report 
  3. Inangahua Silver Band Completion Report 
  4. Karamea Reserve Subcommittee Completion Report 
  5. Northern Buller Community Society Inc Completion Report 

 
Public Excluded: No 
 
 
COMMUNITY LED REVITILISATION FUND: ACCOUNTABILITY REPORTS 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 
 Copies of the following Community-Led Revitalisation Fund accountability reports 

received are attached.  
  

• Clean Streams Karamea Completion Report 
• Carters Beach Reserve and Hall Subcommittee Completion Report 
• Inangahua Silver Band Completion Report 
• Karamea Reserve Subcommittee Completion Report 
• Northern Buller Community Society Inc Completion Report 

 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council receives the Community-Led Revitalisation Fund 
Accountability Reports for information. 
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COMMUNITY LED REVITALISATION FUND PROJECT COMPLETION REPORT 

Congratulations for completing your revitalisation project in the Buller District. 
 Please fill out the completion report which needs to be submitted two-months after the project is 

finished. 

Name of your community group: Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated 

Name of the project: Floating Basin Estuary Restoration 

Funding round: Nov 2022 (month /year) 

Amount received:   $9500 

When was the project started?  Nov 2022    When was the project finished?       June 2024   

What were the outcomes of your project and how did it benefit the community? 

The project achieved a lot more than it set out too! 

In collaboration with the Kōtahitanga mō te Taiao Alliance’s Restoring and Protecting Flora project, 7800 native 
plants have been planted over 2.56ha of land surrounding the Floating Basin estuary. This was in part facilitated 
by the BDC Harbour Office deciding to retire grazing leases that were out of date and not fulfilling their lease 
conditions, meaning that paddocks that were full of gorse and other weeds then required weed control and 
replanting. 

Three community planting days were held involving over 100 participants, with Kawatiri Nature Environment and 
Communities Trust (KNECT) stepping into leadership of the community engagement. A planting was planned with 
St Canice’s School that was cancelled due to ongoing wet spring weather, but the teachers and principal are 
interested in future opportunities. A youth-led festival was held at the Yacht Club and involved planting in the 
nearby paddock, and Development West Coast also decided to hold their recent ‘Rangatahi Day Out’ at the 
Floating Basin, recognising its huge potential as an outdoor education location, especially for Buller High School, 
as it is within walking distance.  

Comments from attendees to the planting days, and passers-by observing the change, all indicated enthusiasm 
for the project and gratitude for the community volunteers who help turn ‘wastelands’ of gorse into beautiful 
native restoration projects. The Harbour Office staff were also very enthusiastic about the change when they 
visited the area at the start of 2024. 
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How will future management and maintenance of the project happen? 
 
KNECT has now taken on the leadership of the project. They are planning a series of strategy sessions in 
August 2024, and following that will work with BDC to get a memorandum of understanding to allow the 
community to continue to restore the area. 
 
Students at the Rangatahi Day Out event remarked that it was ‘cool’ that this work was happening, they 
enjoyed planting and were keen for more involvement, and they would like to have a picnic area 
established among the planting as a hang out space. 
 
The KMTT Flora project has completed a final round of weed control at the start of June 2024, which will 
tide the plantings over into spring. Many of the plantings are now well established and will survive 
without maintenance. Newer plantings will be maintained through a combination of KNECT community 
days, DOC conservation volunteers efforts, and the KMTT Flora project has a small amount of funding 
left from a Lotteries grant that will allow for some professional follow-up in late spring. 

 

Is there anything else you wish to tell us about your project? 
 
The BDC grant helped to kickstart the regeneration of this area. By leveraging that funding, we were 
able to draw in a lot of investment from outside the district, achieving more than three times our 
planting targets, and providing multiple opportunities for our young people and awesome volunteers to 
be involved and form a connection with the area. 
 
I hope that in future BDC continues to see benefit in providing seed funding for the community to 
revitalize natural areas, as once the community begins to connect with their backyard they foster a 
level of appreciation and kaitiakitanga that can completely transform neglected spaces into restored 
ecological gems. 

 
How was the grant spent? This information will be supplied and added after receiving the completion 
report by Council’s Communications and Community Services Officer. 
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If you have any feedback that would help to improve the fund please insert here. Thank you. 
 
I appreciated the leniency in reporting when there was nothing to note, and also the flexibility to use the grant in 
different ways as the project progressed, which allowed us to achieve a better outcome. 

 
Signature 

 
Name Position Signature Date 

Main contact: Sacha Healey Project lead   

Second contact:Sina Tuiavi’i CSK Manager   

 
 

The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in 
accordance with our privacy policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) 

and with the Privacy Act 2020. Council's privacy policy explains how we may use and share your personal information 
in relation to any interaction you have with the council, and how you can access and correct that information. We 

recommend you familiarise yourself with this policy. 
 

Please send your completed report to: 
Community Services Officer Buller District Council 

PO Box 21 
Westport 7866 

 or email grants@bdc.govt.nz  

Please including photos, videos, and any media coverage of the project in this report.  
These can be sent as separate files or shared through dropbox, drive or WeTransfer 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 8 
 

Prepared by  Nicola Woodward 
 Manager Community Engagement 
 
Reviewed by  Krissy Trigg 
 Group Manager Community Services 
 
Attachments 1. Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated 
 2. Inanagahua A&P Show 
 3. Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust 
 4. Karamea War Memorial Library 
 5. Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust 
 6. Reefton Historic Trust Board 
 7. Torea Gallery and Studios Inc 
 8. Westport MENZ Shed 
 9. Westport Playcentre 
 10. NZ Council of Victim Support Groups 
 11. Potikohua Trust 
 
Public Excluded: No 
 
 
COMMUNITY GRANTS: ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 

Copies of the following accountability reports received are attached to this report 
for information: 
 

• Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated 
• Inanagahua A&P Show 
• Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust 
• Karamea War Memorial Library 
• Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust 
• Reefton Historic Trust Board 
• Torea Gallery and Studios Inc 
• Westport MENZ Shed 
• Westport Playcentre 
• NZ Council of Victim Support Groups 
• Potikohua Trust 
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2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council receive the Community Grants Accountability Reports for 
information. 
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COMMUNITY GRANTS ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT 

 
Name of organisation: Reefton Historic Trust Board 

We, being officers/accountant of the above organisation hereby certify that we received a grant 
from Buller District Council Community Grants at the time and of the amount stated below. 

Funding round:  Sept 2020 (month /year)  

Amount received: 3 2 5 0 . 0 0  

 
Name Position Signature Date 

Main contact: Ronnie Buckman [Ronnie Buckman] 30 Aug 2024 

Second contact: Nigel O’Malley [Nigel O’Malley] 30 Aug 2024 

• Any funding granted must be spent as per the details of your application and you may be required 
to verify this. Failure to adhere to this requirement will result in the funding needing to be returned 
to Buller District Council and may disqualify any future applications for funding from this 
organisation, Council wide. 

• Your organisation has 6 months to spend the grant received, and your accountability has to be filed 
before you can apply for another grant. You can only apply for one grant per financial year, this 
being from 01 July to 30 June. 

• Any unspent funds need to be returned along with your Accountability Statement. 

• No further grants will be allocated to organisations that have not completed the accountability 
requirements. 

 
How was this grant spent? Please attach evidence of expenditure (receipts, invoices or signed 
statements by the organisation’s accountant). 

 

Greg Topp Electrical – purchase of heat pump  $  

Grant received 9 October 2020, spent 7 December 2020   $  

As per attached MYOB printouts  showing  $3250.00 coming on/going out   $  

 Sorry, form not allowing me to put the $$ into the $$ column?   $  

    $  

    $  

    $  

Total: 

Amount unspent: $0.00  

 $  
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How did this grant benefit your organisation? 
 If I recall correctly(!) 

This grant allowed our organization to move from an AirBNB operation for our Reefton precinct 
railway house following the initial covid lockdowns to a rental situation. 
To do this we needed to change from stand alone heaters within the house to a permanent fixture to 
ensure we were able to rent it vs the short term/nightly accommodation. 
Installation of the heat pump ensure we could move into the tenancy situation, find a tenant, and 
resume a much needed revenue stream from the house 

 
 

 
How did this grant benefit the community? 

  
 Our community benefitted in the sense that our organization continued to exist as by placing a  
 Tenant in the house meant we were able to pay our monthly mortgage – without this as an 

option we would not have lasted much longer with no income from house and our mortgage would 
have been in default. 

 
 
 
 

How many people did benefit from this grant? 
 
 Directly, whatever the committee and membership was at the time – say 20 people? 
 And on a wider sphere the Reefton community continued to have an organization who 

Managed three historic places/areas within the town and were a voice for the retention of the 
town’s heritage, both built and cultural. 

 
 
 
 

 
Compare the impact of the grant to the expected impact stated in your application? 
If your project does not support a Community Outcome insert NA. 

 
 Helping the RHTB move the railway house from an AirBnB to a tenanted situation played a large part in  
 retaining the organization of the RHTB during the covid times. By doing so it helped secure the railway 
 precinct the Trust Board owns, the Oddfellows Hall and the Reefton Courthouse leased from council –  
 three important heritage buildings/areas within the town, that we still now retain for the Reefton 
 community and generations to come. 
 
 
 
 
 Again by assisting the Trust Board to be sustainable at this time, it allows and assists a community group to 
 continue to operate and retain/maintain heritage aspects of our community  which will become 
 further self sustaining into the future. 
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Prosperity 

Again, the Council providing support in this instance helps the railway house and the Trust Boards other assets 

Into the future be part of the communities infrastructure in taking the town forward, at the same time preserving 
and valuing our heritage. 

Culture 

Supporting and effectively partnering this community group helps a group set up 50 years ago specifically to 

retain our heritage, culture, be an advocate for it, and to encourage and promote others to do the same 

Environment 

The buildings and railway precinct area owned/leased by the Trust Board are a part of the environment of the town of 
Reefton and surrounding area. It and the other organisations with a focus and/or interest in our heritage and who 
maintain the various buildings dating back to the late 1800s all contribute to the particular built and natural 
environment of the town and our community. 

The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with 
our privacy policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 
2020. Council's privacy policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you 
have with the council, and how you can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this 
policy. 

Please send your completed accountability statement to: 
Community Services Officer Buller District Council 

PO Box 21 
Westport 7866 

or email grants@bdc.govt.nz 
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COMMUNITY GRANTS FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT 

Name of organisation: 

We, being officers/accountant of the above organisation hereby certify that we received a grant 
from Buller District Council Community Grants Fund at the time and of the amount stated below. 

Funding round:  (month /year) 

Amount received: 

Name Position Date 

Main contact: 

Second contact: 

• Any funding granted must be spent as per the details of your application and you may be required
to verify this. Failure to adhere to this requirement will result in the funding needing to be
returned to Buller District Council and may disqualify any future applications for funding from
this organisation, Council wide.

• Your organisation has 12 months to spend the grant received, and your accountability has to be
filed before you can apply for another grant. You can only apply for one grant per financial year,
this being from 01 July to 30 June.

• Any unspent funds need to be returned along with your Accountability Statement.

• No further grants will be allocated to organisations that have not completed  the accountability
requirements.

How was this grant spent? Please attach evidence of expenditure (receipts, invoices or  signed 
statements by the organisation’s accountant). 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

Total: 

Amount unspent: $ 

 $ 

Torea Gallery and Studios Inc 

Nov-23

$ 946.47

secretary 16-Jun-24
co-chairperson 16-Jun-24

lighting replacement in exhibtion room and ex-foyer showroom

0.00
946.47
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How did this grant benefit your organisation? 
 

How did this grant benefit the community? 
 

How many people did benefit from this grant? 
 

Compare the impact of the grant to the expected impact stated in your application? 
If your project does not support a Community Outcome insert NA. 
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Both rooms are now really well lit and products are well displayed due to the lighting. 

All members of the gallery have benefitted from this grant as their products can now be seen 
and this has really enhanced the display and also the overall air of professionalism of the 
Gallery. The exhibition room which is open to all communtiy members who wish to display their 
art/craft has become a very attractive and popular space. Our exhibition room is in fact booked 
up now for almost a year!

3000

as noted above our exhibition room is booked up for almost 12 months, indicating the 
popularity of this space.
customers and members have commented positively on the new lighting.

Exhibition rates, commissions and membership fees are affordable - commissions have not 
changed. There has been a small increase in annual membership fees to help ensure that 
the Gallery is a viable ongoing concern. It is also still free to hold an exhibition in our 
exhibition room.
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Please send your completed accountability statement to: 
Community Services Officer Buller District Council 

PO Box 21 
Westport 7866 

 or email grants@bdc.govt.nz  

The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with 
our privacy policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 
2020. Council's privacy policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you 
have with the council, and how you can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this 
policy.

Our membership currently is increasing. We have had 3 new members this year with 
another 2 applying to join at our June meeting. 

Photos of our exhibitions and other crafts are regularly posted on facebook. Often our 
community/members' exhibitions have titles in te reo Maori. We have also had several 
articles in the westport news

as above 
The committee recommended that a recent new members cards continue to reflect local 
scenes and the environment - these were the ones accepted for sale at the Gallery

ATTACHMENT 7

173



COMMUNITY GRANTS FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT 

Name of organisation: 

We, being officers/accountant of the above organisation hereby certify that we received a grant 
from Buller District Council Community Grants Fund at the time and of the amount stated below. 

Funding round:  (month /year) 

Amount received: 

Name Position Signature Date 

Main contact: 

Second contact: 

• Any funding granted must be spent as per the details of your application and you may be required
to verify this. Failure to adhere to this requirement will result in the funding needing to be
returned to Buller District Council and may disqualify any future applications for funding from
this organisation, Council wide.

• Your organisation has 12 months to spend the grant received, and your accountability has to be
filed before you can apply for another grant. You can only apply for one grant per financial year,
this being from 01 July to 30 June.

• Any unspent funds need to be returned along with your Accountability Statement.

• No further grants will be allocated to organisations that have not completed  the accountability
requirements.

How was this grant spent? Please attach evidence of expenditure (receipts, invoices or  signed 
statements by the organisation’s accountant). 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

Total: 

Amount unspent: $ 

 $ 

Westport Menz Shed

Sep-24

$ 2,500.00

Richard Fairbrass

Joanne Howard

BDC rental

power (7 months Jan - Jul 24)

maintainence and project expenses  (Jan-Jun24)

Attached 23/24 reviewed annual accounts

0.00

320.00

1,175.44

1,765.12

3,260.56
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How did this grant benefit your organisation? 
 

How did this grant benefit the community? 
 

How many people did benefit from this grant? 
 

Compare the impact of the grant to the expected impact stated in your application? 
If your project does not support a Community Outcome insert NA. 
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Kept membership affordable, reduced barriers to participation.
Reimbursement of rental meant money was put back into purchase of equipment and building 
upgrades and additions.
Offsetting costs meant fundraising could be targeted on the building and equipment.
Increased goodwill of members - more willing to undetake community projects.
Fundraising was able to be spent on equiping the new metal work shed and putting finishing 
touches to shed. 

Supported needy individuals and community groups by being able to cover some of the project 
costs and the shed overheads associated (power and machinery maintenance).
Supported community well-being through supporting people (restoration and repairs of 
furniture/small jobs/garden beds). 
Supporting community groups - Kawatiri Coastal Trail, picnic tables; Westport Kindergartenn, 
bench top.

Approx 20 members.
Approx 1000 in community.

Provided a safe facility for people to participate in practical project and equipped with appropriate equipment
By collaborating and assisting individuals and community groups to support wider community needs.
Inclusive membership - men, women, disabled. No socio-economic barriers to participation.
Strong community spirit - a happening, innovative place.
Huge number of projects undertaken/supported - including finishing touches to new shed build.
Stories from members and public of the support shed has provided, especially meeting social and mental 
needs.
Referrals from social agencies.

Membership and attendance fees were kept low and some waived to reduce barriers to 
participation. 
Assistance given to community and individuals keeping their costs down.
Recycling and re-purposing of materials and equipment reduced costs.
Utilisng the knowledge, skills and experience within membership increased affordability.
Collaboration with other groups/organisations increased affordability for all.
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Please send your completed accountability statement to: 
Community Services Officer Buller District Council 

PO Box 21 
Westport 7866 

 or email grants@bdc.govt.nz  

The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with 
our privacy policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 
2020. Council's privacy policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you 
have with the council, and how you can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this 
policy.

Provided a space for people to share knowledge and skills.
Provided a facility with safe equipment to enable people to undertake practical projects.
Supported community projects - food security network, revitalization projects, amenities, 
cycle trails.
Provided opportunities for self-sufficiency.
People improved employment skills.
Upgrading and equiping a community facility. 

Lots of partnerships with other community groups.
Fostered a strong community spirit. Was nurturing, caring, inclusive.
Supported lifetime learning.
Enabled creativity.
Shed has been a buzz of activity, with lively conversation.
The members willingly gave their time to supporting other members, shed and community.

Astounding job of recycling and re-purposing of equipment and materials - especially with 
new build. Also with furniture restoration. 
Repaired and maintained the equipment and facility.
Assisted in building community resilience through social interactions and support given.
Repaired items for community.
Saw blade sharpening service provided.
Predator traps and garden beds constructed.
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COMMUNITY GRANTS FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT 

Name of organisation: 

We, being officers/accountant of the above organisation hereby certify that we received a grant 
from Buller District Council Community Grants Fund at the time and of the amount stated below. 

Funding round:  (month /year) 

Amount received: 

Name Position Date 

Main contact: 

Second contact: 

• Any funding granted must be spent as per the details of your application and you may be required
to verify this. Failure to adhere to this requirement will result in the funding needing to be
returned to Buller District Council and may disqualify any future applications for funding from
this organisation, Council wide.

• Your organisation has 12 months to spend the grant received, and your accountability has to be
filed before you can apply for another grant. You can only apply for one grant per financial year,
this being from 01 July to 30 June.

• Any unspent funds need to be returned along with your Accountability Statement.

• No further grants will be allocated to organisations that have not completed  the accountability
requirements.

How was this grant spent? Please attach evidence of expenditure (receipts, invoices or  signed 
statements by the organisation’s accountant). 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

Total: 

Amount unspent: $ 

 $ 
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NZ Council of Victim Support Groups

Jan-24

$ 2,000.00

Denise Graham 3-Sep-24

Kathy Luke 3-Sep-24

Travel

Mileage Staff

Mileage Volunteer

Misc Staff Expenses

Office Costs

Salaries - West Coast Team Leader

Wellbeing

0.00

122.38

12.43

81.88

112.20

3.81

1,616.12

51.18

2,000.00
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How did this grant benefit your organisation? 
 

How did this grant benefit the community? 
 

How many people did benefit from this grant? 
 

Compare the impact of the grant to the expected impact stated in your application? 
If your project does not support a Community Outcome insert NA. 
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ATTACHMENT 10

 
In the past 12 months we were able to respond to the needs of over 300 people in the West Coast 
region, and we can be confident that they were all well supported during their time of need. Some of 
these incidents included aggravated robbery, family harm, fatal motor vehicle crashes, fire, fraud, home 
invasion, homicide, rape and sexual attacks, sudden deaths, workplace accidents, and suicides. Being 
a victim of a crime or traumatic event has a much wider negative social impact on the community than 
just that of the victim. We estimate that for every victim we support up to ten other people are also 
affected: whānau, friends, work colleagues and employers.  
 

Our timely, personalised support and intervention helped victims to keep contributing to their 
community in their paid and voluntary work, kept whānau together and reduced the ongoing 
economic and social costs of mental health issues like post-traumatic stress disorder. 
The whole community benefited because of our local support networks who care and are 
generous in volunteering their time.

330

Key findings from our independent consumer evaluation survey 2023/2024 showed that 92% 
said Victim Support was helpful or very helpful.  93% experienced at least one of these 
positive outcomes: feeling listened to, supported, more informed, better able to make 
decisions, better able to cope and less stressed.  42% said they likely would have dropped 
out of the criminal justice process if it weren’t for Victim Support.

Our support was free and available 24/7 even if a crime was not reported to the Police.
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Please send your completed accountability statement to: 
Community Services Officer Buller District Council 

PO Box 21 
Westport 7866 

 or email grants@bdc.govt.nz  

The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with 
our privacy policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 
2020. Council's privacy policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you 
have with the council, and how you can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this 
policy.

ATTACHMENT 10

We have retained all our staff and have launched our volunteer recruitment campaign of 
which we now have 7 new volunteer applicants.

All staff and volunteers have now completed Te Tiriti Training.

We have started work on our sustainability policy.
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COMMUNITY GRANTS FUND ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENT 

Name of organisation: 

We, being officers/accountant of the above organisation hereby certify that we received a grant 
from Buller District Council Community Grants Fund at the time and of the amount stated below. 

Funding round:  (month /year) 

Amount received: 

Name Position Date 

Main contact: 

Second contact: 

• Any funding granted must be spent as per the details of your application and you may be required
to verify this. Failure to adhere to this requirement will result in the funding needing to be
returned to Buller District Council and may disqualify any future applications for funding from
this organisation, Council wide.

• Your organisation has 12 months to spend the grant received, and your accountability has to be
filed before you can apply for another grant. You can only apply for one grant per financial year,
this being from 01 July to 30 June.

• Any unspent funds need to be returned along with your Accountability Statement.

• No further grants will be allocated to organisations that have not completed  the accountability
requirements.

How was this grant spent? Please attach evidence of expenditure (receipts, invoices or  signed 
statements by the organisation’s accountant). 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

 $ 

Total: 

Amount unspent: $ 

 $ 

Potikohua Trust

Dec-23

$ 5,000.00

Sharlene Terry 8-Mar-24
Joanne Howard 29-Apr-24

Employsure - HR

Kainga Ora - house rental

MYOB - accounting package fees

0.00

4,347.83

556.52

151.00

5,055.35
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How did this grant benefit your organisation? 
 

How did this grant benefit the community? 
 

How many people did benefit from this grant? 
 

Compare the impact of the grant to the expected impact stated in your application? 
If your project does not support a Community Outcome insert NA. 
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The Trust has been working with another community provider to take over the community house and enhance 
the services to the community. The grant has enable us to cover expenses meaning that we can gift our assets 
to the new provider. These would have realised little income if we had to sell whereas they have tremendous 
benefit to the new provider and community. It has meant that we have been able to continue the community 
gardening programme whilst the new rental is being finalised. 
 
It has enabled us to finance our final account payments. 
Note that any funds remaining with the Trust will be gifted to the new entity running the Community House and 
to the Community garden thus even though Potikohua Trust will wind down, benefits remain in the community. 

Ensuring the programmes and services the house provided will continue under new provider. 
During 2023 house users were able to interact and be involved in a variety of classes and community 
projects while in the care and safety of staff members. 
They also had advice and advocacy when dealing with other agencies that they found intimidating or 
didn't understand.  
Community groups had free use of a safe space to visit and meet up. 
People picking up incontinence products had the privacy that was not available when going to the medical 
centre, they also had support and someone to talk to if they wished. Especially for those who were 
isolated due to these conditions. 
Community garden continues to support food security, meet social needs, education, waste management.

We have been able to make a difference is so many peoples lives.  Average monthly figures were

Counselling sessions - 170     Counsellors bookings - 48     Health and therapy sessions - 25     Other Agency Rentals - 9     
Other Community group bookings - 5    Visitors for Adult Education - 75     Visitors for weekly Lunch - 25     
General Visitors - 30     Other Support 1:1 - 65     Volunteers hours - 90     Incontinence Product Support - 40    
Women's clinic - 10

Providing a safe, non judgemental environment. 
Promoting a healthy living for quality lives. 
Community garden is available to all. Providing food security. Social interaction and support. 
Education.

 
 
  With funding we were able to continue offering free services to the community. Providing 
garden produce and seedlings to community.
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Please send your completed accountability statement to: 
Community Services Officer Buller District Council 

PO Box 21 
Westport 7866 

 or email grants@bdc.govt.nz  

The personal information that you provide in this form will be held and protected by Buller District Council in accordance with 
our privacy policy (available at bullerdc.govt.nz/privacy and at council libraries and service centres) and with the Privacy Act 
2020. Council's privacy policy explains how we may use and share your personal information in relation to any interaction you 
have with the council, and how you can access and correct that information. We recommend you familiarise yourself with this 
policy.

Running sustainable living programs. Supporting resilience of individuals and community. 
Collaboration with other agencies and services to best meet communities needs in the most 
effective and efficient way (thus decision to transition community house to a better resourced 
and staffed provider who will retain existing services and provide many more). 
Ongoing input of supportive volunteers.

Aligning with a new provider that maintains/enhances cultural values: multicultural, 
intergenerational.Holistic approach. Valuing community participation and personal growth. 
Building self esteem and social interactions. Awareness of the wider societal context of the 
needs of people.

 
Sharing knowledge of our envronment and self sustainable lifestyles through projects and 
workshop. Running a community garden showcasing sustainable practices and 
wastemanagement/recycling. Running composting classes. 

ATTACHMENT 11

185



BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024  
 

AGENDA ITEM: 9 
 

Prepared by  John Salmond 
 Senior Project Lead 
 
Reviewed by  Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
Public Excluded: No 
 
GENERAL RATES DIFFERENTIALS AND WATER RATING REVIEW  
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 

 This report’s purpose is to outline the outcome from the Deliberations process 
on 12 June 2024 for the Enhanced annual plan, specifically around the following 
areas: 
 
5. Review the proposed rating system for water and wastewater services to be 
 included in the Long Term Plan 2025-2034, and in doing so will consider the 
 following: 
  a) The principles of the Government’s Local Water done well   
  policy/legislation. 
  b) The proposal for water and wastewater rating included in the draft  
  2024/2025 enhanced annual plan and the submissions received. 
  c) Review the Rating Information Database (RID) objections received  
  until 30 June 2024 and any other objections that come to the attention  
  of the council. 
  d) The development of remission policies.  
   

Mayor J Cleine / Cr G Neylon  
10/10 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
6. Review of the general rate differential system to allow for consideration of 
 proposed changes to be considered as part of the Long Term Plan 
 2025 – 2034. 
 

Mayor J Cleine / Cr P Grafton  
9/1 

Cr R Sampson against 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
The report’s aim is to outline the challenges that completing these would be in 
the current fiscal year and seeking approval to delay the projects to a future 
year.  
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2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council… 
 
1. Resolves to revoke the decision made at the Enhanced Annual Plan 

2024-2025 Deliberations on the 12 June 2024 to review the general rate 
differential system to allow for consideration of the proposed changes 
to be considered as part of the Long Term Plan 

 

2. Resolves to revoke their decision Enhanced Annual Plan 2024-2025 
Deliberations on the 12 June 2024 to review the proposed rating 
system for water and wastewater services to be included in the Long-
Term Plan 2025-2034 

 

3. Approves staff to create a reserve fund for the allocation of $100,000 
which will be used for the General rates review and the water / 
wastewater rating policy review in future years which will be discussed 
during the Long-Term Plan 2025-2034 budgeting process.  

 
 
3. ISSUES & DISCUSSION 
 
 BACKGROUND 
 

On 12 June 2024, as part of the Enhanced Annual Plan deliberations, Council 
resolved to complete a review of the general rates differentials and to review 
the proposed rating system for water and wastewater services for inclusion in 
the Long-Term Plan (LTP) 2025-2034. However, upon further review of the 
project’s initiation, it is evident that significant challenges exist which may hinder 
the timely and effective completion of these projects. 
 
Several factors have necessitated a reconsideration of this decision: 
 

• Long-Term Plan Year: This year is a Long-Term Plan year, which 
requires substantial attention to strategic planning, public consultation, 
and administrative time. The complexity and scope of the LTP process 
are significant and must be prioritised. This is the strategic plan for the 
district. 
 

• LTP and Annual Report Audits: Both audits are a significant 
undertaking from the finance team and will require careful consideration. 
The Annual Report for 2022/23 is currently not completed at present, as 
well as the 2023/2024 report, with additional resources being required to 
address issues and improvements arising from the KPMG report.  

 
• Water Services Delivery Plan: The Water Services Delivery Plan, 

introduced as part of the new Coalition Government's water reform 
("Local Water Done Well"), also demands focused resources. The reform 
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requires considerable effort from both elected members and staff to 
ensure compliance and successful implementation. 

 
• Resourcing Constraints: The Finance team is currently facing 

resource limitations, which would impact the ability to manage both the 
rates review and other essential financial tasks simultaneously. 

 
Rationale: 
 
Given the challenges outlined above, revoking the decision to undertake the 
rates and water / wastewater rates review allows Council to focus its efforts on 
higher-priority projects, such as the Long-Term Plan and the Water Services 
Delivery Plan as well as the Annual Report and ongoing daily requirements. 
The re-allocation of the associated budget ensures that the funds can be used 
effectively for other pressing needs or future opportunities. 

 
  
4. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

4.1  Strategic Impact 
 The rates review and water / wastewater policy review is integral to the 
council and plays a huge role in the overall organisation. This will be 
further considered when we look at local water done well and how we 
deliver water in future years  

 
4.2  Significance Assessment 
 This proposal is not considered to be significant in terms of Council’s 

Significance and Engagement Policy.  
 
4.3  Risk Management Implications 
 This decision does not provide Council with a significant risk.  
 
4.4  Values 
 The proposal aligns closely with Buller District Values of being future 

focussed. Council have confirmed the need to follow out a full general 
rates review. 

 
4.5  Policy / Legal Considerations 
  There is no legal context, issue or implication relevant to this decision 
 
4.6  Tangata Whenua Considerations 

 The decision does not involve a significant decision in relation to 
ancestral land or a body of water or other elements of intrinsic value, 
therefore this decision does not specifically impact Tangata Whenua, 
their culture and traditions. 

 
4.7  Views of Those Affected 

This decision does not require consultation with the community or 
stakeholders however if the decision is not taken to revoke the agreed 
outcomes then it will require full consultation.  
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4.8  Costs 
 There is no cost associated with this decision apart from the 

recommendation of re-allocating the budget.  
 
4.9  Benefits 
 N/A 
 
4.10  Media / Publicity 
 It is expected there will be significant interest from the media and the 

public which will be managed by the Councils Communication and 
Engagement team. 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 10 
 

Prepared by  Bernard Murphy 
 Acting Group Manager Corporate Services 
 
Reviewed by  Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 

 
Attachments 1. Buller District Council Deed of Variation 2024 
  
Public Excluded: No 
 
 
LOAN EXTENSION - BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL TO BULLER HOLDINGS LIMITED 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  

This report summarises the proposal to extend the existing loan term by an 
additional two years through a deed of variation. The extension aims to provide the 
Buller Holdings Limited with extended repayment flexibility while ensuring Buller 
District Council’s interests are adequately protected.  

 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. That Council approve the extension of the term of the loan from Buller 
District Council to Buller Holdings Limited by two years, extending the 
maturity date to 31 October 2026.  
 

2. This extension will be formalised through a deed of variation, which 
will amend the existing loan agreement to reflect the new term.  
 

3. Any two Councillors are authorised to sign the deed of variation, 
thereby confirming this Council Resolution. 

 
3. ISSUES & DISCUSSION 
 
 BACKGROUND 

Buller District Council and Buller Holdings Limited entered into a loan arrangement 
as at 31 October 2007. This loan arrangement provided $2,363,860.00 loan 
funding from Buller District Council to Buller Holdings Limited. It enabled the 
purchase of 50% ownership of WestReef Services Limited off a company called 
Onyx Limited who at that stage owned a half share of WestReef Services Limited 
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in partnership with Council via Buller Holdings Limited. Since the arrangement in 
2007, this loan has been partially repaid, now amounting to $1,500,000.00 as at 
30 June 2024.  

Annual interest is calculated on the loan based on open market interest rates plus 
a margin, and the interest charged is received in cash by Buller District Council. It 
is proposed to roll over the current loan balance of $1,500,000.00 for a further two-
year term. This extension will be formalised through a deed of variation, amending 
the original loan agreement. 

Key Terms of the Proposed Extension: 

• New Maturity Date: 31 October 2026. 
• Revised Payment Schedule: Final Repayment on 31 October 2026 or such 

earlier date as the borrower may elect. 
• Interest Rate: No change to the existing terms, interest is calculated and 

payable at 30 June of each year, using the BKBM Bank Bill Reference Rates 
plus a margin of 1%. 

• Amendments to Loan Conditions: None. 

Rationale for Extension:  

• The extension will provide Buller Holdings Limited with additional time to 
manage its financial obligations more effectively, supporting its continued 
viability and stability. 

• Extending the term will enhance Buller Holdings Limited’s liquidity and 
ability to maintain timely payments without undue financial strain. 

• The extension is expected to result in slightly increased total interest paid 
to Council over the extended term, noting the interest received by Council 
was $100,000 as at 30 June 2024 which is around $15,000 more per annum 
than would be achieved on bank term deposit rates 

• No significant operational changes are anticipated. The loan servicing 
process will continue as per the revised terms. 

 

CONCLUSION  
The proposed extension of the loan term is beneficial for both Buller District Council 
and Buller Holdings Limited. It provides Buller Holdings Limited with needed 
financial flexibility while ensuring that Buller District Council’s investment is 
protected. Approval of this proposal will facilitate continued financial stability for 
Buller Holdings Limited and support their long-term success. 
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4. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

4.1  Strategic Impact 
 The loan between Buller District Council and Buller Holdings Limited has 
been budgeted for an aligns with the Long Term Plan and other strategic 
documents. 

 
4.2  Significance Assessment 
 Council has adopted a policy on Significance and Engagement under 

S76AA of the Local Government Act.  
 

The content of this paper is not a matter requiring consultation or special 
consideration under the Significance and Engagement Policy. The loan is 
existing and extended in line with the budgets included in the Long Term 
Plan and current year Annual Plan.  

 
4.3  Risk Management Implications 
 This decision does not provide Council with a significant risk. 
 
4.4  Values 
 Supporting the Council Controlled Organisation aligns to the Buller District 

Values, which are: Community Driven, One Team, Future Focussed, 
Integrity and We Care. 

  
4.5  Policy / Legal Considerations 
 The legal implications for Council are that a binding document is being 

entered into which agrees to extend the term of borrowings to Buller 
Holdings Limited. This means instead of having the use of this money to 
invest elsewhere, Council has committed to the funds being provided to 
Buller Holdings Limited and the funds are not as easily accessible as they 
would be if the funds were deposited on bank term deposit. The extension 
of the loan is within the relevant financial controls policies of Council. 

 
4.6  Tangata Whenua Considerations 

 The decision does not involve a significant decision in relation to ancestral 
land or a body of water or other elements of intrinsic value, therefore this 
decision does not specifically impact Tangata Whenua, their culture and 
traditions. 

 
4.7  Views of Those Affected 
  This decision does not require consultation with the community or 

stakeholders. 
 
4.8  Costs 
 There is no significant financial implication relevant to this decision. 
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4.9  Benefits 
 Benefits to the community is a successful Council Controlled Organisation 

which is a major employer in the District, providing essential services for the 
Community. 

 
4.10  Media / Publicity 
 This is a routine matter for Council and not of significance. 
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Deed of Variation of Loan 

BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(the Lender) 

And 

BULLER HOLDINGS LIMITED 

(the Borrower) 

ATTACHMENT 1
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DEED 

 

Between 

(1)                      BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL ( Lender), and 

(2)               BULLER HOLDINGS LIMITED (Borrower) 

Whereas 

A By term Loan Agreement between the Lender and the Borrower, a copy of which is 

attached to this deed marked “A” (Agreement), the Lender advanced $1,500,000 

(Loan) to the borrower upon terms and conditions set out in the Agreement. 

B The Borrower wishes to extend the Final Repayment Date under the Agreement. 

C The Lender has agreed to vary the Final Repayment Date under the Agreement upon 

the terms and conditions set out in this Deed.  

This Deed Witnesses  

1.  In consideration of the Lender agreeing to vary the terms of the Agreement at the 

request of the Borrower, the Lender and Borrower agree to vary the Agreement as 

follows: 

 

(a) The Term of the Agreement as defined in Schedule A of the Agreement is varied to 

Two (2) years; 

 

(b) The Final Repayment Date, as defined in Schedule A of the Agreement, is varied to 

31 October 2026 or such earlier date as the borrower may elect in accordance with 

clause 3.2 of Schedule B of the Agreement. 

 

(c) Clause 1.1(b) is varied by adding: 

For clarification, where interest is payable on a payment date, the relevant date for 

calculating interest will be that Payment Date (30 June). Where interest is payable on 

the Final Repayment Date, the relevant date for calculating interest will be the Final 

Repayment Date; 

(d) Notices to the Lender under clause 9.1(b) are to be addressed for the attention of 

the Chief Executive. 

(e) For the avoidance of doubt, the Payment Dates, as defined in Schedule A of the 

Agreement, shall be 30 June in each year of the Term (as varied by clause 1 of this 

Deed). 

2. In all other respects the provisions of the Agreement are confirmed and remain in 

full force and effect. 

3. The Borrower shall comply with the terms of the Agreement as varied by this Deed. 
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Dated                25 September   2024 

 

Signed as a Deed 

 

Signed by the Lender 

BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL    _______________________ 

       Mayor/Councillor 

By 

       ________________________ 

_________________________    Councillor 

Witness Signature 

 

__________________________ 

Witness full Name 

 

____________________________ 

Witness Occupation 

 

____________________________ 

Witness Address 

 

 

 

Signed by the Borrower 

BULLER HOLDINGS LIMITED   _______________________ 

       Director 

By 

       ________________________ 

_________________________    Director 

Witness Signature 

 

__________________________ 

Witness full Name 

 

____________________________ 

Witness Occupation 

 

____________________________ 

Witness Address 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 11 
 

Prepared by Bernard Murphy 
 Acting General Manager Corporate Services 
  
Reviewed by Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
Attachments  1.Westport Airport Authority Accounts (Unaudited) 2024 
 
Public Excluded  No 
 
 
WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY – FULL YEAR REPORT TO 30 JUNE 2024 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY 
 

In accordance with Section 67 of the Local Government Act 2002 Council 
Controlled Organisations must deliver their Annual Report to shareholders 
within three months of the end of the financial year. 
 
This report presents the (unaudited) Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 
2024 including the budget for the year. The report also presents a Statement of 
Service Performance summary. 

 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

1.  That Council approve the Westport Airport Authority Accounts for 
the year end 30 June 2024 subject to any minor alteration required 
for completion of the audit process. 

 
3. ISSUES & DISCUSSION 

 
This report is presented to Council to monitor the Westport Airport Authority 
financial results.  
 
Section 68 of the Local Government Act 2002 requires that this Annual Report 
contains the information that is necessary to enable an informed assessment 
of the operations of the organisation including a comparison of the performance 
of the Westport Airport activity against the Statement of Intent and include 
explanations of any significant variances. The attached report meets that 
requirement. 
Section 69 of the Local Government Act 2002 requires that this Annual Report 
include an Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements. The attached report 

197



 

has not yet been audited. The Annual Report is provided for information and 
the draft resolution is made so that the Annual Report can be circulated for 
approval by Council which holds 50% of the share in the Airport Authority, with 
the other 50% share held by Ministry of Transport.  A copy of this report has 
been provided to the Ministry of Transport.   

 
3.1 Revenue  

 Operating Revenue for the Westport Airport Authority was $6,816 lower than 
budgeted. This was mainly due to less terminal and other revenue received 
than budgeted. Actual Terminal and Other Revenue was $112,449 against the 
budget of $117,779. 
 

3.2 Expenditure:  
 Operating Expenditure was $20,709 higher than budgeted. Administration 
Costs ($29,977), Audit Fees ($1,612), Rates and Insurance ($2,451), Power 
and Telephone ($726) and General Expenses ($6,669) were greater than 
budgeted, offset by Repairs and Maintenance ($14,461) and non-cash 
Depreciation Expense ($4,207). 
 

3.3 Capital Expenditure:  
The Capital Budget allowed for $116,066 of capital expenditure as set out 
below. This budget was for aerodrome beacon lighting, land improvements and 
for sundry small assets. The actual capital expenditure was for $61,125 and 
included land improvements including bunding to make crucial airport 
infrastructure safe from surface water ingress as well as the planned beacon 
lighting. Other Assets included VHF radio purchases, essential communication 
equipment for the safe operations of the airport. 

 
Capital Expenditure: 2024 Actual 2024 

Budget 
Land/Bunding 
Improvements 

26,893 26,255 

Aerodrome Beacon 27,008 39,305 
Other Assets 7,224 50,506 
Total $61,125 $116,066 

 
3.4 Unaudited Financial Statements 

The attached financial statements are subject to final tax calculations and 
taxation disclosures set out in Note 2. This update is not expected to be 
material, and as a loss making venture the entity will have nil tax due when the 
2024 year tax return is filed.  
 
The attached financial statements will be subject to a final review of the 
contributions by the Airport Authority partners, and this most likely will lead to a 
revision to final current account and equity as at balance date. 
 
Any changes are also not expected to be material, and not have any impact 
upon the reported Statement of Financial Performance, Performance Measures 
and Cashflow or other aspects of these Financials.  

 

198



 

4. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. Strategic Impact 

The provision of centralised airport services is important for the community 
providing travel for economic and social reasons. 

 
4.2. Significance Assessment 

The significance and engagement policy set out the criteria and framework for 
a matter or transaction to be deemed significant. The content included in this 
report is not considered significant by nature due to the value of transactions. 
However, the provision of an Airport service is significant for the District.  

 
4.3. Risk Analysis 

Risk is assessed by considering the likelihood of an event occurring and the 
result of that event. This report provides oversight of the financial operations of 
the Westport Airport Authority but does not elaborate on other risks which may 
be present with this operation. Risk is mitigated by engaging suitably qualified 
staff to oversee the airport operations. Financial risk is mitigated when the 
results of operations are reported on and understood by staff and governance.  
 

4.4. Policy / Legal Considerations 
Section 66 (1) of the Local Government Act 2002 governs the activities of Buller 
District Council and sets out the requirement to present a half yearly report to 
shareholders.  
The legislation requires that within 2 months after the end of the first half of 
each financial year, the board of a council-controlled organisation must deliver 
to the shareholders a report on the organisation’s operations during that half 
year. 

 
4.5. Tangata Whenua Considerations 
 The decision does not involve a significant decision in relation to ancestral land 

or a body of water or other elements of intrinsic value, therefore this decision 
does not specifically impact Tangata Whenua, their culture and traditions. 

 
4.6. Views Of Those Affected 

The provision of a Westport Airport service is consulted on with the community 
during Long Term and Annual Plan processes. 

 
4.7. Costs 

There are no extraordinary costs incurred within the reporting period.  
 
4.8. Benefits 

The benefits of reviewing the half yearly report are the financial results are 
monitored at a Council wide level.  

 
4.9. Media / Publicity 
 There are no media or publicity opportunities with this report. 
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Page 1 
 

WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Entity Information 

For the year ended 30 June 2024 
 
 
Legal name 
 
Westport Airport Authority (the Authority). 
 
 
Type of entity and legal basis 
 
The Authority was established by a Joint Venture Agreement entered into by the Crown and the 
Buller District Council pursuant to section 5 of the Airport Authorities Act 1966. The Authority 
is controlled by Buller District Council and is a Council Controlled Organisation (CCO) as defined 
by section 6(1) of the Local Government Act 2002. 
 
 
The Authority’s purpose or mission 
 
The Authority’s primary business activity is the operation of an airport. An airport is considered 
a crucial aspect of regional infrastructure servicing the Buller district. 
 
 
The structure of the Authority’s operations, including governance arrangements  
 
The Authority comprises of a Chief Executive Officer who runs the day-to-day operations of the 
airport including compliance with Civil Aviation regulation. This is supported by staff who assist 
the day-to-day operations and maintenance of the airport. All staff are appointed by Buller 
District Council who also oversees the governance of the Authority through Council. 
 
 
Main sources of the Authority’s cash and resources 
  
Landing fees and lease income are the primary sources of funding for the Authority. 
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Page 2 
 

WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Statement of Accounting Policies 
For the year ended 30 June 2024 

 
 
BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
The financial statements presented here are for the Westport Airport Authority. The Airport 
Authority is a public benefit entity for financial reporting purposes under PBE IPSAS.   
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practice NZ GAAP, the Local Government Act 2002 and the Joint Venture Agreement.  The 
financial statements comply with PBE SFR-A (PS) Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting 
– Accrual (Public Sector) This standard has been applied on the basis that the Authority does not 
have public accountability (as defined) and has total annual expenses of less than $2 million. 
 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented 
in these financial statements.  
 
Reliance is placed on the fact that the Authority will continue to receive financial, operational 
and administrative support from the Buller District Council sufficient to maintain its services.  
The attention of readers is drawn to note 9. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost. All transactions in 
the financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and are stated at whole dollar 
amounts. The functional currency of the Westport Airport Authority is New Zealand Dollars. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the Authority will continue to 
operate in the foreseeable future.      
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of the asset.  
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation of fixed assets, other than land, has been provided on a straight-line basis at rates 
calculated to allocate the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.  The depreciation 
rates applied are: 
  
Buildings 2.5% -5.0% 

Runway    - Basecourse 1.30% 

               - Seal 2.0% - 7.7% 

Runway Lighting 10.0% - 20.0% 

Fuel Facility 8.0% 

Other Assets 1.0%-15.0% 

Seawall  0.0% 
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Page 3 
 

Goods and Services Tax 
The financial statements have been prepared exclusive of Goods and Services Tax except for 
accounts payable and receivable which are stated inclusive of GST. The Westport Airport 
Authority is not registered for GST on their own account, GST is accounted for as a division of 
Buller District Council. 

 
Income Tax 
Tax expense is calculated using the taxes payable method. As a result, no allowance is made 
for deferred tax. Tax expense includes the current tax liability and adjustments to prior tax 
liabilities. 
  
Cash and Bank Accounts  
Cash and bank accounts include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks.  
 
Trade and Other Receivables 
Trade and other receivables are initially measured at the amount owed. When it is likely that 
the amount owed (or some portion) will not be collected, a provision for impairment is 
recognized and the loss is recorded as a bad debt expense.  
  
Buller District Council Current Account 
Buller District Council advances funds to the Airport Authority on a current account basis to 
enable the Authority’s creditor obligations to be met as they fall due.  This current account 
advance is recognised as either a current asset or a current liability. The account is measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

 
Creditors and Other Payables 
Creditors and other payables are measured at the amount owed. 

 
Revenue and Expenditure  
Landing fees and Grazing income are billed by the Authority and are recognised when 
receivable.  Expenses are recognised when they are incurred. Leases are recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Significant Management Estimates and Assumptions 
There are no significant management assumptions or estimates for the period. 
 
Changes in Accounting Policies 
There have been no changes in accounting policies applied or adopted during the period. (2023 
Nil). 
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Page 4 
 

WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Statement of Financial Position 

As at 30 June 2024 
 
 

 Note 2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

    
Current Assets    
Accounts receivable and accruals 3 39,246 26,458 
Prepayments  4,344 3,919 
Total Current Assets  43,590 30,377 
    
Non-Current Assets    
Property, plant & equipment 5 5,678,787 5,710,596 
    
Total Assets  5,722,378 5,740,972 
    
Current Liabilities    
Accounts payable and accruals  71.211 71,767 
Buller District Council – current account 9 266.283 286,254 
Total Current Liabilities  337.494 358,021 
    
Net Assets  5,384.448 5,382,951 
    
Equity    
Equity:  Ministry of Transport 7 2,161,650 1,965,532 
Less:  Share of accumulated losses  (626.550) (429,489) 
  1,535,100 1,536,043 
    
Equity:  Buller District Council 7 4,515,117 4,315,181 
Less:  Share of accumulated losses  (665,334) (468,273) 
  3,849,783 3,846,908 
    
Equity:  Ministry of Transport & Buller District Council  6,676,767 6,280,713 
Less:  Total accumulated losses  (1,291,884) (897,762) 
    
Total Equity  5,384,883 5,382,951 

 
 
Authorised for issue on behalf of the Westport Airport Authority on XX September 2024 by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
Simon Pickford       Jamie Cleine 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE       CHAIRPERSON 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of and are to be read  
in conjunction with these statements. 
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Page 5 
 

WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Statement of Financial Performance 
For the year ended 30 June 2024 

 
 

2023  Note 2024 Unaudited
Budget 

$   $ $ 
     
 Revenue    

40,008 Landing fees & Other Dues  42,003 42,230 
101,515 Terminal Rental & Other Income  112,449 117,779 
42,000 Farming Lease  42,000 43,260 

- Flood Recovery Income  - - 
183,523 Total Revenue  196,453 203,269 

     
 Less:  Expenditure    

61,474 Airport Maintenance  29,740 41,201 
308,903 Administration  4 333,495 303,518 
19,692 Audit Fees   11 20,666 19,054 
86,849 Depreciation    5 92,993 97,200 
10,050 Rates and Insurance  13,422 10,971 
9,037 Legal Fees  - 2,060 

10,210 Power and Telephone  12,241 11,515 
33,947 General Expenses  43,401 36,732 

540,163 Total Expenditure  542,960 522.251 
     

(356,640) Operating Surplus (Deficit)  (346,507 (318,982) 
     
 Less:    

37,559 Interest Expense  9 47,615 - 
     

(394,198) Net Surplus/(Deficit) Before Tax  (394,122) (318,982) 
- Less Tax Expense  2 - - 
     

(394,198) Net Surplus (Deficit) after Tax  (394,122) (318,982) 
     
 Attributable to:    

(197,099) Profit / (Loss) Buller District Council  (197,061) (159,491) 
(197,099) Profit/ (Loss) Ministry of Transport  (197,061) (159,491) 

     
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of and are to be read 

in conjunction with these statements. 
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WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the year ended 30 June 2024 
 
 
 Note 2024 2023 
              $ $ 
    
Equity at Start of the Year  5,382,951 5,407,150 
    
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  (394,122) (394,198) 
    
Contributions from Buller District Council 9 199,936  273,669 
Contributions from the Crown 9 196,118 96,330 
    
Equity at End of the Year  5,384,883 5,382,951 
 

 
   

CONTRIBUTIONS BY THE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS 
 

Equity Account as at 30 June 2024 Ministry of 
Transport 

$ 

Buller District 
Council 

$ 

Total 
 

$ 
Land - 2,159,000 2,159,000 
Contributions for assets purchased to 30 June 2024 1,528,356 1,553,359  3,081,715 
Contributions for accumulated losses to 30 June 2024 633,295 802,758 1,436,052 
Total before share of accumulated losses or surplus 2,161,651 4,515,117 6,676,767 

 
 
 

Equity Account as at 30 June 2023 Ministry of 
Transport 

$ 

Buller District 
Council 

$ 

Total 
 

$ 
Land  2,159,000 2,159,000 
Contributions for assets purchased to 30 June 2023 1,485,912 1,522,767 3,008,679 
Contributions for accumulated losses to 30 June 2023 479,620 633,414 1,113,033 
Total before share of accumulated losses or surplus 1,965,532 4,315,181 6,280,713 

 

 

EQUITY APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT    
    
  2024 2023 
              $ $ 
              $ $ 
    
Opening Balance (Accumulated Losses)  (897,762) (503,563) 
    
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  (394,122) (394,198) 
    
Closing Balance (Accumulated Losses)  (1,291,884) (897,762) 
    
    

 
 
 
 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of and are to be read 
in conjunction with these statements. 

ATTACHMENT 1

207



Page 7 
 

WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 30 June 2024 
 
 

 Note 2024 2023 
                  $ $ 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities    
Cash was provided from:    
Landing Fees & Airport Dues  30,883 30,490 
Rental, Service Charges & Other Income  112,449 101,515 
Farming Lease  42,000 42,000 
Flood Recovery Income Received  - - 
  185,332 174,005 
Cash was applied to:    
Payments to Suppliers and Employees  (488,435) (420,539) 
Interest Paid  - - 
Net GST  (1,740) 516 
  (490,175) (420,023) 
    
Net Cash Flows from/(to) Operating Activities   (304,842) (246,018) 
    
Cash Flows from Investing Activities    
Cash was provided from:    
Sale of Assets  - - 
    
Cash was applied to:    
Purchase of fixed assets  (61,182) (105,643) 
    
Net Cash Flow from/(to) Investing Activities  (61,182) (105,643) 
    
Cash Flows from Financing Activities    
Cash was provided from:    
Contributions from Joint Venture Partners  396,054 370,000 
Buller District Council Current Account  - - 
  396,054 370,000 
Cash was provided to:    
Buller District Council Current Account  (30,031) (18,340) 
    
Net Cash Flows from/(to) Financing Activities  366,023 351,660 
    
Net Increase in Cash and cash equivalents  - - 
    
Add Cash and cash equivalents at Start of Year  - - 
    
Cash and cash equivalents End of Year 1 - - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of and are to be read  
in conjunction with these statements. 
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WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2024 

 
 

1. Cash 
 
 Buller District Council provides administrative services to the Authority. The Airport does 

not run a bank account and all Airport income and expenses are paid through the Buller 
District Council general bank account.  

 
 
2. Taxation 
  

 2024 
              $ 

2023 
$ 

Net Surplus (Deficit) before Tax (394,122) (394,198) 
Tax at 28% (110,354) (110,376) 
Temporary Differences not recognised (12,451) (6,729) 
Tax Losses not recognized 137,462 117,105 
Tax Expense - - 
   

 
 Unrecognised tax losses of $3,337,789(2023: $2,885,728) with a tax effect of $934.581 

(2023: $808,003) are available to carry forward. 
 
 
3. Accounts Receivable and Accruals 
 
 Accounts receivable and accruals are disclosed net of any provision for impairment.  

There was no impairment recognized in 2024 (2023: Nil). 
 
 
4 Support by Buller District Council 

 The operation of the Authority is undertaken by the Buller District Council, which is also 
responsible for the financing of those operations. 

 Buller District Council has included in its Annual Plan provision to support the Westport 
Airport Authority for the next twelve months to enable the Authority to maintain its 
current level of operation.  This support includes all financial, operational and 
administrative support services. Administrative support includes employment of 
operational staff and internal charges for administration of the Authority. 

 
 2024 

                          $ 
2023 

$ 
Employment related costs 228,860 226,632 
Buller District Council – internal charges 104,124 82,272 
Total Administration Expenses 332,984 308,903 
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment - 2024 
 Cost 

1 July 2023 
Accumulated 
Depreciation  

1 July 2023 

Additions Disposals & 
Transfers 

Depreciation  
30 June 2024 

Accumulated 
Depreciation  
30 June 2024 

Cost  
30 June 

2024 

Carrying 
Amount  
30 June 

2024 
Land & Improvements 4,619,353 - 26,893 - 166 166 4,646,246 4,646,079 
Runway 387,977 89,787 - - 15,505 113,421 387,977 274,555 
Runway Lighting 701,637 532,722 27,068 - 20,297 553,018 728,704 175,686 
Terminal Building 542,554 213,631 - - 13,564 227,194 542,554 315,359 
Toilet Block 13,995 9,214 - - 700 9,913 15,538 7,490 
Furniture & Fittings 26,375 14,028 - - 1,514 15,542 26,375 10,833 
Other Assets 405,290 169,127 7,224 - 40,407 199,491 409,082 207,701 
Fuel Facility 288,195 288,195 - - - 288,195 288,195 - 
Carpark 41,994 70 - - 840 910 41,994 41,084 
Capital WIP - - - - - - - - 
 7,027,370 1,316,774 61,185 - 92,993 1,407,851 7,086,664 5,678,787 

 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment - 2023 
 Cost 

1 July 2022 
Accumulated 
Depreciation  

1 July 2022 

Additions Disposals & 
Transfers 

Depreciation  
30 June 2023 

Accumulated 
Depreciation  
30 June 2022 

Cost  
30 June 

2023 

Carrying 
Amount  
30 June 

2023 
Land & Improvements 4,619,353 -    - - 4,619,353 4,619,353 
Runway 387,977 74,292    15,495 89,787 387,977 290,060 
Runway Lighting 701,637 513,778    18,944 532,722 701,637 168,915 
Terminal Building 542,554 200,067    13,564 213,631 542,554 328,923 
Toilet Block 13,995 8,514    700 9,214 13,995 4,782 
Furniture & Fittings 26,375 12,487    1,541 14,028 26,375 12,347 
Other Assets 362,397 132,592 42,893  36,535 169,127 405,290 236,163 
Fuel Facility 288,195 288,195    - 288,195 288,195 - 
Carpark - - 41,994  70 70 41,994 41,924 
Capital WIP - -    - - - - 
 6,942,483 1,229,923 84,888 0 86,849 1,316,774 7,027,370 5,710,596 
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6. Post Balance Date Events 

There were no post balance date events subsequent to June 2024.  

 
7. Equity   
  
 The Airport Authority capital is equity. Equity is represented by net assets. 
 
 The Statement of Intent requires the Airport Authority to manage its revenue, expenses, 

assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings prudently. The Authority’s 
equity is largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, 
liabilities, investments and general financial dealings. 

 
 The objective of managing the Airport Authority’s equity is to ensure it effectively 

achieves its objectives and purpose, while remaining a going concern. 
 
 
8. Shareholders Statement of Intent  
  
 The 2023-2024 Draft Statement of Intent was required to be delivered by the Authority 

to shareholders under Part 2 of Schedule 8 of the Local Government Act 2002 by 1 March 
2023. The Draft Statement of Intent was delivered to shareholders on 28 February 2023.  

 
 
9. Related Party Transactions 
  
 The Westport Airport Authority is a joint venture between the Crown and Buller District 

Council, with each holding a 50% interest.  During the period the following related party 
transactions occurred between the Airport Authority and Buller District: 

 
 Note 2024                  

$ 
2023 

$ 
Services Provided by Buller District Council 4 332,984 308,903 
Interest Charges  47,615 37,559 
Rates charges  957 957 
Current Account balance owed by/(owed to) Buller District 
Council 

 (266,283) (286,254) 

    
  
 WestReef Services Limited is a Council Controlled Organisation of Buller District Council.  

During the period the following related party transactions occurred between the Airport 
Authority and WestReef Services Limited: 

 
 
 

 2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Services Provided by WestReef Services Limited - 5,556 
Balance owed to WestReef Services Limited - - 
   

 
 
 There were equity contributions totaling $196,118 in 2024 by the joint venture partners. 

(2023: $370,000). 
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10. Commitments, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities 
 
 The Authority had no contingent assets as at 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil). The Authority had 

no contingent liabilities in 2024. (2023: Nil). 
 
 
11. Audit 
 
 Audit fees include $20,666 for Ernst & Young to complete the 2023 annual audit. (2023: 

$19,692). 
 2024 

                                   $ 
2023 

                   $ 
Ernst & Young 20,666 19,692 
   

 
 
12. 2023 Year: Delay in completion of the audited Annual Report 

 
The Westport Airport Authority, as a Council Controlled Organisation, was required to 
complete its 2022/23 Annual Report within three months after the end of the financial 
year (i.e. by 30 September 2023).  

 This timeframe was not met because the tax work was not completed by the external 
tax advisors until after this date. 
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WESTPORT AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Statement of Service Performance 
For the year ended 30 June 2024 

The Westport Airport Authority operates an Airport at Westport. It is involved in the provision, 
maintenance, upgrading and enhancement of services and facilities to accommodate the landing 
of aircraft and the efficient and safe facilitation of passengers and cargo through the Airport, 
having regard to the regulatory requirements of the Civil Aviation Authority of New Zealand. 

The principal objective of the Authority is to: 
• Operate as close as possible to a commercial business in a cost effective and efficient

manner;
• Maintain the airport’s assets; and
• Enter into any commercial undertakings at the airport that will complement the Airport

operation and that are considered desirable.

The Authority’s performance in comparison to its performance targets agreed in the 2023- 2024 
Westport Airport Authority Statement of Intent is outlined as follows: 

PERFORMANCE COMMENTARY 
Operating Revenue for the Westport Airport Authority was $6,816 lower than budgeted. This 
was mainly due to less terminal and other revenue received than budgeted.  Actual Terminal 
and Other Revenue was $112,449 against the budget of $117,779. 

Operating Expenditure was $20,709 higher than budgeted. Administration Costs ($29,977), Audit 
Fees ($1,612), Rates and Insurance ($2,451), Power and Telephone ($726) and General Expenses 
($6,669) were greater than budgeted, offset by Repairs and Maintenance ($14,461) and non-
cash Depreciation Expense ($4,207). 

The Capital Budget allowed for $116,076k of capital expenditure as set out below. This budget 
was for aerodrome beacon lighting, land improvements and for sundry small assets.  The actual 
capital expenditure was for $61,125 and included land improvements including bunding to make 
crucial airport infrastructure safe from surface water ingress as well as the planned beacon 
lighting.  Other Assets included VHF radio purchases, essential communication equipment for 
the safe operations of the airport. 

2024 2023 
Actual 

Performance 
Performance 
Targets (as 

per SOI) 

Actual 
Performance 

Performance 
Targets (as 

per SOI) 
Operating Revenue 196,453 203,269 183,523 158,538 
Operating Expenditure 542,960 522,251 540,163 574,699 
Net Profit (Loss) (346,507) (318,982) (356,640) (416,161) 

Capital Expenditure: 
Signs - - - - 
Website - - - - 
Furniture and Fittings - - - - 
Other Plant - - 28,529 30,000 
Land/Bunding Improvements 26,893 26,255 - - 
Aerodrome Beacon 27,008 39,305 - - 
Other Assets 7,224 50,506 14,365 15,300 
Fencing - - - - 
Carpark - - 41,994 80,000 
Capital Revenue: - - - - 
Grants and Subsidies - - - - 
Ratio Performance: 
Total Equity/total Assets 
(excluding liabilities) 95% 99% 91% 99% 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 12 
 

Prepared by  Mel Sutherland 
 Acting Manager Infrastructure Delivery 
 
Reviewed by  Michael Aitken 
 Interim Group Manager Infrastructure Services 
 
Attachments 1. Draft Memorandum of Understanding – Carnegie Building   
 2. Steering Group Terms of Reference - Carnegie 
 
Public Excluded: No 
 
 
STATUS REPORT – CARNEGIE LIBRARY 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 

A status report was presented to Council as part of the Ordinary meeting in May 
2024. The agreed resolutions made at that meeting are shown in the Background 
section below and were confirmed at the June 2024 Ordinary Council meeting. 
 
This agenda item is a further progress report which confirms the agreement by the 
Carnegie Cultural Centre Incorporated Society (CCC) to the terms of the 
Memorandum of Understanding and agreement to the roles and responsibilities 
detailed within it. These matters are deemed to be critical steps to progress the 
project. 

 
 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council… 
 
1. Receives this status report. 
 
2. Agrees to Memorandum of Understanding (Attachment 1) 
 
3. Agrees to the establishment of the Project Steering Group and the  
  Terms of Reference (Attachment 2). 
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3. ISSUES & DISCUSSION 
 
 BACKGROUND 
 

The confirmed resolutions from June 2024 are as follows: 

 
 

With respect to item 3b the Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was 
presented at the CCC’s 11 June meeting and considered at its 25 June meeting. 
 
Attachment 1 is an updated MoU with which shows the roles and responsibilities 
together with other minor changes highlighted and underlined. These have been 
discussed and agreed to by the CCC. Rather than a roles and responsibilities 
matrix, the roles and responsibilities have been embedded into the original draft of 
the MoU.  
 
The roles and responsibilities in the draft MOU are reproduced here: 
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12.  The individual and joint roles of the CCC and Council are as follows: 
 

(a) The Society will apply for grants and other external funding for the cost 
of the Project, including the cost of design and construction work. 
Council approval must be obtained before entry into any funding 
agreement relating to the Project. 

 
(b) The Council (in its capacity as building owner) will apply to the Council 

(in capacity as regulatory authority) for resource consents and building 
consents after obtaining approval by the Council (in its capacity as 
owner of Land) to concept plans and preferred seismic strengthening 
and refurbishment option. 

 
(c) The Council (in its capacity as building owner) will apply to the Council 

(in its capacity as administering body of reserve) for consent to 
easements over the Land (if any) needed to provide services to the 
Building. 

 
(d) Applying to the Council (in its capacity as administering body of the 

reserve) for consent if the Society or any other person or entity requests 
a lease of all or part of the Building. Council would require any lessee to 
enter into an agreement to lease on terms approved by the Council. 

 
(e) Both the Society and Council (as building owner) through the Project 

Steering Group will liaise with Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga 
and specialist advisors on heritage conservation issues relating to 
strengthening and refurbishment of the Building. 

 
(f) Both the Society and Council (as building owner) will apply through the 

Project Steering Group to the Council for consent to appointment of any 
person or entity to manage the Project. Council may require the project 
manager to enter into a formal agreement for provision of project 
management services on terms approved by Council. Undertake any 
consultation with the community through the Project Steering Group that 
is required, subject to prior approval by the Council. 

 
(g) The Project Steering Group will obtain Council approval (in its capacity 

as owner of the Land and the Building) before any decision is made to 
tender or award any contract for the design and/or construction of the 
seismic strengthening and refurbishment works. Council approval must 
be obtained to the terms and conditions of any such tender or contract 
documents. 

 
(h) Members of the Project Steering Group and their Terms of Reference 
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are included as Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 to this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 

 
Some of the roles were deemed to be a joint responsibility for which a Project 
Steering Group (PSG) has been suggested, see Attachment 2.  A Terms of 
Reference (ToR) has been prepared for the for the PSG and the suggested 
membership (is as shown). 
 
Proposed membership of the PSG is as follows: 
 

Name Role Project responsibility 

Councillor – Rosalie 
Sampson 

Chair To represent the 
interests of Council 

Peter Graham Society Member To represent the 
interest of the Society 

TBC Society Member To represent the 
interests of Society 

TBC Council Staff Member To represent the 
interests of Council as 
building owner 

TBC Council Staff Member To represent the 
interests of Council as 
building owner. 

 
With respect to the other items under resolution 3 it is expected that these will be 
advanced through the Project Steering Group 

  
4. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

4.1  Strategic Impact 
  Project aligns with LTP and Annual Plans. 
 
4.2  Significance Assessment 
 Has been addressed, this status report is to allow Council to further consider 

key requirements to progress the project. 
 
4.3  Risk Management Implications 
 Risk mitigated through the MoU (inclusive of confirming roles and 

responsibilities), the PSG and the TOR for the latter. Further mitigated 
through the development of a project plan by the PSG, and funding 
exposure is limited until such time as the CCC sources the remainder of the 
funds necessary to achieve the project outcome. 
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4.4  Values 
 Aligns with the Buller District Values, which are: Community Driven, One 

Team, Future Focussed, Integrity and We Care. 
  

4.5  Policy / Legal Considerations 
 A legal review of the original MoU was done. This agenda item is following 

through of the recommended steps from the legal review. 
 
4.6  Tangata Whenua Considerations 

 The decision does not involve a significant decision in relation to ancestral 
land or a body of water or other elements of intrinsic value, therefore this 
decision does not specifically impact Tangata Whenua, their culture, and 
traditions. 

 
4.7  Views of Those Affected 
 Consulted on through the LTP and Annual Plans.This decision does not 

require consultation with the community or stakeholders at this stage. It is 
noted that resource consents are likely to be required for the proposed use 
of the building. 

 
4.8  Costs 
 Within LTP/Annual Plan budget. 
 
4.9  Benefits 
 The benefits to council and community are: 

• Enables the building to be seismically refurbished, subject to funding. 
• Enables the building to be considered for future lease for a 

community use.  
• Recognises the continued support for the project by Heritage New 

Zealand Pouhere Taonga 
 
4.10  Media / Publicity 

 There is likely to be Media interest in this matter. A media release should 
be prepared which reflects Council’s decision. 

 

218



Memorandum of Understanding - Carnegie Building seismic 
strengthening project 

(not intended to be legally binding) 

Parties 

(1) BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL (Council); and

(2) CARNEGIE CULTURAL CENTRE INCORPORATED (Society).

Background 

A The Council is the owner of the former Westport Library building, also known as the 
Carnegie Building, (Building) situated at 5 Lyndhurst Street Westport on part of the 
land in Record of Title 628676 (Nelson Land Registration District) (Land). 

B The Land is Local Purpose (Community Facilities) Reserve subject to the Reserves 
Act 1977. The Council is the owner and administering body of the Land. 

C The Building is an earthquake-prone building. 

D The Society was incorporated on 14 June 2022. The purpose of the Society is to benefit 
the community by re-instating the Building for community use. 

E The parties have agreed to work together to progress the seismic strengthening and 
refurbishment of the Building so that it can be used as a community building (Project). 

F This MOU sets out how the Parties will work together on the Project during the term of 
this MOU. 

It is acknowledged 

Term 

1. The term of this MOU commences on the date it is signed by both parties
(Commencement Date) and expires on the date 12 calendar months after the
Commencement Date unless previously terminated in accordance with this
Agreement.

2. Either party may terminate this MOU at any time by giving one month’s notice in writing
to the other party.

Purpose 

3. The purpose of the Project is to carry out seismic strengthening and refurbishment of
the Building so that it can be used as a community building.

Relationship 

4. The parties will work together in a co-operative manner to progress the Project.
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5. The parties will meet at least once every two months to discuss the Project. 
 

6. The parties will communicate on matters that arise that may be of interest to either 
party and ensure each party is fully informed of progress and issues. 

 
7. Nothing in this MOU will be deemed to amount to a consent, approval or permission 

by the Council in its capacity as a consent authority under the Building Act 2004, the 
Resource Management Act 1991 or any other legislation, or a representation or 
warranty that any such consent, approval or permission will issue. 

 
8. Nothing in this MOU is intended to amount to a lease, or a licence to occupy, to the 

Society of all or any part of the Building or the Land. 
 

9. For the avoidance of doubt, the relationship of the parties under this MOU is not one 
of legal partnership, joint venture or agency. The Society does not have any authority 
to assume any obligation or liability on behalf of the Council. 

 
10. The Society will not release any media or public statements about the Project without 

the prior written approval of the Council. 
 

11. The Society will register as a charity under the Charities Act 2005. 
 

Roles 
 

12. The individual and joint roles of the CCC and Council are as follows: 
 

(a) The Society will apply for grants and other external funding for the cost of the 
Project, including the cost of design and construction work. Council approval 
must be obtained before entry into any funding agreement relating to the 
Project. 

 
(b) The Council (in its capacity as building owner) will apply to the Council (in 

capacity as regulatory authority) for resource consents and building consents 
after obtaining approval by the Council (in its capacity as owner of Land) to 
concept plans and preferred seismic strengthening and refurbishment option. 

 
(c) The Council (in its capacity as building owner) will apply to the Council (in its 

capacity as administering body of reserve) for consent to easements over the 
Land (if any) needed to provide services to the Building. 

 
(d) Applying to the Council (in its capacity as administering body of the reserve) for 

consent if the Society or any other person or entity requests a lease of all or 
part of the Building. Council would require any lessee to enter into an 
agreement to lease on terms approved by the Council. 

 
(e) Both the Society and Council (as building owner) through the Project Steering 

Group will liaise with Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga and specialist 
advisors on heritage conservation issues relating to strengthening and 
refurbishment of the Building. 

 
(f) Both the Society and Council (as building owner) will apply through the Project 

Steering Group to the Council for consent to appointment of any person or 
entity to manage the Project. Council may require the project manager to enter 
into a formal agreement for provision of project management services on terms 
approved by Council. Undertake any consultation with the community through 
the Project Steering Group that is required, subject to prior approval by the 
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13. This MOU may be signed in two or more counterparts (including by emailed PDF 
transmission) all of which together will constitute one and the same MOU. 

Not legally binding 

14. The parties do not intend the provisions of this MOU to be legally binding on the parties. 
The parties shall not be liable for any failure to perform the provisions of this MOU. 

DATED 2024 

Signed on behalf of BULLER DISTRICT 
COUNCIL: 

Authorised Signatory 

Council. 
 

(g) The Project Steering Group will obtain Council approval (in its capacity as 
owner of the Land and the Building) before any decision is made to tender or 
award any contract for the design and/or construction of the seismic 
strengthening and refurbishment works. Council approval must be obtained to 
the terms and conditions of any such tender or contract documents.] 

 
(h) Members of the Project Steering Group and their Terms of Reference are 

included as Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 to this Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

Counterparts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed on behalf of CARNEGIE 
CULTURAL CENTRE 
INCORPORATED: 

 

Authorised Signatory 
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SCHEUDLE 1 - Project Steering Group 
 

• One Councillor Representative 

• Two representatives of the Society 

• Two Council staff members representing Council as building owner – To be confirmed 
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Schedule 2 Terms or Reference 
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PROJECT STEERING GROUP - TERMS OF REFERENCE (TOR) 
 
PORTFOLIO: Property 

PROGRAMME: Capital Works 

PROJECT: Carnegie Building seismic strengthening project 

PROJECT OBJECTIVE: Carryout out seismic strengthening and 
refurbishment of the Building so that it can be used as a community 
building. 

 
APPROVALS 

NAME  POSITION/ROLE SIGNATURE DATE 

Michael Aitken 
Sponsor – GM – 
Infrastructure 
Services 

  

Pete Graham 
Chair – Carnegie 
Cultural Centre 
Incorporated 
(Society) 

  

Simon Pickford 
Chief Executive – 
Buller District 
Council (on behalf 
of Council) 

  

 

 

 

  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the Steering Group Terms of Reference is to: 

 Establish the purpose, scope and responsibility of the Steering Group 
 Provide clear and specific information on how the Steering Group is organised, who the members 

are, what the responsibilities and accountabilities of each member. 

Set the parameters for the context and ground rules under which the Steering Group will 
operate 
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Attachment 2 - Steering Group Terms of Reference - Carnegie 
 2 

Related Documents 
 

• Council’s Long Term Plan 2021-2031 
• Council’s Enhanced Annual Plan 2024-2025 
• Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) – Carnegie Building seismic 

strengthening project (Council and the Society) 
 

Steering group 
TOR purpose 

The purpose of this Project Steering Group (PSG) is to: 

  

• Liaise  with Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga and specialist advisors 
on heritage conservation issues relating to strengthening and refurbishment 
of the Building 

• Apply to Council for consent for the appointment of any person or entity to 
manage the Project. Council may require the project manager to enter into 
a formal agreement for provision of project management services on 
terms approved by Council. 

• Undertake any consultation with the community that is required, subject to 
prior approval by the Council 

• Obtain Council approval (in its capacity as owner of the Land and the 
Building) before any decision is made to tender or award any contract for 
the design and/or construction of the seismic strengthening and 
refurbishment works. Council approval must be obtained to the terms and 
conditions of any such tender or contract documents. 

• Provide guidance to the project manager on behalf of the Society and 
Council. 

 

Project context Is in relation to the need to upgrade the building for its intended community use 
by meeting legislative requirements. Legislation requirements include but are 
not limited to: 

• Building Act;  

• Resource Management Act; and  

• Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act. 

• Reserves Act 

Steering group 
context 

The group is to operate within the context of the MoU (Attachment 1)  
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Attachment 2 - Steering Group Terms of Reference - Carnegie 
3 

Membership Name Role Project responsibility 

Councillor – Rosalie 
Sampson 

Chair To represent the 
interests of Council 

Peter Graham Society Member To represent the 
interest of the Society 

TBC Society Member To represent the 
interests of Society 

TBC Council Staff Member To represent the 
interests of Council as 
building owner 

TBC Council Staff Member To represent the 
interests of Council as 
building owner. 

The PSG shall make its own arrangements for Secretarial Support. 

If a Project Manager is appointed that person will report to the PSG. 

Members 
expectations 

The PSG members have a critical guidance role for this project. Although the Society 
and Council are ultimately accountable for the delivery of the project objective, this can 
only be achieved with the support, experience and insight of key individuals from within 
PSG.  

The PSG are required to provide guidance to the Society and Council. This goes well 
beyond the provision of technical expertise.  

All PSG members are expected to work together and ensure the project remains aligned 
with the MoU. 

Expected 
behaviours 

The PSG members provide project leadership and need to demonstrate 
behaviours that reflect this position. This includes: 

Acting collaboratively and making decisions by consensus. 

Remembering that they are there to oversee the successful delivery of the 
project. 

Asking questions to ensure that they understand the implications for the project. 

Sharing their skills, experience and knowledge. 

Reading the papers and attend meetings regularly 

Actively listening to different perspectives from other PSG members. 
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226



                                                                                                                                            
  

Attachment 2 - Steering Group Terms of Reference - Carnegie 
 4 

Meeting 
protocol 

The Secretariat will provide administrative support for the PSG meetings, including 
inviting attendees, conferencing facilities, agendas, papers and minute-taking. 

Meetings will be held immediately prior to the joint Society and Council meetings 
(generally two monthly), at a location convenient to all parties. 

Regular meetings may be adjusted by the Chair from time to time to meet the needs of 
the project. 

The Secretariat will give notice of each regular meeting to each attendee at least 
[five]working days in advance.  

Meetings may be called by the Chair if urgent decisions are required. As much notice 
will be given as is possible and invitees are expected to make every effort to attend. In 
exceptional circumstances (at the Chair’s discretion), papers may be distributed, and 
feedback made to the Chair out-of-session. Meetings can be held via Zoom (or 
equivalent) Video Conferencing 

All PSG agenda items must be forwarded to the PSG secretary by Close of Business 
(C.O.B.) five (5)working days prior to the next scheduled meeting. 

The PSG agenda, with attached meeting papers will be distributed at least three (3) 
working days prior to the next scheduled meeting. 

The Chair does not have the right to refuse to list an item on the formal agenda, and 
members may raise an item under ‘Other Business' if necessary and as time permits. 

The minutes of each Project Steering Group meeting will be recorded and distributed by 
the secretary. They will be stored within Council’s SharePoint and the link noted in the 
documents register. 

The minutes, including attachments, shall be provided to all PSG members no later than 
three (3) working days following each meeting. 

Should a member of the team be unable to attend a meeting, they must inform the PSG 
secretary and/or Chair as soon as possible prior to the meeting.  

Members shall, where practicable, nominate a substitute to attend a meeting if the 
member is unable to attend. 

The Chair will be informed of the substitution at least three (3) working days prior to the 
scheduled nominated meeting. 

The substitute shall provide relevant comments/feedback, of the PSG meeting to the  
member they are representing to the attended meeting. 

If the Chair cannot attend, they can nominate another Councillor to chair that that 
particular meeting.  

While decisions are to be consensus at least the Chair and one member from the Society 
and Council staff must attend the meetings from the membership list in this Terms of 
Reference. 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL   
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 13 
 

Prepared by  Jamie Cleine 
 Buller District Mayor 
 
Attachments:  1. MTFJ Annual Report  
 2. Regional Deals Strategic Framework 
 3. Mayors Correspondence 
 
  
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  

 
This report is to provide commentary of significant events and meetings 
attended by the mayor. The Mayoral inwards and outwards correspondence is 
provided for information and discussion.   

 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
  
 That Council: 
 

1. Receive the report for discussion and information. 
2. Notes Inwards and Outwards Correspondence and provide direction 

for any responses required.  
 
3.  COUNCIL 
 

3.1 MAYORS TASKFORCE FOR JOBS (MTFJ) 
 

MTFJ Buller recently completed its annual accountability report for the 
year ended June 2024. The full report is included as Attachment 1.  

  
The 2023/24 year has been highly successful for MTFJ Buller 
especially given a significant slow-down in some sectors of the 
economy. This has required the team to work especially hard to 
identify new and innovative opportunities to support job seekers. A 
highlight of the year was the effort to build stronger brand recognition 
and profile. A key component of this was a collaboration with MTFJ 
Grey District to hold a Jobs Expo in both Westport and Greymouth. 
This was an outstanding success bringing together our industry 
partners as well as training and support providers with our target 
NEET's. Another highlight for me was visiting our young apprentices 
in their place of work and observing the pride and confidence they 
have in their craft. MTFJ Buller can be genuinely proud to have 
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supported so many young people into meaningful employment for 
themselves and enable them to be significant contributors to our 
community. For the future, and I see stronger relationships with 
secondary schools as important as we try and ensure every student 
leaving school has a plan to get into work. I also anticipate we will 
need to continue to enable career changers to adapt to changes in 
the local employment demand as they find opportunities to upskill. 
 
Highlights included: 
• Approved funding budget of $325,000,  
• $323,862 was spent on delivery and jobseeker support. 
• Jobseeker outcomes contracted target of 38 was exceeded, 41 

sustainable outcomes achieved. 
• 16 NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training) and 25 

Youth were supported by the programme. 
• Significant engagement and relationship efforts with employers 

and potential NEETS throughout the year. 
• Pastoral care has become an essential part of MTFJ delivery. 

 
3.2 WATER REFORM UPDATE - LOCAL WATER DONE WELL (LWDW) 
 

The Local Government (Water Services Preliminary Arrangements) Act 
2024 establishes the Local Water Done Well framework and the 
preliminary arrangements for the new water services system. 

The legislation was enacted on 2 September 2024.  

The Bill lays the foundation for a new approach to water services 
management and financially sustainable delivery models that meet 
regulatory standards. 

Key areas included in the Act are: 

• Requirements for councils to develop Water Services Delivery 
Plans by 3 September 2025. 

• Requirements that Plans outline future water services delivery 
arrangements, and for councils to commit to an implementation 
plan. 

• Requirements for councils to include in their Plans baseline 
information about their water services operations, assets, 
revenue, expenditure, pricing, and projected capital expenditure, 
as well as necessary financing arrangements, as a first step 
towards future economic regulation. 

• Streamlined consultation and decision-making processes for 
setting up future water services delivery arrangements. 

• Provisions that enable a new, financially sustainable model for 
Watercare, including the appointment of a Crown monitor for the 
interim regulation of Watercare. 
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• Interim changes to the Water Services Act, which mean the Te 
Mana o te Wai hierarchy of obligations in the National Policy 
Statement for Freshwater Management (NPS-FM) will not apply 
when Taumata Arowai sets wastewater standards.  

I joined BDC staff in attending a webinar on 3 September hosted by 
Department of Internal Affairs which provided more detail on the 
requirements for Water Service Delivery Plans (WSDP).  BDC staff are 
now working on preparing our WSDP to follow the legislation.  Draft 
WSDP’s require approval by Council for consultation.  Councils must 
consult on the anticipated or proposed model for delivering water 
services in the Plan. 
The Act sets out the alternative consultation and decision-making 
requirements for councils. 

Local Government Water Services Bill  
The Government will introduce a third Local Water Done Well Bill in 
December 2024 that will establish the enduring settings for the new 
water services system. 

The Local Government Water Services Bill will set out a range of 
changes to the water services delivery system and to the water services 
regulatory system. 

This includes: 

• New water services delivery models for councils to choose from, 
including new water organisations that can be owned by councils 
and/or consumer trusts. 

• Minimum requirements for local government water services 
providers  

• A new economic regulation regime for local government water 
services providers, to be implemented by the Commerce 
Commission 

• Changes to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
drinking water regulatory regime, and the approach Taumata 
Arowai takes to regulating the regime. 

• Change in the approach to applying Te Mana o te Wai, affecting 
drinking water suppliers as well as wastewater and stormwater 
networks. 

• A new approach to managing urban stormwater, including 
changes to improve the management of overland flow paths and 
watercourses in urban areas. 

• Changes relating to wastewater environmental performance 
standards and national engineering design standards. 
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Taumata Arowai 
 

The West Coast Mayors, Chairs & Iwi group met with Taumata Arowai 
CEO Allan Prangnell in Greymouth to discuss proposed changes to the 
regulations that Taumata Arowai administer.  These changes are yet to 
be finalised but indications from this meeting were that clear direction on 
regulatory changes would be within timelines for Councils 2025-34 Long 
Term Plan.  Proposed changes of particular interest to Buller due to the 
impact these may have on capital and operational budgets include: 
 

• Updates to acceptable solutions to meet drinking water 
regulations for smaller supplies. This is likely to be some form of 
“point of use” treatment at household level.  A change such as 
this could raise the number of connections/population threshold 
at which a large municipal water treatment plant would be 
required. 

• Changes to consenting processes and requirements for 
wastewater treatment plants.  This is proposed to be a national 
standards approach which may reduce/standardise conditions 
imposed on treatment plant outfalls. 

 
 3.3 MINISTERIAL VISIT – HON MARK PATTERSON 

The Minister Rural Communities Hon Mark Patterson and MP Jamie 
Arbuckle visited Westport on 6 September as part of a series of 
community engagement visits. Mr Patterson also holds associate 
ministerial roles in regional economic development and agriculture.  
Council staff provided a briefing on Resilient Westport work and the 
masterplanning process underway.  We also discussed regional 
economic development opportunities and the proposed regional deals 
policy of the government. 

 3.4 MANAHAU – SAND BARGE GROUNDING 

As was widely publicised in the media, the Westland Mineral Sands 
(WMS) owned sand barge Manahau ran aground on Carter’s Beach on 
31 August/1September.  The near 100m barge grounded at about 
midnight, at the time it had 11 people on-board, however was not 
carrying any cargo. The crew remained on the vessel and were 
frequently checked on for welfare throughout the incident. The barge 
remained intact, and there were no leaks or lasting environmental 
damage. 

Following a discussion with local and regional authorities, Maritime NZ 
became the lead response agency for the incident. This was treated as 
a national level maritime response with a team of 10 people on the 
ground in Westport and a larger team supporting out of Wellington 
including the National Maritime Controller. 
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WMS were responsible for arranging the salvage/recovery operation 
which included support from suitable tugboats from the North Island.   
The re-float was successful on Friday 6 September, and the Manahau 
was towed to Port Nelson for assessment. 

Councillors and the Independent Chairperson RAC, Sharon Roche 
were updated via zoom on 4 and 9 September on the incident and how 
any risk to council, the community and the environment was being 
managed.  Councillors discussed and provided feedback on their 
perspectives of risk, legal advice sought, insurance cover, future port 
revenues, and relevant harbour regulatory functions and requested the 
risks continue to be monitored and recorded for reporting to the Risk 
and Audit Committee. 

Separate investigations into the cause of the incident are underway by 
Maritime New Zealand, Transport Accident Investigation Commission 
and WMS. 

3.5 REGIONAL DEALS – STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK 

The Government has launched a framework to establish Regional 
Deals between central and local government that will drive economic 
growth and deliver infrastructure. Regionals Deals have been a 
successful tool used in the UK and Australia to build stronger 
relationships between central and local Government and to co-ordinate 
investment to deliver the infrastructure needed for economic growth 
and productivity. 

Regional Deals are expected to support long-term collaboration 
between central and local government, deliver a joint, long-term vision 
for regions, and will be focussed on economic growth and productivity, 
delivering resilient infrastructure, and improving the supply of 
affordable, quality housing. 

I attended a Department of Internal Affairs webinar on Regional Deals 
on 17 September where the Strategic Framework was presented (see 
Attachment 2).  The key points included: 

• will be used to help coordinate capital investment between 
central and local government and will also be a tool to enable 
regions to utilise new and existing funding tools to fund and 
finance this infrastructure. 

• Deals will have 30-year horizon with 10 strategic delivery 
plans. 

• Are not a guarantee of funding (no new funding attached). 

• Can re-allocate existing funding. 

• Will require an oversight governing body at regional level. 
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• Five regions will be invited to provide a high-level plan before 
end of 2024.  Of these five, one will progress through next 
steps to a signed agreement at end of 2025, others will enter 
a Memorandum of Understanding process to develop a 
regional deal over a longer timeframe.  These will be Cabinet 
decisions. 

 
Initial discussions have started with West Coast Mayors, Chairs & Iwi 
forum members on regional deals.  If the West Coast is invited to 
participate, MCI is the likely forum to develop the local decision making 
steps that will come back to respective Council’s for input/co-design of 
any deal. 

 
4. EXTERNAL MEETINGS  

  
4.1 LGNZ SUPERLOCAL NATIONAL CONFERENCE 

The LGNZ national conference was held 21-23 August at Takina in 
Wellington. It is difficult to succinctly summarise the various presenters 
and note that much of the commentary from the Ministerial addresses 
has been well reported in media or is included in other council reports 
on specific topics.  
 
I hosted a “fireside chat” with Hon Simon Watts, this involved 
questioning the Minister on Climate Adaptation policy on the main 
stage to set the scene for a keynote speaker on the subject. 
 
What I considered the most relevant PowerPoint slides from the 
conference have been shared with Councillors.   
 
The highlights/key points for me included: 
 
Rt Hon Chris Luxon – Prime Minister/ Hon Simeon Brown – 
Minister Local Government: 

• Local Government Funding Authority, alleviating pressure 
on council debt caps. 

• taking a hard look at a range of rules and regulations that 
incur costs that central government directly loads onto 
councils.  

• expect local government to do the basics and to do the 
basics brilliantly. Pick up the rubbish. Fix the pipes. Fill in 
potholes and maintain local assets quickly, carefully, and 
cost effectively. 

• abolishing the four wellbeing provisions in legislation and 
restoring focus on local services and infrastructure. 

• investigate performance benchmarks for local councils, 
similar to the approach some Australian states apply to 
their local authorities.  

• investigate options to limit council expenditure on ‘nice-to-
haves’.  
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• review the transparency and accountability rules that 
apply to councils. 

• exploring options for mayors to have independent staff 
advice, separate from their Chief Executives and council 
officers. 

• councils can provide ratepayer relief by quickly setting up 
new water entities, spreading infrastructure costs more 
effectively, and reducing costs for consumers and 
ratepayers. 

Sarah Baddeley – Martin Jenkins (local government reform) 
• Four dimensions for decision makers to consider when 

making decisions on re-organisation of local government. 
o Community responsiveness 
o Scale of delivery 
o Financial sustainability 
o Strategic capacity 

• Important to understand the community and how well we 
currently serve them. 

• Make a solid case for change and bring community on 
the journey. 

• Set out a clear decision-making framework. 

Simpson Grierson “new” future for local government 
• Limited to no crossover from previous government’s local 

government reform. 
• There is no current proposal for structural reform of 

governance frameworks in New Zealand. 
• Climate Adaptation/Natural Hazards – clarity developing 

over next 3-5 years.  Insurance retreat will be key driver 
of change. 

• Housing growth – RMA and Building act reform, regional 
spacial plans with reduced appeal rights 

Chapman Tripp – Climate Policy Progress 
• Inquiry by Finance and Expenditure Committee to develop 

and recommend objectives and principles for the design of 
a climate adaptation framework. 

• Independent Reference Group established to support 
development of policy advice for the adaptation 
framework. 

• Climate Change Commission due to provide progress 
report on the implementation and effectiveness of the first 
National Adaptation Plan 

• Early 2025 expected introduction of legislation to support 
the climate adaptation, legislation expected end of 2025. 
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4.2 TE TAI POUTINI PLAN (TTPP) 
The committee met on 29 August via zoom.  This meeting was mostly to 
deal with the summary of submissions in relation to Variation 1, Activities 
on the Surface of Water to the proposed TTPP.  This variation was 
undertaken to clarify that commercial and other activities associated with 
Westport Harbour and the Port of Greymouth are Permitted Activities. 
The Variation inserted a new Policy and new Rule and amended an 
existing Rule in the Activities on the Surface of Water – Chapter.  The 
variation was notified for further submissions which closed on 14 
September. 

 
4.3 RESILIENCE TO ORGANISED CRIME IN COMMUNITIES (ROCC) 
   

The ROCC group has made great progress recently with the 
procurement process well underway for suitable social services 
providers to deliver on the goals and aspirations of the governance 
group.  I represent the West Coast Mayors on the four-person 
assessment panel, who determine the successful applications. 

 
The Resilience to Organised Crime in Communities (ROCC) Community 
Resilience and Whānau Support Fund aims to support the development 
and implementation of community-led responses to the harms caused or 
increased by organised crime. 
 
Applications were invited from those organisations whose mahi; 

• creates community resilience to organised crime, and/or 
• expands services to address methamphetamine harm, and/or 
• provides support to whānau impacted by methamphetamine, 

and/or 
• provides support to rangatahi at risk of being impacted by, or 

involved in organised crime, with a focus on people who use illicit 
drugs, and/or 

• vulnerable whānau at risk from engaging in or being the victims 
of organised crime, and/or  

• rangatahi impacted by, or at risk of being impacted by 
methamphetamine and/or organised crime. 

 
On the 10 September I attended a full day assessment panel meeting in 
Nelson to discuss the proposals and confirm the proposals to be 
contracted.  Ministry of Social Development officials will now work with 
the selected organisations to contract the programmes and close out the 
first procurement process.  
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5. LOCAL EVENTS & OTHER RELATIONSHIP MEETINGS 
 

I have attended various local events and relationship meetings over the 
period: 

• DWC Annual Public Meeting, I attended via zoom.  This was to 
present the highlights of the year for DWC. 

• Federation Mining, Vice President Simon Delander.  I received 
an update on the Snowy River mine project and Reefton 
workers accomodation 

• Networking Lunch, Air NZ Board.  This was an opportunity to 
discuss the importance of regional connectivity and tourism.  
The board described some of the airlines’ challenges and future 
strategy. 

• Promoting Buller Group Chairperson, Jessie Creedmore.  Jessie 
is now leading this group and building understanding and 
relationships with key stakeholders in promoting Buller.   

• ICB, I attended the monthly meeting. 
• Coasters Club Christchurch, Hosted by His Worship the Mayor 

of Christchurch Phil Mauger. I attended alongside Mayor Gibson 
and Mayor Lash.  We each provided a presentation to the 
attendees on positive developments in our districts. 

 
6. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

For Council consideration (Attachment 3) 
  

Incoming 
Correspondence 
2024 

From Subject 

14 August 2024 Karamea Historical Society Invitation to Karamea 150th 
Celebrations 

3 September 2024 Hon. Simeon Brown Local Government (Water Services 
Preliminary Arrangements) Act 

16 September 2024 Hon Karen Chhour Response letter - request for support – 
Family Start West Coast providers 

Outgoing 
Correspondence 
2024 

To Subject 

23 August 2024 Hon Karen Chhour Family Start West Coast Providers – 
Request for Support (GDC, WDC & 
BDC) 

16 September 2024 Nicky Fowlie Letter of Thanks – Inangahua Hall 
Sub-Committee 
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Employment Programme
End of Financial Year Report to 30 June 2024

MTFJ: Buller District Council – Buller REAP

Insert your logo 
here

ATTACHMENT 1
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Buller Mayor Jamie Cleine

It has been another very successful year for MTFJ Buller especially given 
a significant slow-down in some sectors of the economy. This has required 
the team to work especially hard to identify new and innovative opportunities 
to support job seekers. A highlight of the year was the effort to build stronger 
brand recognition and profile. A key component of this was a collaboration 
with MTFJ Grey District to hold a Jobs Expo in both Westport and 
Greymouth. This was an outstanding success bringing together our industry 
partners as well as training and support providers with our target 
NEET's. Another highlight for me was visiting our young apprentices in their 
place of work and observing the pride and confidence they have in their 
craft. MTFJ Buller can be genuinely proud to have supported so many young 
people into meaningful employment for themselves and enable them to be 
significant contributors to our community.
For the future, and I see stronger relationships with secondary schools as 
important as we try and ensure every student leaving school has a plan to get 
into work. I also anticipate we will need to continue to enable career 
changers to adapt to changes in the local employment demand as they find 
opportunities to upskill.
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Outcomes for the community
Please include some high level outcomes here:

• Total employment placements made: 41

• NEETs: 16

• Youth: 25

• Youth with Disability: 0

• Adults with Disability: 0

• Disadvantaged:  1

• Top 3 ethnicities of placements: NZ Euro, Maori

• Top 3 industries of placements: Retail/Hospo,
Construction, Mining

• Total number of registered jobseekers: 64

• Total number of registered businesses: 44

Funds invested in the community
Please include an overview of your spend here:

MTFJ Programme Income: $325,000.00

Other Income: N/A

Gross Profit (ex gst): $325,000.00

Operating Expenses (ex gst)

Administration & Travel: $30,153.00

Overheads: $73,709.73

Salary & Wages:    $107,523.00

Jobseeker Support: $111,477.09

Employer Support:

Total Operating Expenses (ex gst): $323,862.82

Net Profit / Funds Returned (ex gst):
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An Employment Story 
January 2024 - Emily reached out for our help, she was living in the North Island and 
wanted to relocate back home to her family. She had a little experience with painting and 
plastering and was eager to pursue this as a career.

Feb 2024 – MTFJ contacted a Reefton based firm called PPS (Painting Plastering Solutions) 
who had work opportunities in Westport and wanted to increase their workforce there.

March 2024 – After meeting with PPS, Emily  was offered a full-time position which has 
now led to an apprenticeship and her having her own work vehicle.

MTFJ supported Emily with PPE, tools and tablet to enable her to study for her 
qualification. 

While Emily never expected anything more for us, she showed great resilience and 
maturity to make a great future for herself.  We know she is extremely grateful at being 
given an opportunity to do something she loves, and it shows in her enthusiasm on our 
visits to her workplace and how thrilled she was on meeting Mayor Jamie.
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A Driver Licence Story

Our ability to deliver driver licencing is quite limited.  Because we are based at Buller 
REAP and they hold the MSD contract for licencing this limits our access to job 
seekers.  We try to capture those that come to us separately but often they have 
already been to referred to REAP by MSD.

However, we are now working with Buller High School about providing learner licence
programme for senior students.  This is likely to be later term 3.
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Ministry of Social Development Partnership

Our biggest challenge continues to be jobseeker engagement – even after being referred to us by MSD.  A large 
number don’t respond to email or text and only half attend their first appointment with us.  There is still 
reluctance to participate in courses we facilitate.

Case Manager communication has improved, and we give feedback on all referrals received from them.  Better 
knowledge of what MTFJ does is needed for some and that is something we are currently working on. We are 
hoping to attend their staff planning meetings to ensure everyone is up-to-date with how we can support 
jobseekers.  Workbroker relationship continues  to be very strong and face-to-face meetings are held 
fortnightly.

We invited MSD staff to be involved in our Employment Expo recently, this gave them better public exposure in 
a fun environment.

Our new video showcasing Buller MTFJ will feature Westport’s MSD manager.
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Partnerships & Collaborations
Reefton Area School

The Mayor’s Taskforce for Jobs has supported our students in many ways and has supported our young people gain employment. We had a 
Year 13 student who had completed a year of Gateway with a local business. When he was offered paid work the Mayor’s Taskforce worked 
with employer supporting them to provide equipment, clothing and tools for their new employee.      
One of the Mayor’s Taskforce members spent a day in school supporting senior students to prepare, write and print their CVs. This support 
meant the students had professional looking CVs that included information the students would not have considered relevant.   
Senior students have been able to take part in a variety of courses to support their career pathways because of funding provided by the 
Mayor’s Taskforce for Jobs. Some of these courses were Rugby Coaching, Health and Safety and Fencing.  This support means that our students 
can complete courses that support their career pathways and make them more likely to gain employment. Supporting employers by purchasing 
equipment their employees require makes local employers more likely to employ young locals.

Sue Bass - ACTING PRINCIPAL Reefton Area School

Te Hono

Over the last 11months I have worked aside Ruby Eriksen in a very professional and positive matter regarding the support of 
youth in the Buller area. We have collaborated well with set meetings on reviewing clients we have both supported under 
MJTF and Te Hono.  I look forward to working aside both Julie and Ruby more to support all our agencies on the Westcoast.

Stephanie Stephens - West Coast Youth Pathways Advisor
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Partnerships & Collaborations
Buller REAP

For Buller REAP to subcontract the MTFJ from the Buller District council has strengthened our 
partnership the Mayor and council. Both Julie and Ruby have brought different skills to our team and 
for youth that are already working in our space have connections with the MTFJJ 
team. This support their transition from different youth program's into job seekers as they already 
have a connection with Ruby and Julie.

Mary-Rose O'Loughlin: Manager - Buller REAP

Ruby has been an amazing asset to have in our youth services sector. She is always one of the first to 
put her hand up to support however she can within services, events, and activities. Ruby is constantly 
attending our Youth Services Networking meeting each term and keeping us all up to date on all the 
fantastic things MTFJ is doing. It’s great having that connection to ensure the youth have someone to 
walk through the services together.

Tessa Spillane: Kawatiri Youth Services Co-Ordinator – Buller REAP

Ruby is such an asset to have to the Buller REAP team and has been a huge support to me and my 
young clients wanting to get into the workforce. She has made my clients feel so comfortable and 
supported in their own personal journeys and seeing the positive outcomes of the clients is a credit to 
her hard work. Its been a pleasure working alongside Ruby and looking forward to working with her in 
the future.

Hanna Nicholas: Youth Serices – Buller REAP
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Testimonials – Jobseekers

MTFJ have been absolutely amazing, the support they provide is great and they are so nice and 
easy to get in touch with.   I have recommended them to one of my colleagues whose son is 
struggling.                                                    “Thank you so much for everything!”

Emily: Apprentice Plasterer - PPS Solutions

Thank you so much MTFJ for all the support in helping me find employment and also helping 
me in supplying the gear for my new job that I would not of otherwise been able to afford, it is 
extremely appreciated.

Kier: Adams Construction

MTFJ have supported me with sessions with a mental health expert to help me get back into 
the working environment.  I got into work and they supplied my work clothes!  Couldn’t have 
made it this far without the help and endless support from the team!

20yr old job seeker (wished to remain anonymous): Retail
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Testimonials – Employer

Thank you and your team for supporting our young job seekers into full time employment, they are 
grateful to have received vouchers to provide them with the warm clothing needed, assisting, and funding 
their licenses and not to mention the personal pastoral care you have provided some.      
Cheyanne Amai – Branch Manager Talley’s Westport

I wanted to take a moment to express our sincere gratitude for the invaluable support you provide in 
funding our apprentices. Your commitment to nurturing talent and investing in the future workforce is 
commendable and makes a significant difference in our community. Once again, thank you for your 
ongoing support of our apprentices.      
Jhai Forsyth – Coastal Construction (Westport) Ltd  

“Working with MTJF has been a game-changer for us. Their exceptional support in supplying tools, 
personal protective equipment (PPE), and managing driver licensing has greatly enhanced our team's 
efficiency and safety. We are grateful for their dedication to providing the resources we need, which has 
allowed us to focus on what we do best. MTJF is a vital partner in our success.”      
Heather O’Toole – Jennian Homes Westport
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Conclusion 
2024-2025 was a very satisfying year for Buller MTFJ and we ticked off everything on our bucket-list from delivering or 
funding  workshops and short courses, creating a fantastic employment expo, forming relationships with jobseekers, schools, 
businesses and agencies, building strong connections with other MTFJ, to mention a few – it’s been a great 12 months and 
we are proud of what we have accomplished.

End of June 2024 seen us achieve exceed our target of 38 outcomes to reach 41 job placements.  Going into July 2024 we are 
very confident about what we have in place for this round.  Lots of preparation has gone into this coming year and we are 
planning for to be our best yet.

Pastoral care has become an essential part of our MTFJ delivery.  As well as using her own skills, Ruby has developed very 
strong relationships with jobseekers and has gained the confidence and trust with those looking for work. We have 
strenghtened our ties with various agencies that can give jobseekers specialised help if needed. 

Delivery of several courses in the last few months has made it extremely busy and rewarding.  These have included the Dress 
to Impress, Let’s Go Project, ITS – Barista & Verticle Horizons – Chainsaw.

After some resistance we have had a successful outcome with Buller High School.  We will hold drop-in sessions there 
fortnightly and we will help fund a Learner Licence programme and First Aid course for senior students.  

Our MSD partnership continues to be very solid, there are regular meetings with our workbroker, and planned discussions in 
the Westport office with case managers to ensure they know all we can offer.  

The smaller towns are harder to tap into and some of the smaller rural settlements offer little jobwise.  Reefton school 
however works very actively with us otherwise it’s very difficult to find and engage with jobseekers as they tend to isolate 
themselves.

The next 12 months is going to be a busy, exciting and rewarding!
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Our Year in Pictures

Coast Employment Expo: 44 Employers & Agencies     ITS: Hot Chocolate & Barista Basics course
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Our Year in Pictures
August     September October

Jenkins Construction – Apprentice tools 
Bathurst Mining – Apprentice tools
Ashby Builders – Apprentice tools 
Shosha Ltd - Uniform
Tai Poutini students 

Carters Beach Holiday Park – Uniform
Anything Mechanical – Apprentice tools

Reedys Farm – PPE
Jae’s Café – Uniforms
Postie Plus - Uniform

Karamea Students - Outward Bound
Mitre 10 – Footwear, licences
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Our Year in Pictures
December & January February April

TRT Builders – Apprentice tools
Orica – Tools
Doug Hood – PPE
Gibby’s café - Uniform

Charleston Tavern – Tools & PPE
Jennian Homes – Tools
Adams Construction – Tools
Coast Outdoors – Uniform

Roscos – Tools
PPS – Uniform & Tools
Coastal Construction – Tools
Ellerys – Uniform & Clearhead
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Our Year in Pictures
May

TRT Builders – Apprentice Tools
Gibbys Café – Uniform
Adams Construction - Tools
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Our Year in Pictures
Chainsaw course   Dress to Impress   Let’s Go Project
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REGIONAL 
DEALS
Strategic Framework
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Foreword

Hon Simeon Brown

Minister of Local Government

I am excited to be introducing this new opportunity for how central government, 
local government and the private sector can be working together to deliver for 
communities.

We are facing significant economic challenges, including the affordability of 
housing and how we provide for critical infrastructure. These challenges affect all 
of us, whether we are living in urban, regional or rural areas. We have been 
elected as a Government to address these challenges and find practical solutions 
to fixing them.  

Central and local government have powerful tools and mechanisms at their 
disposal to meet these challenges, unlock economic growth and boost 
productivity.  Regional deals will be a practical and enduring way to ensure that 
these tools and mechanisms are used in a coordinated way to ensure we are 
doing everything we can to support New Zealanders

Regional deals will unlock growth in specific geographic areas by providing a 
regional-level approach.  They will focus on funding and financing tools, 
regulatory relief mechanisms, efficient and innovative use of existing funding and 
planning mechanisms and improved central government coordination. The deals 
will align with local government’s 10-year planning cycles, allowing for more 
effective delivery and shared objectives and outcomes. They will reset systems to 
enable local government, with central government support, to deliver for 
communities.  

Regional deals provide an opportunity for central and local government to agree 
on joint priorities, and how they wish to accomplish common objectives. Deals 
are about doing things differently, making the best use of what we already have, 
and empowering local authorities to support growth for their communities. 

This Strategic Framework is just the beginning of this exciting journey to 
implement an effective and enduring regional deals model for New Zealand. I’m 
excited about the potential of this new way of doing things and looking forward 
to working together with local government to deliver the infrastructure 
investment and economic growth our communities are asking for. 
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To be a world-class, competitive actor in the 21st century, our regions need to 
be productive and efficient in the use of their resources and tools. Unlocking 
economic opportunities will require all levels of government to define shared 
priorities, actions, and timeframes, and consider all available levers at their 
disposal to support improved regional economic outcomes. It will also require 
developing optimal conditions for collaboration with the private sector.

The Speech from the Throne set out the Government’s intention to partner 
with local government to create Regional Deals. Regional Deals provide a long-
term approach to address some of the underlying issues impacting economic 
development and productivity by providing a focus on regions as integrated 
economic areas. 

This strategic framework sets out the Government’s expectations for Regional 
Deals and criteria for selecting regions for deals. Development of this 
framework includes consideration of local government objectives for Regional 
Deals as set out in Local Government New Zealand’s ‘What communities need 
from the framework for city/regional deals’.1

Regional Deals will be based on a 30-year vision, with negotiated 10-year 
strategic plans to deliver shared objectives and outcomes between central and 
local government. Deals will be long-term commitments, intended to endure, 
promoting economic growth and productivity, delivering connected and 
resilient infrastructure, and improving the supply of affordable, quality 
housing.

Regional Deals will be a vehicle for greater regional collaboration and 
coordination, improved local government decision-making and funding and 
financing, promoting innovative and collaborative ways of working between 
central and local government, and ensuring resilient cities and regions. They 
will provide a holistic approach to aligning and delivering agreed outcomes 
tailored to local conditions and national priorities. The regional deals 
timeframe includes reviews and evaluation of outcomes to ensure deals 
continue to reflect current needs.

New Zealand’s economic 
growth and the prosperity it 
affords to communities goes 
hand in hand with the growth 
of our regions

5
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To ensure a consistent approach across all Regional Deals, the following 
principles will apply: 

• partnership

• adaptability

• certainty of decision-making and funding and financing

• accountability and transparency

Partnerships will involve central and local government, with opportunities for 
the private sector and iwi/Māori to participate.

Regional Deals will require sustainable funding and financing to develop and 
implement. Central and local government presently face fiscal constraints, but 
central government will unlock a range of funding and financing tools (existing 
and new), regulatory relief, and regional-central government coordination to 
support the deals. 

Regional Deals will be led by Ministers as the main interface with local 
government leadership. Ministers will have delegated decision-making authority 
and will manage alignment across portfolios, ensuring that all necessary central 
government levers are available in support of the system. 

Once a deal is finalised, central and local government partners from the region 
will establish an oversight body. The composition and membership of oversight 
bodies will be agreed by both parties and will have independent chairs, and 
senior partner representatives. Involvement of the private sector and iwi/Māori 
entities will be encouraged. 

Regional Deals will be finalised in a staged ‘waves’ approach, with the first deal 
finalised in 2025. 

Building economic growth

Delivering connected and resilient infrastructure

Improving the supply of affordable and quality housing

Priority Objectives 

Secondary Objectives 

• Improved local government decision-making and funding

• Greater regional and private sector collaboration

• Promoting innovative and collaborative ways of working between

central and local government

• Ensuring resilient and sustainable cities and regions

6

Guiding Principles 
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This strategic framework for Regional Deals is the first step for giving effect 
to the National Party manifesto commitment and the National and ACT New 
Zealand coalition agreement commitment to institute long-term regional 
deals. This commitment is also reflected in the Speech from the Throne for 
New Zealand’s 54th Parliament.2 

The framework is a guide for discussions between central government and 
councils (territorial and regional authorities), and relevant private sector 
entities (including domestic and international investors), to deliver Regional 
Deals in support of shared objectives and outcomes. 

Introduction and Purpose

Current settings do not support local government to foster economic growth 
in their regions. Councils’ existing funding and financing tools are an example 
of this, where councils are not rewarded for economic growth. Instead, 
increased tax revenue from local growth flows to central government, not 
local government. In practice, this means that councils and ratepayers are 
bearing the costs of growth. In many cases, local communities are either 
unable or unwilling to embrace growth and development, leading to local 
decisions that impede economic growth and contribute to New Zealand’s 
significant infrastructure deficit and unaffordable housing market.

This misalignment is also reflected in central and local government’s budget 
cycles: whereas central government operates on yearly budget cycles, local 
government makes most significant funding decisions through 10-year plans, 
produced every three years. This makes securing long-term public funding 
for infrastructure challenging, which in turn translates into reduced certainty 
for capturing private investment.

New Zealanders are facing significant affordability challenges. For example, 
New Zealand ranks amongst the least affordable housing markets in the 
OECD, with inflation-adjusted house prices rising by 256 percent between 
2000 and 2021.3 Addressing housing affordability will require strong and 
aligned central and local government leadership to unlock more land for 
housing developments, to unlock funding and financing tools for councils, 
and to develop the right local incentives to encourage housing growth. 

Affordability is also reflected in the infrastructure our communities need to 
thrive and prosper. New Zealand has a significant infrastructure deficit, 
driven by a combination of historic underinvestment and future challenges 
like servicing a growing population and decarbonising the economy.4

Building bridges, sewerage systems, roads and water supplies has also 
become increasingly expensive for councils.5 

Addressing affordability and cost of living issues requires an all-of-New 
Zealand approach, where central and local government work together to 
identify and mobilise all available funding and financing and policy levers in a 
way that better incentivises and distributes the benefits of economic growth.

Regional Deals, will provide an opportunity to focus on getting the basics 
right by supporting regions to deliver the best for their communities, and the 
country as a whole. 

Context

7
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Regional Deals will be based on a 30-year vision, with negotiated 10-year 
strategic plans to deliver shared objectives and outcomes between central 
and local government. Deals will be long-term commitments, intended to 
endure, to promote economic growth and productivity, delivering 
connected and resilient infrastructure, and improving the supply of 
affordable, quality housing. To better deliver shared objectives and 
outcomes between central and local government, the deals will align with 
local government 10-year planning cycles rather than central government’s 
three-year planning cycles.  

Regional Deals will be a vehicle for greater regional collaboration and 
coordination, enhanced private sector involvement, improved local 
government decision-making and funding and financing, promoting 
innovative and collaborative ways of working between central and local 
government, and ensuring resilient cities and regions. Deals will work to 
unlock economic and regional growth, remove regulatory bottlenecks, and 
support investment in infrastructure funding and provisions, in exchange for 
a commitment of planning liberalisation. This will provide better value for 
ratepayers and taxpayers who are one and the same. 

By working together through a Regional Deal, central and local government 
will aim to provide a more strategic vision for how to enable and support 
economic growth in New Zealand, while generating greater certainty and 
long-term stability for public- and private-sector investments. 

What are Regional Deals?
Regional Deals will be based on a 
30-year vision, with negotiated 10-
year strategic plans to deliver
shared objectives and outcomes
between central and local
government

Implementing deals will create system change through: 

• enabling competition for growth between regions;

• promoting the best use of planning processes for growth;

• ensuring the right incentives drive growth, including unlocking
potential new revenues for local government; and

• certainty over future investment pipelines.

8
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Regional Deals 
in New Zealand
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Regional Deals will empower local government and enable them to achieve 
their objectives. While Regional Deals will include specific central 
governmental priorities and objectives, projects and investments within 
each deal will be identified regionally through available spatial planning 
instruments. Regional Deals will coordinate and align central government 
work programmes and levers, bringing together solutions. 

Regional Deals will need to be both enduring and provide the certainty 
needed to attract and retain the necessary investments to deliver change, 
especially over several central and local government electoral cycles. They 
will also need to be adaptable and evolve to different circumstances.  To 
balance these competing requirements, deals will need to be made in a 
high-trust environment between central and local government. They will 
need to have strong political commitments to create enabling policy, 
regulatory and funding and financing environments, followed by contractual 
arrangements with providers. They will also need to provide for 
prioritisation and sequencing of investments in a way that aligns with 
agreed-upon objectives and outcomes. 

Regional Deals will be 
enabling, empowering, 
enduring and adaptable

Though each Regional Deal will cater for local priorities, they will share the 
following foundational components:

• A defined economic/geographic area;

• a 10-year strategic plan with clear outcomes sought and the actions
required to achieve them;

• decision-making arrangements, delivery timeframes and accountabilities;

• the capital and operational investments required;

• performance metrics with monitoring and reporting requirements; and

• regulatory and institutional settings to support the deal.

Foundational components of Regional Deals 

10

‘Regions’ in the context of Regional Deals could be regional, sub-regional or 
another appropriate scale, so long as they are defined economic and 
geographic areas with functional local authorities. 
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This framework includes the following priority and secondary objectives for central 
government to pursue across Regional Deals in New Zealand. The objectives aim to 
focus both central and local governments to build economic growth. 

Objectives and outcomes 

Priority objectives Outcomes

Build economic growth7 • Increased jobs and skills

• Improved standard of living

• Increased productivity

Deliver connected and resilient 

infrastructure8

• Better connected communities and businesses through

infrastructure

• Infrastructure built (and identified investment in support of it) is

more resilient against the impacts of natural hazards and

climate change

• Infrastructure built enables development, including housing

objectives

Improve the supply of 

affordable, quality housing 
• Increased supply of build ready land (both greenfield and

brownfield), including ensuring the necessary infrastructure is

in place for development.

• Improved housing affordability for rental and home ownership

Given the current constrained fiscal environment, Regional Deals will initially be focused 
on the priority objectives.  Central and local government will need to agree on what 
projects will be best placed to support these objectives, which could involve trade-offs 
and priority setting as regional deals are negotiated.

Specific outcomes for Regional Deals will need to be agreed between deal partners, 
allowing for iteration of the deal over time. Identifying outcomes requires an in-depth 
understanding of the regional economic and social conditions, and the projects and 
activities that will unlock opportunities and growth. 

Through a Regional Deal partners will agree an approach for monitoring progress against 
these objectives and outcomes. More detail is in the monitoring, evaluation and 
accountability mechanisms section. 

Secondary objectives Outcomes

Greater regional and private 

sector collaboration

• Better connections across regions, between urban and rural

communities to allow for economic growth, infrastructure

delivery, and improvements in the supply and quality of our

housing, and improved collaboration with the private sector.

Improve local government 

decision making and funding 

and financing

• Local government can use an increased mix of funding tools to

fund local infrastructure (water, transport, community

infrastructure), housing and growth.

Promote innovative and 

collaborative ways of working 

between central and local 

government 

• Levels of government work more effectively and efficiently

because of innovative processes.

• Central and local government have increased agility to respond

to changing conditions.

Ensure regions are resilient 

and sustainable

• Communities are better prepared for the future, including being

able to plan and manage our natural and built environment.

11
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Guiding principles ensure a consistent 
approach across all Regional Deals. 
This framework includes four principles 
to guide how the deals should be 
undertaken to achieve the desired 
objectives and outcomes

Guiding Principles

Regional Deal partners will work in good faith on a no surprises basis to 
develop long-term, high-trust partnerships that clearly reflect shared long-
term objectives and outcomes, and strong commitments to work together. 
Partnerships will involve central and local government, with opportunities 
for the private sector and iwi/Māori to participate.

Partnership

Regional Deals will be adaptable to meet the pace, scale and nature of 
proposals. They will consider the capability and capacity and readiness of 
different partners to deliver.

Adaptability

Regional Deals will aim to improve clarity around decision making processes 
and funding and financing to ensure the integration of long-term strategy 
and planning. Certainty from Regional Deals will also aim to attract and 
retain private sector investments.

Certainty of decision making and funding 

Regular reporting, monitoring and evaluation mechanisms will hold partners 
to account, will ensure public awareness of outcomes, and will measure 
success and provide for lesson learned. 

Accountability and transparency

12
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Regional Deals will primarily be 
between central and local 
government, with participation as 
appropriate from other partners, 
including the private sector and 
Māori/iwi organisations

Regional Deals will reflect the guiding principle of ‘partnerships’. It will be 
critical for trust between partners to be built early so it enables agreement 
over joint priorities and ways of working, to ensure smooth project 
implementation.

Central and local government

Regional Deals will be a tool used to help unlock funding and financing tools, 
provide regulatory relief, and be supported by regional-central government 
coordination. Local government will provide its unique place-based 
knowledge and apply the necessary planning, funding and financing, and 
other regulatory processes to ensure successful delivery of projects.

Central and local government will agree on joint priorities and projects and 
identify how they will each mobilise their individual levers and tools to 
support Regional Deals. Partners will agree initially to a limited number of 
projects (five) to progress as part of a Regional Deal. 

Both central and local government partners will be able to mobilise existing 
working relationships as foundations for their Regional Deals, especially 
when it involves complex, large-scale projects. 

Private sector

The private sector’s expertise and investment capability will be a key 
component of Regional Deals. Private sector entities involved in a deal will 
have the opportunity to access new central government levers, leading to 
cost savings and new growth opportunities.

Combined commitments from central and local government will be aimed at 
creating an enabling investment environment to attract private sector 
capital where appropriate, and engagement with the private sector at the 
earliest possible stages is recommended. 

Māori organisations and entities

There is significant potential for Māori organisations and entities to be 
involved in Regional Deals.  The framework encourages local government to 
engage early with Māori organisations and entities to identify opportunities 
to partner with Māori, to attract iwi investment, and to use Māori/iwi 
expertise in Regional Deals and projects under Regional Deals. Regional 
Deals will also need to honour pre-existing Treaty of Waitangi obligations. 

Regional Deal Partnerships 

13
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Unlocking funding and financing tools, providing 
regulatory relief mechanisms and coordination 

This framework proposes that the Regional Deal system initially follow an 
approach that combines: 

• unlocking funding and financing tools;

• regulatory relief mechanisms;

• efficient and innovative use of existing funding, financing and
planning mechanisms; and

• improved central government coordination.

To support Regional Deals, central government and local government will 
work together to enable a range of options. Potential options could 
include:

1. a clear commitment to support agreed projects across agency
investment pipelines and coordination of capital commitments
to funding for transport, schools, hospitals and other aspects of
growth relevant to the region;

2. enabling new user charges, value capture, targeted rates, tolling
and congestion charging, an enhanced Infrastructure Funding
and Financing Act;

3. proposals for the reallocation of existing government funding
(e.g. from the International Visitor Conservation and Tourism
Levy);

4. enhanced Going for Housing Growth payments which could
include a share of GST for local government;

5. sector specific commitments, which could include sharing
royalties generated by new and reestablished exploration of the
mineral estate, or other forms of regional economic
development; and

6. specific legislative changes to be advanced through legislation.

Regional Deals will need to align with local government planning and 
budgetary cycles including long-term plans and are not intended to 
supersede independent decisions made by government funding agencies. 
Regional Deal partners will still need to follow regular funding application 
and approval processes as set out by relevant agencies.

14
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Leadership and 
Direction
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Leadership and strategic direction
Leadership and strategic direction over Regional Deals will be provided by 
both local and central governments. The Infrastructure and Investment 
Ministerial Group will provide this direction for central government. This 
Ministerial Group will have delegated decision-making authority and will 
manage alignment across portfolios, ensuring that all necessary central 
government levers are available in support of the system, as well as 
interfacing with local government leadership. 

The Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group will be supported by 
the Department of Internal Affairs with support from relevant agencies as 
required. 

Strategic leadership and direction, oversight and 
delivery structures for Regional Deals 

Oversight bodies
Once a deal is finalised, central and local government partners from the 
region will establish an oversight body for the Regional Deal. The 
composition and membership of the oversight bodies will be agreed by both 
parties and will have independent chairs, and senior partner 
representatives. 

Because Regional Deals could build on existing relationships between 
central and local government (such as those in support of urban growth), 
oversight for Regional Deals will need to consider and align with existing 
oversight arrangements. Initially, the oversight bodies might be extensions 
of existing structures. 

Because private sector investment and expertise will be critical for the 
success of Regional Deals, these oversight bodies will be encouraged to 
consider involvement of the private sector.

Implementation and delivery
Decisions regarding the implementation, delivery and evaluation of Regional 
Deals is contingent on further policy development, discussions with local 
government and delivery bodies, and the New Zealand Infrastructure 
Commission’s development of a National Infrastructure Plan. 

This framework envisages that initially each deal will have the support 
provided by a central government delivery agency (or agencies) who will 
coordinate central government and receive input from local government 
delivery agencies. Delivery agencies will optimise and manage effective 
prioritisation/sequencing of project milestones, and support procurement 
and delivery models for delivering infrastructure. 

Entities involved in implementation and delivery will also lead on monitoring 
and evaluation. 

16
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Monitoring, evaluation, and accountability 
measures
A framework for monitoring, evaluating and accountability mechanisms will 
be developed for all Regional Deals to allow for comparisons and 
consistency across deals. Bespoke performance indicators for each deal, 
including metrics and a baseline – against which progress can be assessed 
on a regular basis – will need to be negotiated between partners and 
included in the deal. Continuous evaluation and negotiation of new 
commitments will occur over the lifetime of the deal. 

In considering these mechanisms, partners will need to consider:

Complexities in evaluating the impact of deals
For example, outcomes related to economic growth (usually 
measured by Gross Domestic Product or Gross Value Added for a 
region) can be affected by many policies and circumstances, 
which makes it difficult to isolate how much an individual policy 
has contributed to a particular outcome.

Evaluation timeframes may need to be considered 
over a longer time horizon 
While assessment of whether deals are on time, budget and 
meeting specific targets is possible within a shorter timeframe (for 
example annually, or three-yearly), it may be more realistic to 
assess the wider, strategic achievements over a longer time 
horizon. Consideration of central and local government election 
cycles will be important. 

Capacity in local authorities
The process of developing a Regional Deal is unique to each deal, a 
large amount of executive time and negotiation can be required 
over a significant period. The capacity and skill set within local 
authorities to deal with the additional demands for project 
assessment and monitoring that comes with a Regional Deal is 
likely to be variable. The potential resource burden on local 
government needs to be monitored over time. 

Coherence with existing accountability mechanisms
Consideration needs to be given to how any Regional Deal 
reporting and monitoring framework would integrate and align 
with existing legislation and regulatory frameworks for central and 
local government planning and reporting, and which bodies are 
best placed to assess regional deal progress. 

Adaptability to changing circumstances 
Consideration also needs to be given to how any variations to a 
regional deal will occur and how these will integrate with existing 
processes operated across agencies who are already involved in 
delivering infrastructure projects with local government partners. 

Examples could include macroeconomic targets and council performance metrics such as GDP, 
population spend metrics, financial accountability measures, joint governance effectiveness; tourism 
numbers, housing consents, compliance certificates issued. 17
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Sequencing
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Timeframes 

Regular reviews will be imbedded within the lifespan of deals (e.g. annually) 
to assess progress and project delivery using the measures discussed in the 
monitoring, evaluation and accountability measures section. 

The lifespan will cover multiple parliamentary and local government 
electoral and planning cycles, which will ensure both a long-term approach 
to growth infrastructure, and capture and retain private sector investment. 
Regional Deals will need to consider other relevant central and local 
government planning and funding cycles. 

Regional deals will be based on 
a 30-year vision, with negotiated 
10-year strategic plans to
deliver shared objectives and
outcomes, to provide optimal
time for evaluation of outputs
and delivery of projects with
long-term outcomes

Deal making milestones

Regional Deals will follow a staged approach with the following phases:

• Milestone 1: a letter from the Minister of Local Government
inviting the regions to apply and laying out the government’s
expectations for proposals

• Milestone 2: consideration of proposals

• Milestone 3: a signed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

• Milestone 4: final stage negotiation of a deal

19
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Milestone 1 

A high-level framework that sets out what the government wants to see in 
Regional Deals. A public version of this document will be used by councils to 
prepare proposals for Regional Deals. 

The framework is not specific to local needs and does not make specific 
promises of regulatory relief or funding and financing.

Release a national regional deal framework
Decision makers: Cabinet

Regional Deal Criteria

Light touch proposals assessed against (but not limited to):

• alignment with the strategic framework

• growth potential

• commitment to a regional spatial plan

• capability, capacity, readiness to deliver

• commitment to fiscal prudence

• that councils meet all their regulatory standards (economic and
water quality regulation).

Milestone 3
Signed Memorandum of Understanding

Central government will confirm initial intent to progress into an MOU with 
selected regions.

Central and selected local government partners both develop and agree an 
MOU setting out intended areas to work together. Central government will 
provide guidance to support the MOU process to minimise council 
expenditure during this phase.

A region will need an MOU to enter the pre-deal queue.

Decision makers: Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group | LG Partners

Milestone 2

Central government invites expressions of interest (up to five in the first 
wave). Selected councils provide a light-touch proposal with an outline of 
the following:

• drivers of economic growth in a region: regions to identify their own
areas of growth and key economic drivers;

• what the region will do to unlock growth: regions to identify what actions
they intend to take to unlock or enable growth; and

• what the region needs from central government to assist: regions to
identify policy and legislative action they need from central government.

Consideration of proposals
Decision makers: Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group | selected councils. 
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Milestone 4

Ahead of a deal, regions will undertake work that may be needed to support 
the deals (for example: zoning decisions, community agreement, 
establishment of any necessary committees, cross-council collaboration, 
including proposals to establish CCOs for cross-council service delivery).

Central and local government will agree monitoring and reporting metrics to 
measure overall regional performance (e.g. GDP, population, spend metrics, 
tourism numbers, housing consents, compliance certificates issued). 

Final Stage Negotiation for a Deal

Decision makers: Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group | Office of 
Regional Deals | LG Partners 

4.1 Pre-deal Queue

Central government will assess what is needed from local government for a 
deal. This could include a mix of the following:

Decision makers: Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group | Office of 
Regional Deals | LG Partners 

4.2 Funding and Financing 

Funding and Financing tools

• A pipeline of project funding as set out in the GPS Transport;

• commitment to support the agreed projects across agency
investment pipelines and capital commitments;

• value capture/ support for a targeted rate;

• new user charges;

• enhanced Going for Housing Growth payments. For example:
share of GST for local government and/or potential earn back
mechanisms;

• legislation + other tools to better enable longer term funding and
financing commitments, for example, enhanced IFF; or

• sector specific commitments – for example a greater sharing of
royalties from an activity like mining.

21

Regulatory Relief

• Fast track consenting for projects

• Coordination of decisions around planning and programming of schools,
hospitals, for example, needed to support a growth region

Coordination
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Milestone 4

Partners sign the Regional Deal. The first deal will be finalised in 2025. 

A regional deal is likely to have the following characteristics:

• A defined economic/geographic area;

• 10-year strategic plan with clear objectives, outcomes and
actions to meet shared objectives and outcomes;

• alignment with 30-year National Infrastructure Plan;

• clear leadership arrangements, delivery timeframes and
accountabilities;

• identified capital and operational investments and operating
costs;

• clear performance measurements and regular monitoring and
reporting;

• clear operational roles and responsibilities defined and an
operating model that balances flexibility and responsiveness with
accountability; and

• regulatory and institutional settings to support the deal.

4.4 Finalised regional deal 

Sequencing
Given the time and resourcing required to negotiate, implement and 
monitor Regional Deals, this framework proposes that deals be finalised in a 
staged approach.  

The Government intends to complete the first deal in 2025.

Decision makers: Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group | Office of 
Regional Deals | LG Partners 
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Selection of regions for 
Regional Deals will be made 
by Ministers using a set of 
standardised criteria. 
Guidance will be issued to 
local government on what 
they will need to provide to 
be eligible for a Regional 
Deal

High level criteria
Local authorities will generally be selected for Regional Deals by the 
Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group (IIMG) based on 
assessments against standardised criteria: 

• alignment with the strategic framework;

• growth potential;

• commitment to a regional spatial plan;

• capability, capacity and readiness to deliver;

• commitment to fiscal prudence; and

• commitment to broader government reform objectives such as Local
Water Done Well and Going for Housing Growth.

24
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First wave or tranche
Five regions will be invited to provide light-touch proposals for a first wave 
of Regional Deals. Selection of regions for the first wave will be led by 
Ministers, based on selection criteria, and agreed to through a Cabinet 
process. Selection will be supported by the high-level criteria with particular 
emphasis on: 

• councils being in a growth area that has clear objectives around
economic growth, productivity and infrastructure in alignment
with the Regional Deal strategic framework;

• councils with an already identified functional economic area,
such as through an existing urban partnership, and therefore
have initial supporting structures, spatial plans and future
development strategies in place, including where relevant,
funding and financing proposals for infrastructure development
and delivery; and

• councils being ready to deliver on a deal, including having the
capability and capacity, a clear plan for the city/region, and a
track record of having worked successfully with central
government, other councils in the region, private sector and
iwi/Māori.

It is noted that central and local government are part of several partnerships 
that may already satisfy the above criteria, including for example, Urban 
Growth Partnerships. These urban partnerships could be mobilised as 
foundations for Regional Deals. 

Subsequent waves or tranches
Subsequent Regional Deals will build on the lessons learned from previous 
Regional Deals to ensure the system is refined as more deals are 
established. Regions or sub-regions for subsequent waves will be selected 
through an open expressions of interest process. Proposals received from 
the expressions of interest will be assessed against the high-level criteria set 
out in this strategic framework and consideration by the Office of Regional 
Deals. 

Advice to the Infrastructure and Investment Ministerial Group will follow 
this assessment, and subject to their approval, will proceed to a Cabinet 
process for formal agreement.

25
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1. https://img.scoop.co.nz/media/pdfs/2405/Framework__City_and_Regional_deals.pdf

2. Speech from the Throne https://gazette.govt.nz/managePDF?file=2023/2023-vr5697.pdf

3. https://www.hud.govt.nz/assets/Uploads/Documents/Cabinet-papers/Cabinet-Paper-Fixing-
the-Housing-
Crisis.pdf#:~:text=Unaffordable%20housing%20has%20far%2Dreaching,standards%20for%20
all%20New%20Zealanders

4. Report into New Zealand’s Infrastructure Challenge, Sense Partners for the New Zealand
Infrastructure Commission, Oct 2021, https://media.umbraco.io/te-waihanga-30-year-
strategy/lhhm5gou/new-zealands-infrastructure-challenge-quantifying-the-gap.pdf.

5. A report commissioned by Local Government New Zealand demonstrates that in the last
three years, building bridges, sewerage systems, roads and water supplies has become 38%,
30%, 27% and 27% more expensive to build respectively
https://d1pepq1a2249p5.cloudfront.net/media/documents/Analysing_increases_in_local_go
vernment_costs_LI2BVKU.pdf

6. LGNZ media release: https://www.lgnz.co.nz/news/media-releases/drivers-behind-rates-
rises-across-the-country-laid-bare/

7. Economic growth is a broad concept that may involve many industries. Funding and financing
and regulatory frameworks that underpin industry-specific projects will vary and will need to
be considered when regional deals are formalised.

8. Infrastructure refers to “the fixed, long-lived structures that facilitate the production of
goods and services, including transport, water, energy, social assets, and digital infrastructure
such as our broadband and mobile networks” as defined by the Treasury
https://www.treasury.govt.nz/information-and-services/nz-economy/infrastructure

9. Including the Department of Internal Affairs (as initial lead), the Treasury, the Ministry for
Housing and Urban Development, the Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment, the
Ministry of Transport, and the Ministry for the Environment. Involvement from the
infrastructure Commission is also expected in support of the infrastructure portfolio.

Sources
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Hon Simeon Brown 
MP for Pakuranga 

Minister for Energy    Minister for Auckland 
Minister of Local Government   Deputy Leader of the House 
Minister of Transport   

 
3 September 2024 

Dear Mayor  

Local Government (Water Services Preliminary Arrangements) Act  

Yesterday,  the Local Government (Water Services Preliminary Arrangements) Act (the Act) 
passed into law. 

This is significant milestone in the implementation of Local Water Done Well. It provides the 
framework and preliminary arrangements for councils to lead the way in making changes to 
the delivery of water services for your communities.  

Water Services Delivery Plans required by 3 September 2025 

From today, councils will have 12 months to develop Water Services Delivery Plans (Plans) 
– the key foundation for Local Water Done Well.  

The Plans are an opportunity for councils to demonstrate how you will deliver high-quality, 
financially sustainable water services in the long run.  

They are a key decision-making tool, providing autonomy for you to assess your water 
infrastructure, how much you need to invest, and how you plan to finance and deliver it 
through your preferred service delivery model. 

We're intentional in ensuring that councils are in control of this process, because you know 
your communities best. 

Unlike the previous government’s top-down reforms, we’re working alongside councils and 
enabling you to determine how to deliver financially sustainable water services for your 
communities, using the delivery models and financing options that the Government has 
made available.  

Delivery models and financing options  

Last month I announced the range of new service delivery models available under Local 
Water Done Well that will give councils greater choice about how they can deliver water 
services in future.  

As part of that announcement, the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited 
(LGFA) confirmed improved access to finance for water services. 

LGFA can now lend to water services council-controlled organisations (CCOs) that are 
financially supported by their parent council or councils. LGFA will support leverage for water 
CCOs up to a level equivalent to 500 percent of operating revenues – around twice that of 
existing councils – subject to water CCOs meeting prudent credit criteria. 

These financing solutions are available to councils now. This will enable access to long-term 
debt which spreads the cost of water infrastructure investment over generations of 
consumers and ratepayers rather than front-loading costs on current ratepayers through 
increasing rates. 
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Through the development of your Plans, the Government’s expectation is that councils will 
be considering the full suite of options for the future delivery of water services and moving 
quickly to address financial sustainability and affordability challenges.  

This includes consideration of setting up a single council or multiple council-owned water 
CCO to take advantage of the additional funding through the LGFA, particularly as this 
enables additional debt financing for immediate investment needs while reducing the impact 
on rates. 

The Government’s expectation is that councils will be working together to develop joint water 
service delivery arrangements, where that makes sense to deliver financially sustainable 
water services. 

However, we know it’s not going to be a one-size-fits-all approach because the needs and 
local circumstances of different councils aren’t one-sized. 

This is about providing choice and flexibility to councils to achieve financial sustainability, not 
mandating them like the former government did.  

Steps towards full economic regulation of water services 

While the Plans do not have a regulatory purpose, they are a useful first step to disclose 
information on water services to support the future economic regulation regime.  

Under Part 2 of the Act, councils will be required through their Plans to provide baseline 
information about their water services operations, assets, revenue, expenditure, pricing, and 
projected capital expenditure, as well as necessary financing arrangements. 

The information collected through the Plans, much of which is expected to come from 
councils’ existing public documents (such as long-term plans, financial accounts and asset 
management plans), will be shared with the Commerce Commission as it works towards 
further developing and implementing the full economic regulation regime under Local Water 
Done Well.   

Streamlined consultation and decision-making processes for establishing water 
CCOs and other local government arrangements  

The Act includes provisions that enable a streamlined consultation and decision-making 
process for the establishment of water CCOs and other local government arrangements, 
while continuing to provide the opportunity for community input. 

Councils may choose to use these arrangements as an alternative to some of the standard 
requirements in the Local Government Act. 

The arrangements include provisions that: 

• Set minimum decision-making and consultation requirements – so a council 
only has to identify and assess two options (status quo + preferred option) 
and only undertake one round of consultation 

• Clarify that councils can set up joint committees that can assess options, and 
prepare and consult on a proposal across multiple districts (instead of each 
council carrying out separate consultation) 
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• Enable councils to consider the collective benefits/impacts of a proposal 
(across multiple districts), in addition to the interests of their individual districts 
– and to factor in the views of other participating councils. 

These new arrangements will make it easier for councils that want to move quickly to shift 
the delivery of water services into new models to do so, setting the foundations for more 
financially sustainable water services. 

Changes to applying the Te Mana o te Wai hierarchy of obligations to wastewater 
standards 

The Act also provides for interim changes to the Water Services Act which means the Te 
Mana o te Wai hierarchy of obligations in the National Policy Statement for Freshwater 
Management (NPS-FM) will not apply when the Water Services Authority – Taumata Arowai 
sets wastewater standards.  

This change is intended as an interim measure while the Government works to replace the 
NPS-FM to rebalance Te Mana o te Wai, to better reflect the interests of all water users.  

Support available from the Department of Internal Affairs 

The Department of Internal Affairs has today made available a range of guidance, templates 
and other information to support councils to develop their Plans. The Department is also 
available to provide technical support, such as with council-led financial analysis.  

Find out more at: www.dia.govt.nz/Water-Services-Policy-Water-Services-Delivery-Plans 

The Department will be holding further information sessions for councils, and will be in touch 
directly regarding these sessions. 

I also want to reiterate that the Department is willing to meet with individual councils or 
groups of councils, if you have further questions at this stage, or to seek assistance with any 
discussions your council may be having about future service delivery arrangements. 

Please contact Hamiora Bowkett, Executive Director Water Services Policy at  
waterservices@dia.govt.nz.  

Further information and next steps 

The majority of provisions in the Local Government (Water Services Preliminary 
Arrangements) Act will come into force on 3 September 2024. This is the second stage in 
the implementation of Local Water Done Well. 

I announced policy decisions for the third Local Water Done Well Bill earlier this month. This 
included new models for water organisations, confirming financing arrangements that 
support financial sustainability, and setting out a new regulatory regime. 

Further information about these changes can be found on the Department of Internal Affairs’ 
website, at www.dia.govt.nz/Water-Services-Policy-Future-Delivery-System. 

These changes will be included in a Local Government Water Services Bill, which is 
expected to be introduced in December 2024 and enacted in mid-2025.  

Thank you for your continued engagement and support.  

ATTACHMENT 3

284

https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dia.govt.nz%2FWater-Services-Policy-Water-Services-Delivery-Plans&data=05%7C02%7CEden.Green%40dia.govt.nz%7Ca5fa565313b444383ec808dcc255c60f%7Cf659ca5cfc474e96b24d14c95df13acb%7C0%7C0%7C638598920847993556%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hME9%2BWFsg1u0BE3LNxDBOLpa7zrzICJuYV7o14nlVjQ%3D&reserved=0
mailto:waterservices@dia.govt.nz
http://www.dia.govt.nz/Water-Services-Policy-Future-Delivery-System


 
 

  Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160 New Zealand 
+64 4 817 6804 | s.brown@ministers.govt.nz |  www.beehive.govt.nz 

 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

Hon Simeon Brown 

Minister of Local Government 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
25 SEPTEMBER 2024 

 
AGENDA ITEM: 14 

 
 

Prepared by  Simon Pickford 
   Chief Executive Officer  
 
  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 

1. REPORT SUMMARY  
 
This report provides an overview of activities across the previous month and a 
‘horizon-scan’ of upcoming strategic focus areas and opportunities. 

 
 

2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That Council receive the Chief Executive Officer’s Report for information. 

 
 

3. OVERVIEW OF INFORMATION 
 
This report provides information on activity which has occurred over 
August/September 2024, and key matters of interest to Council. 
 
3.1  PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 

The coalition government has outlined further details about proposed 
changes to the Local Government Act in a recent Cabinet Paper. 

The proposed new purpose of local government: 

"to provide for good-quality local infrastructure, public services, and 
regulatory functions in a way that is most cost-effective for households and 
businesses, while supporting local economic growth and development" 

The ‘back-to-basics’ package will include: 

• A review of the bylaws system, including enforcement 
• looking into how councils recover costs from fees and charges 
• exploring a collective approach to reduce insurance costs 
• reviewing councils’ transparency and accountability processes 
• addressing constraints in councils' consultation and decision-making 

processes 
• exploring whether there are efficiencies in the conduct of council business 
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• consider the greater use of shared services 
Revenue capping is also discussed in the cabinet paper: 

"Revenue-capping is used in Australian states New South Wales and 
Victoria to reduce cost pressures on households and property owners. The 
New South Wales system uses a percentage gap aligned with inflation or 
other economic indicators ... 

I propose to investigate the applicability of such a tool in New Zealand, 
focusing on noncore activities. This will link in with the reinstatement of (the 
core services clause) as proposed (earlier in the paper)." 

It appears that revenue capping will be: 

• A statutorily set limitation on revenue (not rates) 

• Appears to apply to activity outside the 'core services' 

• Tied to inflation or other economic indicators. 

The Cabinet paper proposal is to look at this and how it might apply to NZ 

Council benchmarks are also being discussed based on the New South 
Wales model. In NSW they measure approximately 120 indicators which are:  

• A mix of finance, asset, services, salary, and governance performance 
• Data publicly available 

• Most measures sit above the level that generate business insight i.e. council 
wide. A tool for public accountability not internal performance improvement 

The proposed benchmarking is not a performance improvement initiative but 
rather just comparators (not targets). 

 

3.2  COMMUNITY OUTREACH DAYS  

The first Community Outreach Days were held Tues 17 September with 
drop-in style sessions of two hours each in both Ngakawau and Karamea. 
Each session was attended by two members of staff, Shelley Jope 
(Customer Experience Manager) & Nicola Woodward (Community 
Engagement Manager) and an elected Member – Councillor O’Keefe in 
Ngakawau and Councillor Sampson in Karamea.  

Two residents in Northern Buller and nine in Karamea utilised the outreach 
day. 

The next date planned is Wednesday 16 October with sessions in 
Charleston and Karamea. 

Elected Members are welcome and encouraged to make themselves 
available for any of the outreach days. 
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3.3  AIRPORT RECERTIFICATION 

On 5 September 2024, the Westport Airport hosted two CAA Technical 
Specialists (Aeronautical Services) as part of its five-yearly "Part 139 
Certificate Renewal". This audit represented an opportunity for the CAA to 
meet with and interview senior WAA staff, and to make observations and 
recommendations to ensure our compliance with Civil Aviation Rules Part 
139 and conformance with our Part 139 Exposition. In advance of this visit, 
the Westport Airport team had pre-supplied a large amount of vetted 
evidence, as requested, and plans were made to showcase our dynamic and 
progressive airport safety culture.  

The visit went very well, and we are expecting our operating certificate will 
be renewed by the end of the month. 

 

3.4  REGULATORY SERVICES ACTIVITY - AUGUST 

Building 

Building activity remained high in August. 

Work has been completed to assess supervision reports for several staff in 
order for them to undertake certain types of inspections for R1 and R2 
categories.  

Documentation for our audit procedures and issuing of Certificates of Public 
Use (for opening of commercial buildings before CCC is issued) and our 
Dangerous and Insanitary buildings procedures have been completed. This 
has been forwarded to MBIE for review. 

  

Building Consents Granted 

Granted 33 in August 

 
 

 

 

291



 
  
 

Building Consents - Statutory Timeframes 

One consent was over the 20 day time period. 

 
Inspection Activity 

75 inspections undertaken, 

 
Code Compliance Certificates 

7 CCC issued in August  
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Building Consents Issued 

Trend for year – 8 dwellings issued for August 2024 

 
 

3.5  COMPLIANCE 

• Team have responded to (and in some cases are still following up) 
 with 650 service requests year to date. These cover a broad range of 
 issues across council and include parking, dog control, use of road 
 reserves for personal gain, noise and access concerns. 

• Freedom camping checks will be getting underway very soon and 
 already campers are making their presence felt. This will 
 continue through to March 2025. 

• The team have 214 property checks scheduled to complete for follow 
 up of unregistered dogs for the current year. 

• Terry Archer has submitted his resignation as a member of the 
 District Licensing Committee. Terry has been a valued member for 
 the past 12 years. This has been acknowledged and the process to 
 recruit a new member will begin shortly. 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL   
 

25 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 15 
 
Prepared by  Simon Pickford  
 Chief Executive Officer  
 
 
PORTFOLIO LEADS VERBAL UPDATE 
 
 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY  
  
 A summary of updates is verbally provided by each of the new Portfolio Leads 

and Council Representatives listed below. 
 
 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council receive verbal updates from the following Chairs and 
Council Representatives, for information: 
 

a. Inangahua Community Board – Cr L Webb 

b. Regulatory Environment & Planning - Councillors Neylon and Basher 

c. Community Services - Councillors Howard and Pfahlert   

d. Infrastructure - Councillors Grafton and Weston  

e. Corporate Policy and Corporate Planning - Councillors Reidy and 

Sampson 

f. Smaller and Rural Communities - Councillors O’Keefe and Webb 

g. Iwi Relationships - Ngāti Waewae Representative Ned Tauwhare and 
Mayor Cleine 

 
h. Te Tai o Poutini Plan – Mayor J Cleine and Cr G Neylon 

i. Joint Committee Westport Rating District – Mayor J Cleine, Cr J Howard 
and Cr C Reidy 
 

j. Regional Transport Committee – Cr Phil Grafton 
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BULLER DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
25 SEPTEMBER 2024 

 
AGENDA ITEM: 16 

 
 

Prepared by Simon Pickford 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
PUBLIC EXCLUDED 

 
 
1. REPORT SUMMARY 
 
 Subject to the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 

S48(1) right of Local Authority to exclude public from proceedings of any meeting 
on the grounds that: 

 
 
2. DRAFT RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of 
this meeting: 
 
Item 
No. 

Minutes/Report 
of: 

General Subject Reason For Passing 
Resolution Section 7 LGOIMA 
1987 

PE 1 Simon Pickford 
Chief Executive 
Officer 

Confirmation of 
Public Excluded 
Minutes 

(s 7(2)(i)) - enable any local 
authority holding the information 
to carry on, without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations 
(including commercial and 
industrial negotiations); or 
(s 7(2)(j)) - prevent the 
disclosure or use of official 
information for improper gain or 
improper advantage. 

PE 2 Krissy Trigg 
Group Manager 
Community 
Services 

Future Of Flood 
Recovery Houses 

s7(2)(i) enable any local 
authority holding the information 
to carry on, without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations 
(including commercial and 
industrial negotiations) 
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Item 
No. 

Minutes/Report 
of: 

General Subject Reason For Passing 
Resolution Section 7 LGOIMA 
1987 

PE 3 Krissy Trigg 
Group Manager 
Community 
Services 

Future Of Flood 
Recovery Houses 

s7(2)(i) enable any local 
authority holding the information 
to carry on, without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations 
(including commercial and 
industrial negotiations) 

PE 4 Simon Pickford 
Chief Executive 
Officer 

BHL Director 
Remuneration 

(s 7(2)(a)) - Protect the privacy of 
natural persons, including that of 
deceased natural persons; 

 

296


	Agenda Front Cover
	BDC Charter 2024
	Terms of Reference
	Table of Contents
	Apologies
	Members Interests
	Confirmation of Previous Minutes
	Attachment 1 - Council Public Meeting Minutes 28 August 2024

	Action Points Report
	Attachment 1 - Council Action Points August 2024

	Community-Led Revitalisation Fund Applications
	Attachment 1 - Carters Beach Hall and Reserve Subcommittee
	Attachment 2 - EPIC Westport

	Community Grants Applications
	Attachment 1 -  Cancer Society Canterbury-West Coast Division
	Attachment 2 - Charleston to Westport Coastal Trail Trust
	Attachment 3 - Citizens Advice Bureau
	Attachment 4 -  Clean Streams Karamea
	Attachment 5 -  Heritage West Coast Incorporated
	Attachment 6 -  Inangahua A&P & Sports Association
	Attachment 7 - Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust
	Attachment 8 - Karamea Historic Society
	Attachment 9 - Karamea War Memorial Library Inc
	Attachment 10 - Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust
	Attachment 11 - NZ Food Network FoodBank Distribution Buller
	Attachment 12 - Reefton Historic Trust Board
	Attachment 13 - Reefton Sports Park
	Attachment 14 - Westport MENZ Shed
	Attachment 15 - Westport Playcentre

	Community Led Revitilisation Fund: Accountability Reports
	Attachment 1 - Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated
	Attachment 2 - Carters Beach Hall Reserve Subcommittee
	Attachment 3 - Inangahua Silver Band
	Attachment 4 - Karamea Reserve Subcommittee
	Attachment 5 - Northern Buller Communities Society Inc

	Community Grants: Accountability Report
	Attachment 1 - Clean Streams Karamea Incorporated
	Attachment 2 - Ingangahua A&P Show
	Attachment 3 - Kaitiaki Mokihinui Charitable Trust
	Attachment 4 - Karamea War Memorial Library
	Attachment 5 - Kawatiri Nature Environment & Communities Trust
	Attachment 6 - Reefton Historic Trust Board
	Attachment 7 - Torea Gallery and Studios Inc
	Attachment 8 - Westport Menz Shed
	Attachment 9 - Westport Playcentre
	Attachment 10 - NZ Council of Victim Support Groups
	Attachment 11 - Potikohua Trust

	General Rates Differentials And Water Rating Review
	Loan Extension - Buller District Council To Buller Holdings Limited
	Attachment 1 - Buller District Council Deed of Variation 2024

	Westport Airport Authority – Full Year Report To 30 June 2024
	Attachment 1 - Westport Airport Authority Accounts (Unaudited) 2024

	Status Report – Carnegie Library
	Attachment 1 - Draft Memorandum of Understanding – Carnegie Building
	Attachment 2 - Steering Group Terms of Reference - Carnegie

	Mayors Report
	Attachment 1 - MTFJ Annual Report
	Attachment 2 - Regional Deals Strategic Framework
	Attachment 3 - Mayors Correspondence

	CEO Report
	Portfolio Leads Verbal Updates
	Public Excluded Report

